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DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Hsu Feng (Chairman and Managing Director)
Albert Tong (Vice-Chairman)

Tong Chi Kar Charles (Vice-Chairman)
Yeung Kam Hoi

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Cheung Siu Ping, Oscar
Lee Chan Fai
Sean S ] Wang

COMPANY SECRETARY

Lee Yuen Han

REGISTERED OFFICE
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Cayman Islands

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS

IN HONG KONG

Rooms 1501-2 and 1507-12
15th Floor, Wing On Centre
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Hong Kong

Telephone: (852) 2848-1668
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E-mail: mail_box@tomson.com.hk

AUDITOR

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
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SHARE REGISTRAR IN HONG KONG

Tricor Secretaries Limited
Level 22, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen’s Road East
Hong Kong

Telephone: (852) 2980-1333

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

China CITIC Bank International Limited
Fubon Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

Bank of Communications Co., Ltd.
Hang Seng Bank Limited

China CITIC Bank Corporation Limited

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited

SOLICITORS
Baker & McKenzie
Zhong Lun Law Firm

Vincent T.K. Cheung, Yap & Co.
Woo Kwan Lee & Lo

SHARE LISTING

The Company’s shares are listed on the Main Board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

Stock Code: 258

INVESTOR RELATIONS

Please write to the Company
at its principal place of business in Hong Kong, or
by fax at (852) 2845-0341 or

email to ir@tomson.com.hk

Website: http://www.tomson.com.hk
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Management Discussion and Analysis

GENERAL OVERVIEW

In respect of the consolidated results of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for the year ended 31st
December, 2018, the Board of Directors of the Company (the
“Board”) is pleased to report a consolidated profit after taxation
attributable to shareholders of the Company of HK$407,681,000
(2017: HK$1,255,486,000). This represents a decrease of
approximately 67.53% as compared with the year 2017. Basic
earnings per share amounted to 20.45 HK cents (2017: 69.44
HK cents).

Unlike the case in 2017 when results were enhanced by the
recognition of a one-off gain on disposals of a joint venture and
subsidiaries of the Group in an aggregate amount of
HK$1,075,148,000 in respect of the Group’s investments in
property projects in Tianjin, the People’s Republic of China
(“China”), operating profit and revenue of the Group decreased
for the year 2018. Nevertheless, the Group received dividends of
HK$90,393,000 (2017: HK$86,498,000) from its listed and

unlisted long-term equity investments for the year under review.

As a result, the Group reported an operating profit before
taxation of HK$366,207,000 for the year under review (2017:
HK$2,234,167,000) after excluding an unrealized gain on fair
value changes of investment properties of the Group in
Shanghai, China of HK$318,311,000 (2017: HK$154,862,000)
arising from market valuation as at the end of the year under

review pursuant to applicable accounting standards.

DIVIDEND

The Board has declared an interim dividend of 18 HK cents per
share for the year ended 31st December, 2018 (2017: 43 HK
cents per share) payable to the shareholders whose names appear
on the register of members of the Company on Thursday, 30th
May, 2019. The dividend is payable in cash and dividend
warrants are expected to be despatched on Tuesday, 11th June,
2019.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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OPERATIONS REVIEW

The Mainland of China, particularly Shanghai, is the base of the

Group’s major operations.

The property investment segment of the Group in Shanghai was
the Group’s primary profit maker by contributing a segment
profit of HK$491,359,000 (2017: HK$328,102,000), which was
derived from the steady recurrent rental and management
income from the investment properties of the Group as well as
the unrealized gain on fair value changes of these investment

properties upon revaluation at the year-end.

As a result of recognition of gross proceeds from the property
projects of the Group in Shanghai and the Macao Special
Administrative Region (“Macau”) of China, the property
development and trading segment was the secondary profit
contributor of the Group and this generated a segment profit of

HK$78,985,000 (2017: HK$965,497,000).

On the other hand, apart from the securities trading business in
the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region (“Hong Kong”)
of China making an insignificant profit, the other business
segments of the Group reported losses during the year under

review.

Property Development and Investment

Property development and investment in Shanghai and Macau
remained the core business and the principal source of profit of
the Group for the year ended 31st December, 2018 by
contributing a total profit of HK$570,344,000 (2017:
HK$1,293,599,000). Tomson Riviera was the prime source of
operating profit of the Group.

There was a decrease in sale proceeds that could be recognized
during the year under review, subsequent to completion of the
disposal of subsidiaries in Tianjin in the second half of 2017.
This business segment generated total revenue of HK$628,307,000
which accounted for approximately 91.75% of the gross proceeds
from operations of the Group for the year 2018. Projects in
Pudong of Shanghai were the primary source of revenue and

accounted for approximately 91.53% of the gross proceeds from
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operations of the Group whereas the project in Macau accounted
for approximately 0.22%. In addition, an unrealized gain on fair
value changes of the investment properties of the Group in
Shanghai of HK$318,311,000 was recorded at the year-end date.

Tomson Riviera, Shanghai

Tomson Riviera is a notable high-rise residential development
along the riverfront of Lujiazui of Pudong and right opposite the
Bund. There are four residential towers, and based on the
business strategy of the Group, two residential towers are
earmarked for sale while the other two towers are retained for

leasing.

As at 31st December, 2018, the total residential gross floor area
available for sale of Towers A and C amounted to approximately
9,000 square meters while of the total residential gross floor area
of Towers B and D of approximately 58,400 square meters,

about 63% were leased.

For the year 2018, total revenue of HK$480.17 million was
recognized and this accounted for approximately 70.11% of the
gross proceeds from operations of the Group. The revenue was
principally attributable to sale proceeds with the rest derived
from rental income and management fee. The Group also
recorded an unrealized gain on fair value changes of this property
of HK$164.39 million as at the year-end date. In addition, sale
deposits of HK$272.58 million were credited to the Group and

such amount is expected to be recognized in 2019.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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Commercial and Industrial Buildings, Shanghai

Rental income and management fee from the Group’s
commercial and industrial property portfolio in Pudong, which
comprised, inter alia, Tomson Commercial Building, Tomson
International Trade Building, Tomson Waigaoqgiao Industrial
Park, the commercial podium of Tomson Business Centre and
the office premises on the entire 72nd Floor of Shanghai World
Financial Center, provided a steady recurrent revenue of
HK$126.25 million to the Group and this accounted for
approximately 18.44% of the gross proceeds from operations of
the Group for the year 2018. The Group also recorded an
unrealized gain on fair value changes of the aforesaid investment
properties of HK$153.92 million in the annual results of the

Group for the year under review.

TOMSON BUSINESS

CENTRE
1 B R rh oD R B

TOMSON
COMMERCIAL
BUILDING

& B S oK R

Tomson Group Limited ¥ B 4 [ 47 FRA 7]

bl Z w3 R THEYE

RAARLEEMRHRZEER TEYE
A (a4 kE - 5 EE
B o KA AN EAE TEREE - B
B 7 5 L R R 2 7 3 A Ay K - Vg B Bk
SRPL2EEERAEYE ZHE
WA B B 1 A A 1B A AR B E A8 H
W A #7126,250,0009 7G> 1 45 48 H i —
FTr— )\AEJE 2 588 I 4 BB X718.44% ©
A 4L [ IR AE B AR 2 AR AR b
MILE W R AT EEF T ELZ R
5 BN 45 £9153,920,00045 IG °

TOMSON
WAIGAOQIAO

INDUSTRIAL PARK
% LA A 3K [ [

TOMSON
INTERNATIONAL
TRADE BUILDING
& B B B S 5 K




Miscellaneous Residential Development in Shanghai

Tomson Golf Villas and Garden have been developed in phases
around the periphery of Tomson Shanghai Pudong Golf Club in
Pudong since 1996 and there are now less than 10 residential
units and one hundred plus car parking spaces available for sale.
During the year under review, the gross proceeds from these
projects amounted to HK$10.83 million and this accounted for
approximately 1.58% of the gross proceeds from operations of
the Group. The revenue was mainly generated from sale of
residential units and car parking spaces while the remainder was

the rental income.

The Group also holds less than 10 car parking spaces at Xingguo
Garden, the sole residential development of the Group in Puxi,

for sale.

TOMSON GOLF VILLAS AND GARDEN
B B R R ) B B A T
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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Tomson Riviera Garden, Shanghai

Tomson Riviera Garden is a low-density residential project of
the Group adjacent to Tomson Shanghai Pudong Golf Club in
Sanba River District of Pudong and the Group holds a 70%

interest in this project.

All residential units were sold out and the Group retains a club
house for leasing purpose. The property project generated
revenue of HK$9.56 million for the year 2018, which was
derived from rental income and management fee, and this
accounted for approximately 1.40% of the gross proceeds from

operations of the Group.

Jinqiao-Zhangjiang Project, Shanghai

In September 2010, the Company acquired through a
wholly-owned subsidiary the land use rights of a plot of land
with a site area of approximately 300,700 square meters (the
“Tomson Portion”) located in Jingiao-Zhangjiang District of
Pudong and adjacent to Tomson Shanghai Pudong Golf Club.
Vacant possession of over 80% of the site area of the Tomson
Portion has been delivered to the Group in phases but delivery
of the last phase of the Tomson Portion (“Phase 7”) did not take

place as agreed.

In January 2013, the said wholly-owned subsidiary entered into
a conditional framework agreement to acquire the land use rights
of a plot of land with a site area of approximately 422,174.6
square meters (the “Sports Portion”) for landscaping and sports
facilities purposes and a residential development project (the
“Development Project”) on a plot of land with a site area of
approximately 28,286.2 square meters in Jinqiao-Zhangjiang
District of Pudong. As these two plots of land are intermingled
with the Tomson Portion, the Group had intended to
incorporate these land lots into the master development plan of
the Tomson Portion. The Group entered into a supplemental
agreement in July 2016 to cancel the inter-conditional
requirement in respect of the completion of the transfers of the
land use rights of the Sports Portion and the Development
Project in order to facilitate the acquisition of the Development
Project by the Group which was subsequently completed in
2016.
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Initial plans were for the Tomson Portion to be developed into a
low-density residential development in phases. Construction
works on the first phase of the Tomson Portion (“Phase 17) and
the Development Project had been put on hold pending
clearance of related planning matters due to subsequent zoning

and planning adjustments.

On 11th January, 2017, Pudong New Area Planning and Land
Authority of Shanghai published on its website a public notice
with respect to the proposed adjustment and change to
Zhangjiabang Wedge-shaped Green Space Development Plan
which covers the portion located in Jinqiao-Zhangjiang District
of Pudong and north of a stream named Zhangjiabang (the
“Northern Portion”), within which the Tomson Portion, the
Development Project and the Sports Portion are located
(“Proposed Planning Changes”). Having conducted a
preliminary review and analysis of the Proposed Planning
Changes, the Company noted that the Proposed Planning
Changes, if effected, might involve the following: (i) the original
site over which Phase 7 is located would not be delivered to the
Group and instead, another piece of land in the Northern
Portion might be allocated to the Group in substitution and as
replacement; (ii) while the location of Phase 1 and the
Development Project would remain unchanged, there might be
an adjustment and relocation of the other plots forming the
Tomson Portion (which are originally located along the
boundaries and in the centre of the Northern Portion) such that
the aforesaid plots will be consolidated with Phase 1 and the
Development Project to become three combined plots within the
Northern Portion to be allocated to the Group for residential
development (“Revised Tomson Residential Development”); (iii)
if the aforesaid relocation were to materialize, the Revised
Tomson Residential Development would be relocated farther
away from the high voltage pylons running along the northern
side of the original Tomson Portion; (iv) there might be a slight
decrease in the aggregate site area of the Revised Tomson
Residential Development; and (v) the original Sports Portion
might not be available for delivery to the Group because all the
remaining areas surrounding the Revised Tomson Residential
Development within the Northern Portion will be re-categorized
as “public greenery and sports lands”. In August 2017, the
municipal government of Shanghai issued its consent in principle
to the Proposed Planning Changes. The Group and the
contracting party have been collaborating closely in negotiations
with relevant government authorities, with the aim of putting
into effect the adjustments under the Proposed Planning

Changes in the best interests of all parties concerned.
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One Penha Hill, Macau

The Group holds a 70% interest in the development of a luxury
residential condominium, namely One Penha Hill, at Penha Hill

within a designated World Heritage Zone of Macau.

This project generated insignificant revenue to the Group for the
year under review and this accounted for approximately 0.22%
of the gross proceeds from operations of the Group. Sale deposits
of HK$11.63 million were credited to the Group and are
expected to be recognized in the annual results of the Group for
2019. As at 31st December, 2018, residential gross floor area of

approximately 10,600 square meters were available for sale.

ONE PENHA HILL
i E BN TR

Securities Trading

For the year under review, the Group’s securities trading
business in Hong Kong reported revenue of HK$6,735,000 and
this accounted for approximately 0.98% of the gross proceeds
from operations of the Group. The revenue was mainly derived
from sale proceeds of the trading securities held by the Group
and a net gain on securities investments held for trading of
HK$674,000 (2017: HK$10,461,000) was recorded.
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Hospitality and Leisure Industry
Tomson Shanghai Pudong Golf Club, Shanghai

Tomson Shanghai Pudong Golf Club, situated in Pudong of
Shanghai, generated revenue of HK$40,344,000, being
approximately 5.89% of the gross proceeds from operations of
the Group, for the year 2018. The revenue was mainly
attributable to golfing activities and the annual membership fee
income was the secondary source. The drop in revenue was
possibly due to government policies regulating golfing activities
in the Mainland of China and the remaining tenor of the
debentures being less than ten years. As a result, the Club
reported a segment loss of HK$26,877,000 for the year 2018
(2017: HK$33,734,000).

TOMSON SHANGHAI PUDONG GOLF CLUB
B R R Rk

Management Discussion and Analysis
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InterContinental Shanghai Pudong, Shanghai

InterContinental Shanghai Pudong hotel, situated in Lujiazui of
Pudong, Shanghai, reported an average occupancy rate of
approximately 78.70% in 2018. After completion of the
renovation works in guest rooms on five floors in 2017, both
revenue and gross operating profit improved during the year
under review. The Group, which holds a 50% interest in the
hotel, shared a net profic of HK$16.76 million from this
investment for the year 2018 (2017: HK$12.36 million). To
maintain the profitability of the hotel, the hotel management
will continue to focus on controlling operating costs, increasing
marketing efforts on the food and beverage operations and

expanding source of clientele to further raise the occupancy rate.

INTERCONTINENTAL
SHANGHAI PUDONG
3 B T B U B ORI
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Media and Entertainment Business

The Group has participated in the production of live
entertainment shows for years and also set up its film
distribution business in 2011. For the year ended 31st
December, 2018, gross revenue received and receivable from this
segment amounted to HK$8,147,000 and this accounted for
approximately 1.19% of the Group’s gross proceeds from
operations. The revenue for the year under review was mainly
generated from investments in the production of live
entertainment shows, principally local pop concerts and a
segment loss of HK$6,836,000 (2017: HK$1,724,000) was
recorded after taking account of an impairment provision in
respect of the film distribution rights. The Group intends to

continue in participating in investments in various live

performances in 2019.
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PVC Operations

To capitalize on the Group’s established brand and goodwill in
the industry, the Group set up a wholly-owned subsidiary in
Shanghai in mid-2013 to engage in export trade of PVC fittings
and pipes. Market conditions for this business continued to be
challenging and the trading operation reported insignificant
revenue which accounted for approximately 0.19% of the gross
proceeds from operations of the Group for the year under
review. The operation recorded a segment loss of HK$430,000
for the year 2018 (2017: HK$587,000) after recovery of bad
debts.

Investment Holding

In addition to its own property development projects, the Group
holds a 9.8% interest in the issued shares of Rivera (Holdings)
Limited (“RHL”), a listed company in Hong Kong, as a
long-term equity investment. RHL is principally engaged in
property development and investment in Shanghai as well as
securities trading and investment in Hong Kong. The Group
received dividends of HK$11,505,000 (2017: HK$12,784,000)
from RHL during the year under review and an unrealized gain
on change in fair value of the investment of HK$7.67 million
was credited to the investment reserve of the Group during the

year under review pursuant to applicable accounting standards.

The Group also holds a 13.5% interest in the registered capital
of an unlisted associated company of RHL established in
Shanghai as a long-term equity investment, and that company is
principally engaged in property development and investment in
Shanghai. Dividends of HK$78,888,000 (2017: HK$73,714,000)
were received from such investment during the year under

review.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW
Liquidity and Financing Position

As at 31st December, 2018, total assets of the Group slightly
increased by approximately 0.65% to HK$21,926,186,000.
Equity attributable to owners of the Company was
HK$13,027,057,000 in total, a decrease of approximately 1.49%
while equity per share was HK$6.26, representing a decrease of
approximately 10.70% from 2017 which was mainly attributable
to depreciation in value of Renminbi and the issue of new shares
under the Company’s scrip dividend scheme for the interim

dividend for 2017 during the year under review.

The Group’s operations and investments for the year ended 31st
December, 2018 were funded by cash on hand, and revenue
from operating activities, investing activities and financing

activities.

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and cash equivalents
of the Group amounted to HK$4,268,775,000, an increase of
approximately 15.59%. During the year under review, the Group
achieved net cash inflows of HK$16,758,000 and
HK$278,416,000 from its operating and investing activities
respectively. After taking into account the net cash inflow of
HK$428,007,000 from its financing activities, the Group recorded
a net increase in cash and cash equivalents of HK$723,181,000
for the year under review (2017: HK$616,608,000). The net cash
inflow was mainly attributable to the clearance of bills receivable
in relation to the balance of proceeds from the disposal of
subsidiaries in Tianjin of China in 2017 and new borrowings
raised, but this was partly offset by placement of pledged bank
deposits and repayment of borrowings during the year under

review.

As at 31st December, 2018, excluding contract liabilities/receipts
in advance which represented the deposits received from the sale
of properties, of the liabilities of the Group of HK$8,351,733,000
(2017: HK$8,043,949,000), about 54.47% were taxation under
current liabilities, about 18.00% were deferred tax liabilities,
about 17.10% were borrowings while about 10.43% were trade
and other payables and accruals. Details of the trade payables,
borrowings and deferred taxation are shown in Notes 27(d), 30
and 31 to the consolidated financial statements of the Group for
the year under review on pages 159 to 160 and pages 164 to 166

respectively.
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The Group’s borrowings as at 31st December, 2018 amounted
to HK$1,428,355,000 (2017: HK$797,215,000), equivalent to
approximately 10.96% (2017: 6.03%) of the equity attributable
to owners of the Company at the same date. The Group did not
employ any financial instruments for financing and treasury
management. All of the borrowings were under security and
subject to floating interest rates. Approximately 77% of the
borrowings were denominated in Hong Kong Dollar while the
remainder was denominated in Renminbi. Of these borrowings,
approximately 33.86% were due for repayment within one year
from the end of the reporting period, approximately 10.76%
were repayable more than one year but not exceeding two years
from the end of the reporting period, approximately 40.05%
were due for repayment more than two years but not more than
five years from the end of the reporting period, while the
remaining 15.33% were due for repayment more than five years

from the end of the reporting period.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments
in relation to expenditure on properties under development of
HK$126,800,000 (2017: HK$153,182,000) which were
contracted but not provided for. The Group anticipates that
these commitments will be funded from its future operating
revenue, bank borrowings and other sources of finance where

appropriate.

As at 31st December, 2018, the Group recorded a current ratio
of 1.94 times (2017: 1.86 times) and a gearing ratio (total
liabilities to equity attributable to the owners of the Company)
of 66.35% (2017: 62.50%). There was no significant change in
the current ratio while the rise in the gearing ratio was mainly

attributable to raising of new borrowings.

Charge on Assets

As at 31st December, 2018, assets of the Group with an
aggregate carrying value of HK$1,759,080,000 (2017:
HK$7,306,461,000) were pledged for securing borrowings of the
Group of HK$1,428,355,000 (2017: HK$797,215,000). Details
of the assets pledged are set out in Note 39 to the consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the year under review on

page 188.
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Foreign Exchange Exposure

The majority of the Group’s assets and liabilities are
denominated in Renminbi, and the liabilities are well covered by
the assets. The depreciation in value of Renminbi may have an
adverse impact on the Group’s results and net asset value. In
addition, all of the other assets and liabilities of the Group are
denominated in either Hong Kong Dollar or United States
Dollar. Hence, the Group anticipates that the exchange risk

exposure is manageable.

Contingent Liabilities

The Group had no material contingent liabilities as at 31st
December, 2018 (2017: Nil).

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group’s financial situation, operating results and business
prospects may be directly or indirectly affected by a number of
risks and uncertainties including business risks, operational risks,
financial risks and changes of local laws and regulations in the
jurisdictions in which it operates. Information on the estimation
uncertainty, capital risk management and financial risk
management is set out respectively in Notes 5, 32 and 33(b) to
the consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year

under review on pages 119 to 122, and pages 167 to 179.

Property development and investment is one of the principal
business segments of the Group and price fluctuation is a major
risk that may affect the Group’s results and asset value. The
management holds a positive view of the potential demand for
high-end properties in the Mainland of China and will monitor
closely the marketing and pricing strategies of the Group’s

property projects to maximize the return on investment.

There may be other risks and uncertainties in addition to those
stated above which are not known to the Group or which may
not be material now but could turn out to be material in the

future.
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PROSPECTS

The tightening measures imposed by the central and local
governments on the real estate market in the Mainland and
Macau of China remained in place, although signs of relaxation
on a city-by-city basis have been reported recently. Uncertainties
in the global economy emanating from the commencement of
ending of quantitative easing and threatened and implemented
trade wars between the biggest economies and trading blocs
would impact unfavourably on the behaviour of potential
purchasers of property and the consuming public as a whole.
However, signs of easing of tension are emerging in the
China-USA trade tariff negotiations and fiscal incentives recently
announced by the central government of the Mainland should
help steady an otherwise probable decline in consumer
confidence. On the other hand, recent reforms of the individual
income tax regime in the Mainland may have a negative impact
on the deployment of expatriate staff by the multinational
corporations and this might in turn affect the demand for quality

apartments in the Mainland.

Noticeable efforts have been directed by the Mainland
government towards the development of properties earmarked
for the residential leasing market and it is therefore anticipated
that with the resultant allocation of resources by government and
corporate entities, this sector should see greater growth in the

Mainland in the near future.

The Group has built up its reputation as a developer of high-end
residential properties in the Mainland and remains optimistic
about the underlying demand for properties catering to a
high-income middle class and high net-worth individuals in the
Mainland. The Group will endeavour to maintain the
momentum in its sale and leasing plans for the property
portfolio in Shanghai and Macau. It is anticipated that Tomson
Riviera and One Penha Hill will be the Group’s principal sources
of profit in the year 2019. In addition, investment in
Jingiao-Zhangjiang project in Pudong, Shanghai represents an

important component of the Group’s strategy.
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In light of evolving volatility in the Hong Kong and global
financial markets, the management will continue to adopt a
conservative approach in managing the securities trading
portfolio of the Group, with an emphasis on securities with
steady recurrent yield. Whilst property development and
investment will still be the focus of the Group’s business and
investment strategies, the Group will continue to explore and
evaluate prudently other potential investment opportunities.
However, it will be the objective of the Group to maintain an
optimum balance in the allocation of its resources both

geographically and in different business segments.

HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31st December, 2018, the Group engaged around 500
employees in total in its various offices including Hong Kong
and Shanghai. Total emoluments paid to staff and directors of
the Group during the year under review amounted to
HK$78,573,000. Remuneration and benefit packages are
generally structured with reference to market terms and practice,
as well as individual responsibilities, performance and
qualifications. Discretionary bonus may be paid based on
individual contribution. In addition, the Company has
established a share option scheme pursuant to which the
directors and employees of the Group may be granted options to

subscribe for shares of the Company as a performance incentive.

Taking this opportunity, the Board would like to express its
gratitude to the management and all the staff members of the

Group for their devotion and hard work over the years.

On behalf of the Board
Hsu Feng
Chairman and Managing Director

Hong Kong, 25th March, 2019
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Corporate Governance Report
ERERHRE

The Board of Directors of the Company (the “Board”) is
committed to maintaining good corporate governance standards
and procedures which emphasize management of high quality,

transparency and accountability to all shareholders.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
PRACTICES

The Company has applied the principles set out in the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14
to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) and has
complied with the code provisions contained therein during the
year ended 31st December, 2018 and up to the date of this
Report, except that:

(a) Madam Hsu Feng takes up both the posts of Chairman of
the Board and Managing Director of the Company. While
this is a deviation from the CG Code, dual role leadership
provides the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively the
“Group”) with a strong and consistent leadership and
allows for more effective operation of the business. The
Board is of the view that adequate check and balance of
power is in place. Responsibilities for the Company’s daily
business management are shared amongst Madam Hsu and
other members of the executive committee of the Board.
Besides, all major decisions are made in consultation with
members of the Board or appropriate committees of the
Board in accordance with the provisions of the code on risk

management and internal control of the Company;

(b) none of the existing independent non-executive Directors
of the Company are appointed for a specific term, but they
are subject to retirement and re-election at least once every
three years at annual general meetings of the Company

pursuant to the Articles of Association of the Company
(the “Articles”);
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(©)

(d)

in accordance with the Articles, any Director of the
Company appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy
shall hold office until the next following annual general
meeting of the Company instead of being subject to
election by shareholders at the first general meeting of the
Company after his/her appointment as stipulated in the
CG Code. Such arrangement not only complies with
Appendix 3 to the Listing Rules but also streamlines the
mechanism of re-election of Directors so that both new
Directors appointed by the Board (either for filling a causal
vacancy or as an additional member) and existing Directors
retiring by rotation shall be subject to re-election at the
annual general meeting for the relevant year. Furthermore,
extraordinary general meetings will be reserved for
considering and approving notifiable/connected
transactions or other corporate actions under the Listing
Rules only, which should enhance efficiency in procedures

for corporate matters; and

the Company has not established a nomination committee
comprising a majority of independent non-executive
Directors as stipulated in the CG Code. This is because
when identifying individuals of the appropriate calibre and
qualification to be Board members and when assessing the
independence of independent non-executive Directors, it is
necessary to have a thorough understanding of the
structure, business strategy and daily operation of the
Company. The participation of executive Directors during
the process is therefore indispensable. Accordingly, the
Board as a whole remains responsible for reviewing its own
structure, size and composition annually, and also for
considering the appointment of Directors and nomination
for re-election as well as assessing the independence of

independent non-executive Directors.

THE BOARD

The Board commits itself to acting in the best interests of the

Group and the shareholders. It is accountable to the shareholders

for the long-term performance of the Group, while taking into

consideration the interests of other stakeholders.

(c)

(d)
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The Board is composed of seven members, including four
executive Directors, namely Madam Hsu Feng (Chairman and
Managing Director), Mr Albert Tong (Vice-Chairman),
Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles (Vice-Chairman) and Mr Yeung Kam
Hoi, and three independent non-executive Directors, namely
Mr Cheung Siu Ping, Oscar, Mr Lee Chan Fai and Mr Sean S ]
Wang. All the Directors have signed service contracts or letters
of appointment with the Company which set out the key terms

and conditions of their appointment.

Biographical details of the Directors and relevant relationships
among them together with their respective roles on the Board
and its committees are set out in the Profile of the Directors and

Officers on pages 37 to 41.

The Company recognizes that a diverse board is crucial to the
Board’s performance and development of the Company. The
Board has adopted a board diversity policy which sets out the
approach to achieve diversity on the Board. It believes that
diversity should be viewed from its widest perspective.
Accordingly, selection of candidates to the Board is based on a
range of measurable objectives, including but not limited to
gender, age, cultural and educational background, professional
experience and qualifications, skills, knowledge and length of
service, having due regard to the Company’s own business model
and specific needs from time to time. The ultimate decision will
be based on merit and contribution that the candidates will
bring to the Board with due regard to the benefits of diversity on
the Board. During the year under review, the Board has
conducted an annual review of its structure and composition at a
regular meeting. With the Board members coming from a variety
of business and professional background and one out of the
seven Board members being female, the Company considers that
the Board has an appropriate size and balanced structure and
composition with diverse mix of skills, experience, expertise and
diversity of perspectives appropriate to the requirements of the

Company’s business and development.

There are three independent non-executive Directors of the
Company representing more than one-third of the Board and
two of them have either appropriate professional accounting
qualifications or related financial management expertise as
required by the Listing Rules. The Company has received an
annual written confirmation for the year 2018 from each of the
independent non-executive Directors of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers all of

the independent non-executive Directors to be independent.
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The Directors have disclosed to the Company the offices held in
other public companies or orgainsations and the time involved
and the Company has received confirmations from each Director
that he/she has devoted sufficient time to perform his/her
responsibilities as a Director and has given sufficient attention to
the affairs of the Company.

The Board has reserved for its decision or consideration matters
covering formulation of corporate strategy, approval of annual
and interim results, changes of members of the Board and its
committees, major acquisitions, disposals and capital transactions,
and monitoring and controlling other significant operational and
financial matters of the Group. The independent non-executive
Directors have contributed valuable independent views and
proposals for the Board’s deliberation and decisions. The Board
has established an executive committee, an audit committee and
a remuneration committee (collectively the “Committees”) with
clear written terms of reference to oversee particular aspects of
the Company’s affairs and to assist in sharing the Board’s
responsibilities. The Committees report regularly to the Board

on their decisions and recommendations.

The day-to-day management, administration and operation of
the Group are delegated to the management and the management
also provides support to the Board to formulate overall strategic
direction, long term objectives and business plans of the Group.
Both the Board and the management have clearly defined
authorities and responsibilities under various risk management,
internal control and check-and-balance mechanisms. The
management is responsible for implementing the strategies and
plans adopted by the Board and the Committees and assumes
full accountability to the Board for the operation of the Group.

The Board meets regularly throughout the year and as and when
required. Sufficient notices are given to all Directors at least 14
days before the regular Board meetings. All Directors are
consulted whether to include any matters in the agenda. Agenda
and accompanying board papers are given to all Directors in a
timely manner before the appointed date of each regular Board
meeting. Drafts and final versions of minutes are circulated to
the Directors for comment and record respectively. During the
year 2018, there were four regular Board meetings. Besides, a
Vice-Chairman of the Board had an annual meeting in 2018 to
exchange opinions with the independent non-executive Directors

of the Company without the other executive Directors present.

Corporate Governance Report
€ SRR

O ) AN ] R LR AN R F
Bl AL A T 9% A 0 IR 62 K BT 9 % 1 B
AAFBCWEN K EFCHBAT EHEF
[l JE AT HE S I A SR BEA A R Z
HB5 Z ERD o

EERRE T A RS > DIk E S R
A Bl 2 A SR - AR M rh U SE B
#HEHRAHEZEENRAEZH - =
T - HEMEARL Y > DR EEEAR
A% 1 Y L Ath B K 7 RN S S S OH o L
JE AT HE N R A R I ROR B > f2
MTHENBLE R k& -EFHRC
W — MG ZEE - —HESKZAES
Uk—MHEMEZE G (MM ZET]) -
Z B AR DL T AT A 9 T A A
DU BRAS 2 w2 S0 2 85 o DA e o
B ERR 2K - TR g &M mE
o oy MHE e L e 3 R ok

EHgEEEEHALERZ HHEE -
TR B NI AE i E A 4 ) 2 RO
W57 1)~ R B e S w4 7 T 1]
R - B K E A
[F] e Jae e e B~ k) S A R ot A A o
WAEREFENHES LT - & g H

RIS —FE N E W KA TR
BITEER - AN FIEEF R E M G
7 H AT B D DU K ) B A 3E S T
AN o i A HE R 2 Bk a B AT AT
af IS AR o kAR KM B A
HRERXNESEEFEN TR
ERAT HWIRTE R X BT EH o %%
Bk Bk ns Bk AR K B AR E AR 9 23
BEREEURORE R IAE ARk - R
—F - EER S BRI R TR
TE Wk o MO > R R A R R B
ARFZBLFRATERAE F— F
WHERT T — W RA HAL AT EH AL
FEFRUCHE R -

Annual Report 2018 4F 474

24



25

Corporate Governance Report
e SOEE: I

All members of the Board have been provided with monthly
management updates to keep them up-to-date with material
developments of the Group’s operations, performance, financial
position and prospects. The Board has agreed on a procedure to
enable the Directors to seek independent professional advice
whenever deemed necessary, at the Company’s expense, to assist

them to perform their duties.

The Company has arranged appropriate liability insurance to
indemnify its Directors for their liabilities arising out of the
discharge of their duties. The insurance coverage is reviewed on

an annual basis.

Corporate Governance Functions

The Company strives to attain and maintain high standards of
corporate governance best suited to the needs and interests of the
Group. Good corporate governance is crucial to an orderly and
effective operational system, which will enhance operational
efficiencies, thereby bolstering sharcholders’ value. The Board is
responsible for the corporate governance functions. During the
year ended 31st December, 2018, the Board has discharged the

following corporate governance duties:

(a) develop and review the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance, including formulation of director
nomination policy and dividend policy, and revising duties

of chairman of the Board and shareholders’ communication

policy;

(b) review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements,
including reviewing the provisions of the code on risk

management and internal control of the Group;

(c) review and monitor the Company’s code of practice for
securities transactions by the Directors and relevant
employees (the “Code of Practice for Securities Transactions”)

and whistleblowing policy;
(d) review the Company’s compliance with the code provisions

of the CG Code and relevant disclosure in interim and

annual reports; and
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(e) arrange seminars and briefings to Directors, review and
monitor the training and continuous professional
development of the Directors, details of which are set out
in the paragraph headed “Directors’ Induction and

Continuous Professional Development” in this report.

Executive Committee

An executive committee (the “Executive Committee”) was
established by the Board with specific written terms of reference
in June 2005. The Executive Committee comprises all the
executive Directors of the Company, namely Madam Hsu Feng,
Mr Albert Tong, Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles and Mr Yeung Kam
Hoi, and Madam Hsu Feng is the chairman of the Executive
Committee. The Executive Committee may convene meetings as
it considers necessary for reviewing and approving, inter alia, any
matters concerning the day-to-day management of the business
of the Company and any matters to be delegated to it by the

Board from time to time.

Remuneration Committee

A remuneration committee (the “Remuneration Committee”)
was established by the Board in June 2005 with specific written
terms of reference. The terms of reference of the Remuneration
Committee are available on the Company’s website. The
principal duties of the Remuneration Committee are to make
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy and
structure for all Directors and senior management’s remuneration
and the remuneration packages of individual Directors and
senior management of the Company. Mr Cheung Siu Ping,
Oscar, Mr Lee Chan Fai and Mr Sean S ] Wang, being all
independent non-executive Directors of the Company, and
Mr Albert Tong, an executive Director of the Company, are
members of the Remuneration Committee while Mr Cheung Siu
Ping, Oscar acts as the chairman of the Remuneration

Committee.

During the year 2018, a meeting of the Remuneration
Committee was held for an annual review of the remuneration
policy and packages for all the Directors and senior management
of the Company. Details of the emoluments paid to the
Directors and senior management of the Company for the year
ended 31st December, 2018 are set out in Note 12 to the

consolidated financial statements on pages 134 to 136.
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Audit Committee

An audit committee (the “Audit Committee”) has been set up by
the Board with specific written terms of reference. The Audit
Committee is composed of all the independent non-executive
Directors of the Company, namely Mr Cheung Siu Ping, Oscar,
Mr Lee Chan Fai and Mr Sean S ] Wang. The Audit Committee
is chaired by Mr Cheung Siu Ping, Oscar who possesses
appropriate professional accounting qualifications as required
under the Listing Rules.

Under its terms of reference, the Audit Committee is required to
monitor integrity of the financial statements of the Company, to
review significant financial reporting judgements, to evaluate the
overall effectiveness of the risk management and internal control
systems of the Group, and to oversee the relationship with the
Company’s auditor (the “Auditor”). The terms of reference of

the Audit Committee are available on the Company’s website.

During the year 2018, the Audit Committee held four meetings
for reviewing the interim and annual financial statements as well
as the accounting and financial reporting matters of the Group,
evaluating the risk management and internal control systems of
the Group, the significant risks faced by the Group and also the
adequacy and effectiveness of internal audit function, reviewing
the internal audit reports of the Group for the approval by the
Board, reviewing the whistleblowing policy and considering the

engagement and scope of services of the Auditor.

The Audit Committee concluded that in 2018 the risk
management and internal control systems of the Group and the
internal audit function of the Company were implemented
effectively. The Audit Committee was satisfied with the related
resources of the internal audit function and the resources, staff
qualifications and experience, training programmes and related
budget of the Company’s accounting and financial reporting
functions as well as the implementation, application and
effectiveness of the whistleblowing policy.

In March 2019, the Audit Committee held a meeting to review
the annual consolidated financial statements of the Group for
2018 and consider the re-appointment of the Auditor. On the
recommendation of the Audit Committee, the Board approved
to submit the consolidated financial statements and to propose
the re-appointment of the Auditor for the approval by the
shareholders at the annual general meeting of the Company for
2019.
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RIS
Attendance Records at Meetings o Al B
The attendance of individual Directors at general meeting, Al EFHFREE __F—NE+ _H
regular meetings of the Board and meetings of the Remuneration —t—HIHFENEITZBRE RS - &
Committee and Audit Committee held during the year ended HEEMEHR  UKFHMNEE & MEFZ
31st December, 2018 is set out below: ZHGe@® 2 R

Number of meetings attended/held

CH BT & E
General Remuneration Audit
Meeting Board Committee Committee
Name of Directors EE3:%2 L PN #HER FMEEE HEGEEH
Executive Directors HirES
Madam Hsu Feng fr Wut 1/1 4/4 N/A A% F N/A A
(Chairman of the Board and EEVEY 7 3
Managing Director) HHYAEH)
Mr Albert Tong U RaTys 11 414 1 NAKRER
(Vice-Chairman of the Board) ELVAE 7,
Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles R P 1/1 4/4 N/A A N/A IR
(Vice-Chairman of the Board) (& F ) F L)
Mr Yeung Kam Hoi Wi e 1/1 44 NARER  NASREHM
Independent Non-Executive Directors Bk ES
Mr Cheung Siu Ping, Oscar RIS 1/1 4/4 1/1 4/4
(Chairman of the Audit Committee and (FERZERBLR
the Remuneration Committee) FWZE L e L)
Mr Lee Chan Fai R 11 414 11 314
Mr Sean S ] Wang EAalEE 0/1 4/4 1/1 2/4
Appointment and Re-election of Directors T AL R
In accordance with the Articles, new Directors could be elected W CERAMA) ZHE > rEFETHA

by the Company or appointed by the Board. Any Director so oA e E R AT o AT E
appointed by the Board shall hold office only until the next Tz EE > HAT M EE AL AT
following annual general meeting of the Company and the — JiE e RO AF R B Ay 1k o AR AT EE AT
retiring Director shall be eligible for re-election. AT -
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The Company did not establish a nomination committee
pursuant to the code provisions of the CG Code and the Board
is responsible for reviewing its own structure, size and
composition (including the skills, knowledge and experience of
its members), and identifying, selecting and considering any
appointment or re-election of its own members. The Board is
also responsible for assessing the independence of the
independent non-executive Directors. The Board has adopted a
director nomination policy to set out the approach to nominate
candidates to the Board to ensure that the Board has a balance of
skills, experience, expertise and diversity of perspectives

appropriate to the requirements of the Company’s business.

No new Board member was appointed during the year under
review. Madam Hsu Feng, Mr Albert Tong and Mr Lee Chan
Fai retired by rotation and were re-elected at the Company’s

annual general meeting for 2018.

An annual review of the Board structure and composition was
made by the Board during the year under review and the Board
resolved to keep the structure and composition of the Board

unchanged.

In addition, having considered the selection criteria of the
Company including the review of the overall contribution and
service to the Company and a range of diversity perspectives
concerning, inter alia, gender, age, cultural and educational
background, professional experience and qualifications, skills,
knowledge and business experience of the retiring directors, the
Board recommends that Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles and
Mr Cheung Siu Ping, Oscar, who will retire by rotation at the
Company’s annual general meeting for 2019, be re-elected as

Directors at that general meeting.

DIRECTORS’ INDUCTION AND
CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

On appointment to the Board, each of the new Directors of the
Company is given a comprehensive orientation package,
including the latest information of the Group, induction into
their responsibilities and duties, terms of reference of the

relevant Committees and other related regulatory requirements.
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Throughout the course of their directorship, to keep them
abreast of the latest developments in the legislative or regulatory
environment, the Directors are regularly provided with updates
and briefings on the Listing Rules and other applicable legal and
regulatory requirements. Circulars or guidance notes issued by
various regulatory authorities or organizations, where appropriate,

are given to the Directors for reading and reference.

In order to assist the Directors to participate in continuous
professional development, the Company encourages the
Directors to enroll in a wide range of professional development
seminars and conferences. During the year ended 31st
December, 2018, the Company organized four in-house seminars
on areas of taxation, corporate governance, as well as economic
and business developments in relation to the principal business
of the Group so as to help the Directors refresh their knowledge
and skills.

A summary of the continuous professional development in which
the Directors participated during the year ended 31st December,
2018 is as follows:
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Continuing Professional Development

FHEEERR

Type Subject
Name of Directors wHREA i 3 FE
Executive Directors HMiTEF
Madam Hsu Feng L+ 1,2 A, B
Mr Albert Tong &Rt 1,2 A, B
Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles GTEiLAE 1,2 A, B
Mr Yeung Kam Hoi M 85 1 e A 1,2 A, B
Independent Non-Executive Directors B ERITESR
Mr Cheung Siu Ping, Oscar R IEF etk 1,2 A, B
Mr Lee Chan Fai 2B SR 1,2 A, B
Mr Sean S ] Wang eyl Reta 1,2 A, B
Types: FEHE -
1:  Attending in-house briefings/training, seminars, conference 1: WA EHE S sERE - B

or forums BRI R

2:  Reading relevant information and updates, and watching 2 BIEABRER KEHRER > LBE

training webcasts

A bR R
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Subjects:
A:  Subjects relevant to the businesses of the Group

B:  Legal, regulatory, finance and general management updates

SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted its own Code of Practice for
Securities Transactions on terms no less exacting than the
required standard of the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 to the
Listing Rules (the “Model Code”).

The Company has made specific enquiry of all Directors of the
Company and each of the Directors has confirmed compliance
with the required standard set out in the Model Code and the

Code of Practice for Securities Transactions throughout the year.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT
Risk Management and Internal Control

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for ensuring that
proper risk management and internal control systems are
maintained within the Group and for overseeing the effectiveness
of these systems in order to safeguard the sharcholders’
investments and the Group’s assets against misappropriation and
to manage the operational risks. The Company has adopted a
code applicable to the Group in respect of material internal
controls, including financial, operational and compliance
controls, and risk management functions since 2005. The code
on risk management and internal control is reviewed by the
Company regularly and modified pursuant to operational

requirements of the Group.

The risk management and internal control systems are intended
to manage, not eliminate, significant risks of failure to achieve
the Group’s business objectives, so they can only provide
reasonable but not absolute assurance against material

misstatement or loss.
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The operating units of the Group, as the risk owners, go through
the following processes on an ongoing basis and report results to

the management:

(a) identify their own significant risks in the Group’s operation
environment and evaluate the impacts of those risks on the

Group’s business and financial position;
(b) develop necessary measures to manage those risks; and
(c) monitor and review the effectiveness of such measures.

The Group regulates the handling and dissemination of inside
information as set out in the code on risk management and
internal control to ensure that inside information remains
confidential until the disclosure of such information and the
dissemination of such information is efficiently and consistently

made.

An external service provider has been engaged for providing
internal audit services to the Group during the year under

review.

The Board has authorized the Audit Committee to review the
effectiveness of the systems of risk management and internal
control of the Group regularly and the Audit Committee held a
meeting in 2018 for that purpose. The Board, based on the
review of the Audit Committee, considers that the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems have been effectively
implemented and adequate and the Group has complied with the
provisions on risk management and internal control as set out in
the CG Code and the Group’s code on risk management and

internal control during the year ended 31st December, 2018.

The Board also considers that, after a review made by the Audit
Committee, the Group’s internal audit function was effectively
implemented and adequately resourced with experienced external
service provider in 2018 and the resources, staff qualifications
and experience, training programmes and related budget of the
Company’s accounting and financial reporting functions are

adequate.

The Board also approved the internal audit report of the Group
for 2018.
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Directors’ and Auditor’s Responsibilities for the
Financial Statements

The Directors of the Company acknowledge that they are
responsible for the preparation and the true and fair presentation
of the consolidated financial statements of the Group for each
financial period. In preparing the consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31st December,
2018, the Directors have selected suitable accounting policies
and applied them consistently; have made judgements and
estimates that were prudent and reasonable; and have prepared

the consolidated financial statements on a going concern basis.

The responsibilities of the Auditor to the shareholders are to
form an independent opinion, based on the audit, on those
consolidated financial statements and their opinion on the
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31st December, 2018 is set out in the Independent
Auditor’s Report on pages 60 to 66.

Auditor’s Remuneration

The fee in respect of audit service provided to the Group by the
Auditor for the year ended 31st December, 2018 amounted to
HK$2,898,000 and the Auditor did not provide any non-audit

services during the year.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary supports the Board by ensuring board
procedures are followed and board proceedings are efficiently
and effectively conducted. The incumbent is also responsible for
apprising the Board of all applicable law, rules, regulations and
corporate governance developments. During the year under
review, the Company Secretary has taken relevant professional

training as required by Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.
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COMMUNICATION WITH
SHAREHOLDERS

The Board maintains a continuing dialogue with the Company’s
shareholders through various channels including the Company’s
annual general meetings. In 2018, all but one of the Directors of
the Company (including the Chairman of the Board and
chairman of the Audit Committee and Remuneration
Committee) attended the annual general meeting of the
Company and answered questions from the shareholders.
Representatives of the Auditor also attended that meeting to
answer questions about the consolidated financial statements of
the Group for the year ended 31st December, 2017.

In order to further enhance communication with the
shareholders of the Company and enable the Company’s
shareholders to have timely and updated information of the
Group, the Company has set up its own website at
http://www.tomson.com.hk where corporate information,
interim and annual reports, environmental, social and
governance reports, announcements, circulars, business

development and other information of the Company are posted.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedures for Shareholders to Convene an
Extraordinary General Meeting (“EGM”) and
Put Forward Proposals at General Meetings

(a) Any three shareholders of the Company holding in
aggregate not less than 5% of the total paid up capital of
the Company and having the right to vote at general
meetings of the Company have the right to ask the Board
to convene an EGM by depositing a duly signed requisition
stating the general nature of business(es) to be transacted at
the EGM or the objects of the EGM at the office of the
Company in the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region
(“Hong Kong”) of the People’s Republic of China (“China”)
at Rooms 1501-2 and 1507-12, 15th Floor, Wing On
Centre, 111 Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong for the
attention of the Company Secretary of the Company.
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If within 21 days of deposit of a valid requisition (which
has been duly verified with the share registrar of the
Company) the Board does not proceed to duly convene an

EGM, the requisitionists may themselves convene an EGM.

(b) The procedures for nomination of Directors by the
shareholders of the Company are available on the

Company’s website at http://www.tomson.com.hk.

Procedures for Putting Forward Enquiries
to the Board

Shareholders can direct their enquiries about their shareholdings
to the share registrar of the Company in Hong Kong, Tricor
Secretaries Limited, at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s
Road East, Hong Kong.

To the extent that such information of the Group can be made
available to the public, shareholders may at any time put forward
enquiries to the Board through the Company Secretary in
writing by mail to the office of the Company in Hong Kong
at Rooms 1501-2 and 1507-12, 15th Floor, Wing On Centre,
111 Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong or by e-mail to

ir@tomson.com.hk.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a dividend policy, pursuant to which
the Company aims at providing stable and sustainable returns to
the shareholders of the Company. The dividend payout ratio
shall be determined or recommended, as appropriate, by the
Board at its absolute discretion after taking into account, inter
alia, the Group’s operation performance and business
development plan, consolidated financial results, liquidity
position and indebtedness, capital and investment requirements
and any other factors that the Board may deem relevant, and
subject to the statutory and regulatory restrictions under Cayman
Islands laws and the Company’s Memorandum and Articles of
Association. Besides, no dividend would be payable except out of

the retained earnings and/or share premium of the Company.
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SIGNIFICANT CHANGES IN
CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There was no change in the constitutional documents of the
Company during the year ended 31st December, 2018 and up to
the date of this Report.

CORPORATE CITIZENSHIP

The Group pledges itself to contribute to the well-being of the
society. During the year under review, the Group has made
charitable donations to various international and local charitable
organizations established in Hong Kong and the Mainland of
China, including World Vision Hong Kong and Orbis Hong
Kong, to support their activities in the provision of relief against
poverty, education, children sponsorship, health promotion and

communal welfare.

The Company has participated in the “Heart to Heart Project”
organized by The Hong Kong Federation of Youth Groups since
its launch in 2005, to sponsor service projects proposed by
volunteer groups of those schools enrolled under the project so
as to encourage youth volunteers to serve the community and to

promote the concept of mutual help among neighborhood.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Madam Hsu Feng, aged 68, has been a director of the Company
and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) since January 1990
and is an executive Director of the Company. She was appointed
Managing Director of the Company in December 2001 and the
chairman of the executive committee of the Board of Directors
of the Company (the “Board”) in June 2005. She was also
elected as Chairman of the Board in December 2006.

Madam Hsu has over 10 years’ experience in film production,
and in property development and investment as well as retail
industry in Taiwan. She has been engaged in the property
development, and hospitality and leisure business in the
Mainland of the People’s Republic of China (“China”) over the
past two decades. She is also the Honorary Consul of the
Principality of Monaco in Shanghai, China.

Madam Hsu is the mother of Mr Albert Tong and Mr Tong Chi
Kar Charles, who are Vice-Chairmen of the Board and executive
Directors of the Company. All of them are directors of E-Shares
Investments Limited (“E-Shares”). In addition, both Madam
Hsu and Mr Albert Tong are directors of King China Holdings
Limited (“King China”) and executive directors of a listed
company in the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region
(“Hong Kong”) of China, Rivera (Holdings) Limited (“RHL”).
Madam Hsu is also the owner of E-Shares and King China and a
substantial shareholder of RHL. Mr Albert Tong, Mr Tong Chi
Kar Charles, E-Shares, King China and RHL are shareholders of
the Company having a notifiable interest under Part XV of the
Hong Kong Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO?).

As at 25th March, 2019, pursuant to the SFO, Madam Hsu was
interested and taken to be interested in a total of 660,701,416

issued shares of the Company.

Mr Albert Tong, aged 36, has been appointed an executive
Director of the Company since December 2001 and a member
of the executive committee and remuneration committee of the
Board since June 2005. He was also elected as Vice-Chairman of
the Board in December 2006. He has joined the Group and
taken up directorships of the subsidiaries of the Company since
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March 2001. He has actively participated in the Group’s
business development, corporate management, property trading
and securities investment for many years.

Mr Albert Tong is a son of Madam Hsu Feng, Chairman of the
Board and Managing Director of the Company, and the younger
brother of Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles, Vice-Chairman of the
Board and executive Director of the Company. They all are
directors of E-Shares. Both Mr Albert Tong and Madam Hsu are
directors of King China and executive directors of RHL. He is
also a sharcholder of RHL. Madam Hsu Feng, Mr Tong Chi Kar
Charles, E-Shares, King China and RHL are shareholders of the
Company having a notifiable interest under Part XV of the SFO.

As at 25th March, 2019, pursuant to the SFO, Mr Albert Tong
was interested in 278,981,024 issued shares of the Company.

Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles, aged 38, has been appointed an
executive Director of the Company and a member of the
executive committee of the Board since October 2008. He was
also elected as Vice-Chairman of the Board in December 2010.
He has joined the Group since December 2000 and has
participated in property trading and business management of the
Shanghai office of the Group. Mr Tong also acts as a director of
a number of subsidiaries of the Company. He now principally
engages in property development and trading business in the

Mainland of China.

In addition, Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles was a member of the
13th Tianjin Municipal Committee of the Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference during the period from
January 2013 to January 2018.

Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles is a son of Madam Hsu Feng,
Chairman of the Board and Managing Director of the Company,
and the elder brother of Mr Albert Tong, Vice-Chairman of the
Board and executive Director of the Company. They all are
directors of E-Shares. He is also a shareholder of RHL. Madam
Hsu Feng, Mr Albert Tong, E-Shares and RHL are shareholders
of the Company having a notifiable interest under Part XV of
the SFO.

As at 25th March, 2019, pursuant to the SFO, Mr Tong Chi
Kar Charles was interested in 284,807,445 issued shares of the
Company.
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Mr Yeung Kam Hoi, aged 69, has been appointed an executive
Director of the Company and a member of the executive
committee of the Board since August 2010. He is the Chief
Deputy General Manager of the Group and has been appointed
a director of a number of subsidiaries of the Company since
August 2010.

Mr Yeung is an associate of The Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and Administrators and The Hong Kong Institute of
Chartered Secretaries, and a member of the Hong Kong
Securities and Investment Institute. He also holds a Master of
Accountancy degree of The Chinese University of Hong Kong.
Mr Yeung served as the company secretary of various listed
companies in Hong Kong during the period from 1988 to 2010,
and acted as group company secretary of a listed conglomerate
consisting of five listed companies during the period from 1998
to 2010. He has over 30 years’ experience in an extensive range
of corporate exercises and regulatory compliance matters of

public listed companies in Hong Kong.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Mr Cheung Siu Ping, Oscar, aged 54, has been appointed an
independent non-executive Director of the Company and the
chairman of the audit committee of the Board since September
2004. He was also appointed a member of the remuneration
committee of the Board in June 2005 and then was appointed as

the chairman of this committee in April 2011.

Mr Cheung is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants and a member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. He is practising as a certified
public accountant in Hong Kong and is the sole proprietor of

Oscar S. P. Cheung & Co..

The annual director’s fee of Mr Cheung has been increased from
HK$163,200 to HK$170,400 with effect from 1st January,
2019, which was approved by the Board, under the authorization
of the shareholders at the 2018 annual general meeting of the
Company and on recommendation of the remuneration
committee of the Board with reference to his responsibilities and

prevailing market conditions.
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Mr Lee Chan Fai, aged 56, has been appointed an independent
non-executive Director of the Company and a member of each
of the audit committee and remuneration committee of the
Board since December 2005.

He graduated from The University of Hong Kong, is a member
of The Hong Kong Institute of Architects and is qualified as a
Registered Architect in Hong Kong and a First Class Registered
Architect in the Mainland of China. Mr Lee has acted as a
director of Marco Asia Limited and J&P Architects Limited (%%
W R ZE A FR /S ) since the 1990s, and a director of J&DP
Architects Limited (782 I& w1367 A FR A A]) since January
2015. He was a director of JSP Architects Limited during the
period from 2008 to July 2012. He has extensive experience in

architectural design.

The annual director’s fee of Mr Lee has been increased from
HK$163,200 to HK$170,400 with effect from Ist January,
2019, which was approved by the Board, under the authorization
of the sharecholders at the 2018 annual general meeting of the
Company and on recommendation of the remuneration
committee of the Board with reference to his responsibilities and

prevailing market conditions.

Mr Sean S J Wang, aged 55, has been appointed an independent
non-executive Director of the Company and a member of each
of the audit committee and remuneration committee of the
Board since April 2011.

He graduated from Peking University and studied economics.
He then went to the United States of America and obtained a
bachelor of science degree from Hamline University in 1986 and
a MBA degree from University of Minnesota in 1989. Mr Wang
has in-depth and extensive experience in corporate management
and funds operation. He also has many years of experience in
financial operation and project management at various
multinational firms listed on the New York Stock Exchange,
NASDAQ and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. He
was an executive director and the chief financial officer of China
Huarong Energy Company Limited, a company listed in Hong
Kong, during the period from October 2010 to October 2016,
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and was an executive director and the chief executive officer of
ENN Energy Holdings Limited, a company listed in Hong
Kong, during the period from March 2017 to January 2018. He
now acts as senior vice president of ENN Group. Previously, he
also held the positions of president and chief operating officer of
Hurray! Holding Limited, a company listed on NASDAQ, a
non-executive director of China Advanced Construction
Materials Group, Inc., a company listed on NASDAQ), and an
executive director and the chief financial officer of SOHO China
Limited, a company listed in Hong Kong. He was awarded
“CFO of the Year in China” in 2009.

The annual director’s fee of Mr Wang has been increased from
HK$163,200 to HK$170,400 with effect from 1st January,
2019, which was approved by the Board, under the authorization
of the shareholders at the 2018 annual general meeting of the
Company and on recommendation of the remuneration
committee of the Board with reference to his responsibilities and

prevailing market conditions.

OFFICERS

Ms Lee Yuen Han, aged 52, joined the Group in 1991 and was
appointed the Company Secretary of the Company in March
1998 and has acted as the Deputy General Manager of the
Company since August 2005.

She attained a bachelor’s degree in economics and a master’s
degree in business studies, and is an associate of The Institute of
Chartered Secretaries and Administrators and The Hong Kong

Institute of Chartered Secretaries.

Mr Kwok Sau King, aged 60, joined the Group in 1990. He
was appointed the Financial Controller of the Company in

September 1999.
He is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified

Accountants and a member of the Hong Kong Institute of

Certified Public Accountants.
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The Board of Directors of the Company (the “Board”) is pleased
to present its Report together with the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively the “Group”) for the year ended 31st December,
2018 and the independent Auditor’s report thereon.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Group in the course of the year
were property development and investment, hospitality and
leisure business, securities trading, PVC operations as well as
operation of and investment in media and entertainment

business.

During the year under review, the Company acted as an
investment holding company and the principal activities and
other particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company are
listed under Note 43 to the consolidated financial statements on
pages 191 to 199.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the performance and position of the Group’s
business for the year ended 31st December, 2018, an indication
of the future development of the Group’s business as well as an
analysis of the Group’s principal risk and uncertainties are set
out in the Management Discussion and Analysis on pages 4 to

20. This discussion forms part of this Report.

A discussion on the Group’s environmental policies and
performance as well as its compliance with laws and regulations,
and an account of the Group’s relationships with its employees,

customers and suppliers are set out below in this Report.

Details of the Group’s results for the year ended 31st December,
2018 and the Group’s financial position as at the end thereof are
set out on pages 67 to 201. An analysis by operating segments
and geographical location is set out in Note 7 to the

consolidated financial statements on pages 126 to 129.

As at the date of this Report, the Board is not aware of any
important events affecting the Group that have occurred since

the end of the year under review.
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DIVIDEND

The Board has declared an interim dividend of 18 HK cents per
share for the year ended 31st December, 2018 (2017: 43 HK
cents per share) to shareholders whose names appear on the
register of members of the Company on Thursday, 30th May,
2019. The dividend is payable in cash and dividend warrants are
expected to be despatched on Tuesday, 11th June, 2019.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The Board has resolved to convene the annual general meeting
of the Company for Thursday, 30th May, 2019 (the “2019
AGM”).

For the purpose of determining the shareholders who are entitled
to attend and vote at the 2019 AGM and qualify for the interim
dividend for 2018, the register of members of the Company will
be closed from Monday, 27th May, 2019 to Thursday, 30th
May, 2019, both days inclusive, during which period no transfer
of shares of HK$0.50 each in the capital of the Company (the
“Share(s)”) will be effected. In order to be eligible to attend and
vote at the 2019 AGM and qualify for the interim dividend, all
transfer documents accompanied by the relevant share certificates
must be lodged with Tricor Secretaries Limited, the Company’s
share registrar in the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region
(“Hong Kong”) of the People’s Republic of China (“China”),
not later than 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 24th May, 2019 for

registration.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year under review, the Group’s five largest customers
contributed approximately 52.69% of the Group’s gross proceeds
from operations with the largest customer accounting for
approximately 23.40% of the Group’s gross proceeds from
operations while approximately 85.66% of the Group’s purchases
were attributable to the Group’s five largest suppliers with the
largest supplier accounting for approximately 60.23% of the

Group’s purchases.
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None of the Directors of the Company, their close associates or
any sharcholders (which to the knowledge of the Directors own
more than 5% interest in the number of issued Shares) have any

interest in the Group’s five largest customers or suppliers.

DONATIONS

During the year ended 31st December, 2018, the Group donated
approximately HK$771,000 for charitable and other causes.

FIXED ASSETS

During the year ended 31st December, 2018, the Group added
fixed assets amounting to HK$29,885,000 (2017:
HK$16,734,000) while it disposed of and wrote off fixed assets
with an aggregate net book value of HK$158,000 (2017:
HK$740,000). There was no reduction in any fixed assets
through disposal of any subsidiaries of the Company during the
year (2017: HK$638,000).

Movements in fixed assets of the Group during the year are
shown in Notes 16 and 17 to the consolidated financial

statements on pages 140 to 145.

A schedule of the principal properties held by the Group, either
under development or for sale or investment purposes, is set out
on pages 202 to 207.

BORROWINGS AND DEBENTURES

Details of borrowings of the Group as at 31st December, 2018
are set out in Note 30 to the consolidated financial statements

on pages 164 to 165.

No debentures of any class were issued by the Company or any

of its subsidiaries, or were in issue, at any time during the year.

No interest expenses attributable to properties under
development were capitalized by the Group during the year
(2017: Nil).
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SHARE CAPITAL

During the year under review, the Company issued and allotted
196,252,578 new Shares at a price of HK$3.1844 per Share to
the shareholders who elected to receive Shares credited as fully
paid in lieu of cash for the interim dividend of the Company for
the year ended 31st December, 2017. All these newly issued
Shares rank pari passu in all respects with the then existing
issued Shares.

As at 31st December, 2018, 2,081,837,125 Shares were in issue
and fully paid. Details of the share capital of the Company are
set out in Note 28 to the consolidated financial statements on
page 161.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION
OF LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 31st December, 2018, there was no
purchase, sale or redemption made by the Company, or any of
its subsidiaries, of the Company’s listed securities.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Other than a share option scheme adopted by the Company in
2012 as disclosed in this Report, no equity-linked agreements
were entered into by the Company during the year under review
or subsisted at the end of the year.

RESERVES

The retained earnings and share premium of the Company as at
31st December, 2018 amounted to HK$1,194,075,000 (2017:
HK$119,772,000) and HK$1,482,126,000 (2017:
HK$1,766,107,000) respectively. These reserves are available for
distribution.

The Board recommends that the retained earnings of the Group
as at 31st December, 2018 amounting to HK$8,680,405,000 be
carried forward. Other movements in reserves of the Group and
the Company during the year are shown in the Consolidated
Statement of Changes in Equity and Note 41 to the consolidated
financial statements on pages 72 to 73 and page 190 respectively.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company and

the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and financial position of the Group for

the preceding five financial years is set out on pages 209 to 211.

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company as at the date of this Report and
those who were in office during the year under review and up to

the date of this Report are:

Executive Directors

Madam Hsu Feng (Chairman and Managing Director)
Mr Albert Tong (Vice-Chairman)

Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles (Vice-Chairman)

Mr Yeung Kam Hoi

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr Cheung Siu Ping, Oscar

Mr Lee Chan Fai

Mr Sean S ] Wang

A profile of the Directors of the Company is shown on pages 37
to 41.

Information relating to emoluments paid to the Company’s
Directors during the year is set out in Note 12 to the

consolidated financial statements on pages 134 to 136.
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All Directors of the Company are subject to retirement by
rotation at annual general meetings of the Company in
accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company.
Article 116 of the Articles of Association of the Company
provides that at each annual general meeting, one-third of the
Directors of the Company for the time being or, if their number
is not three or a multiple of three, then the nearest number to
but not more than one-third shall retire from office by rotation
provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement by
rotation at least once every three years. The Directors to retire
each year shall be those who have been longest in office since
their last election and are eligible for re-election. In this
connection, Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles and Mr Cheung Siu Ping,
Oscar will retire by rotation at the 2019 AGM. Being eligible,

they offer themselves for re-election.

The re-election of the retiring Directors of the Company is
subject to separate resolutions to be approved by the
shareholders at the 2019 AGM and details of those Directors
will be disclosed in a circular of the Company to be despatched
to the sharcholders together with the notice of the annual general

meeting.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACT

The Directors of the Company who are proposed for re-election
at the 2019 AGM do not have any unexpired service contract
with the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not
determinable by the employing company within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory

compensation.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Company has taken out and maintained directors’ and
officers’ liability insurance throughout the year under review,
which provides appropriate cover for the directors and officers of

the Group.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SECURITIES

As at 31st December, 2018, the interests and short positions of
the Directors of the Company in shares, debentures and
underlying shares of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Hong Kong
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”)), which were
required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in
the register referred to therein (including interests and short
positions which they were taken to have under Section 344 of
the SFO) or which were required to be notified to the Company
and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) pursuant to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”), were as

follows:

(I) The Company:
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Shares of HK$0.50 each A5 1B T {E.0.509 o6 =2 Iy
Number of Shares
% 4 % H

Personal Family Corporate Other

Interests Interests Interests Interests
Name of Directors EHEH N\ HE 55 %8 B 12 Al At 4 £
Madam Hsu Feng (4) B Wt @A) 226,678,292 Nil 4% 434,023,124 Nil 4%

Nil % (B)

Mt Albert Tong & T IR JetE 278,981,024 (C) Nil 4 Nil % (B) Nil 4
Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles U TRk 284,807,445 (D) Nil Nil % (B) Nil 4
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(IT) The Company’s associated corporations:

(1) China Boom Enterprises Limited
(“China Boom”)

Shares of US$1 each

(ID) A2 W) 22 b Bk o A -

(1) BEMFEFRAE(TBEE])

B i AR 15R 50 2 Jit By

Number of shares of China Boom

REEZREHEH
Personal Family Corporate Other
Interests Interests Interests Interests
Name of Director EFHEY i\ HE 52 % B M 42 2 vl R £ At 4 £
Madam Hsu Feng Mt 716,800 (E) Nil 4% Nil % Nil 5%

(2) Tomson Entertainment Co. Limited
(“Tomson Entertainment”)

Shares of NTD10 each

(2) GREBRERN AR T
(R-1=%° 3 2

5 Jig i BB & W 1090 2 ik iy

Number of shares of Tomson Entertainment

R E B 6 #H
Personal Family Corporate Other
Interests Interests Interests Interests
Name of Director HEHEH i\ HE 55 F M 2 vl 42 At 1 23
Madam Hsu Feng & WL+ 1,350,000 (F) Nil 4% Nil 4% Nil 4%
Notes: i

(A) Madam Hsu Feng was interested in an aggregate of
660,701,416 issued Shares, representing 31.73% interests
in the number of issued Shares, pursuant to the SFO in the

following ways:

(i) She held in her capacity as a beneficial owner an (i)

interest in 226,678,292 issued Shares; and
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(B)

(©

(D)

(i) She held the entire interests of the following
shareholders of the Company and was therefore
deemed to have interest in 434,023,124 issued Shares

which were beneficially held by these companies:

Name of companies

Report of the Directors

R TR

(i) A TIARNFZHRIRZ A2
TORE SR o DRI B AR A R R
N FHE w0 R H 2 434,023,124
B BT I 2 RE 25

Number of Shares held

e Fidef B < B H
King China Holdings Limited  #f % £ [#] 4 R /A ] 252,919,265
E-Shares Investments Limited 181,103,859

434,023,124

As at 31st December, 2018, the following companies, being
wholly-owned subsidiaries of Rivera (Holdings) Limited
(“RHL”, a listed company in Hong Kong), beneficially held
an aggregate of 247,300,000 issued Shares:

Name of companies

B) R-F—NE+_H=Z=+—H->TF
GIAF (B A —RREBLEHZ A
A — I A B A R A A (TN ) 2
2EMB AR B A AR
247,300,000 1% & #4171 -

Number of Shares held

2wl 4 1 i i A1 iy 2 B H
Forty Enterprises Company Limited &M A R H] 16,909,030
Shine Trip Limited  Fit B A BR A ] 230,390,970

247,300,000

Madam Hsu Feng was a substantial shareholder of RHL.
Mr Albert Tong and Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles were
shareholders of RHL. In addition, Madam Hsu Feng and
Mr Albert Tong were executive directors of RHL.

Mr Albert Tong held in his capacity as a beneficial owner
an interest in 278,981,024 issued Shares (being 13.40% of

the total number of issued Shares).

Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles held in his capacity as a
beneficial owner an interest in 284,807,445 issued Shares
(being 13.68% of the total number of issued Shares).
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(E) Madam Hsu Feng held in her capacity as a beneficial owner
an interest in 716,800 shares (being 56%) in the capital of
China Boom.

(F) Madam Hsu Feng held in her capacity as a beneficial owner
an interest in 1,350,000 shares (being 54%) in the capital

of Tomson Entertainment.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors of the Company
and their associates had any interests or short positions in the
shares, debentures and underlying shares of the Company or any
of its associated corporations as at 31st December, 2018, which
were required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be
entered in the register referred to therein (including interests or
short positions which they were taken to have under Section 344
of the SFO) or which were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Listing Rules.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “2012
Scheme”) on 1st June, 2012. Under the 2012 Scheme, no
options were granted, exercised, cancelled or lapsed during the
year ended 31st December, 2018, nor was there any option

outstanding at the beginning or at the end of the year.

Major terms of the 2012 Scheme

The purpose of the 2012 Scheme is to provide incentives or
rewards to selected persons for their contribution to any member
of the Group or any entity in which any member of the Group
holds any equity interest (the “Invested Entity”).

The participants include, inter alia:
(i) any employee or proposed employee (whether full time or
part time) of any member of the Group or any Invested

Entity, including any executive director of any of these

companies; or
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(i) any non-executive director (including independent
non-executive director) of any member of the Group or any

Invested Entity; or

(iii) any adviser or consultant or customer of, or any supplier of
goods or services to any member of the Group or any

Invested Entity; or

(iv) any sharcholder of any member of the Group or any
Invested Entity or any holder of any securities issued by

any member of the Group or any Invested Entity.

As at the date of this Report, save as otherwise approved by
shareholders of the Company, the maximum number of Shares
available for issue under options which may be granted is
137,252,380, representing approximately 6.59% of the number

of issued Shares.

The total number of Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise
of the options granted and to be granted to each participant
(including exercised and outstanding options) in any 12-month
period up to the date of grant of options shall not exceed 1% of
the Shares in issue at the date of grant (the “Individual Limit”).
If any further grant of options to a participant would result in
the total number of Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise
of all options granted and to be granted to such person
(including exercised, cancelled and outstanding options) in the
12-month period up to and including the date of such further
grant to be in excess of the Individual Limit, such further grant
must be subject to sharecholders’ approval in general meeting of
the Company with such participant and his or her associates

abstaining from voting.

An option may be exercised at any time during a period as the
Board may determine which shall not be more than 10 years

commencing from the date of grant of the option.

Save as determined by the Board and stated in the offer of the
relevant options, there is no minimum period for which an
option must be held before it can be exercised under the 2012

Scheme.
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The acceptance of an offer of granting an option must be made
within 28 days from the date on which such offer is made with a
non-refundable payment of HK$1 from the grantee to the

Company by way of a consideration for the grant thereof.

The subscription price per Share in respect of any option that
may be granted shall be such price as the Board in its absolute
discretion shall determine, save that such price will not be less

than the highest of:

(i) the closing price of the Shares as stated in the daily
quotations sheet of the Stock Exchange on the date of offer

of the option, which must be a business day;

(if) the average of the closing prices of the Shares as stated in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the 5
business days immediately preceding the date of offer of the

option; and
(iii) the nominal value of the Shares on the date of offer.

The 2012 Scheme shall be valid and effective until 31st May,
2022 subject to earlier termination by the Company in general
meeting or by the Board. After the expiry of such valid period,
no further options will be offered or granted but in all other
respects the provisions of the 2012 Scheme shall remain in full

force and effect.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN
ARRANGEMENTS TO ACQUIRE
SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Apart from the 2012 Scheme, at no time during the year nor at
the end of the year ended 31st December, 2018 was the
Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements
to enable the Directors of the Company to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the

Company or any other body corporate.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN
COMPETING BUSINESS

Madam Hsu Feng, Chairman of the Board and Managing
Director of the Company, is a substantial shareholder of RHL
while Mr Albert Tong and Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles, being
Vice-Chairmen of the Board and executive Directors of the
Company, are shareholders of RHL. In addition, both Madam
Hsu and Mr Albert Tong are executive directors of RHL.

RHL is engaged in property development and investment in
Shanghai of China, particularly in Zhangjiang Hi-Tech Park,
Pudong New Area, through its subsidiaries and associated
company. Property development and investment, with particular
focus on Pudong New Area in Shanghai, is one of the principal
businesses of the Group. The business of RHL in the property
sector in Shanghai (the “Excluded Business”) may therefore

potentially compete with the Group’s business.

In this connection, Madam Hsu, Mr Albert Tong and Mr Tong
Chi Kar Charles are/may be considered to have interests in a
business which may compete or is likely to compete, either
directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group, other than
that business where the Directors of the Company have been
appointed or were appointed as directors to represent the
interests of the Company and/or the Group, pursuant to the
Listing Rules. Nevertheless, RHL is a listed company in Hong
Kong and both the Group’s business and the Excluded Business
are managed by their respective independent management and
administration. Besides, the Board is independent of the board
of directors and management of RHL and the independent
non-executive Directors of the Company will also be monitoring
the operations of the Group. The Group is therefore capable of
carrying on its business independently of, and at arm’s length

from, the Excluded Business.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS
AND CONTRACTS

No transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance to the
business of the Group to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director of the Company
or any entity connected with him (within the meaning of Section
486 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance) had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, were entered into during
the year ended 31st December, 2018 or subsisted at the end of

the year or at any time during the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts for the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of any business of the Group were
entered into or subsisted during the year ended 31st December,
2018.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The Company recognizes that employees are one of the Group’s
valuable assets and the Group is conscious of the importance of
an effective staff management and incentive structure. The
Group provides competitive remuneration packages and makes
regular review to attract and motivate the employees. Remuneration
and benefit packages are generally structured by reference to market

terms, individual responsibilities, performance and qualifications.

The emoluments of the executive Directors of the Company are
determined by the Board on the recommendation of its
remuneration committee (the “Committee”). The fees of the
independent non-executive Directors of the Company are fixed
by the Board under the authorization of the shareholders of the
Company and on the recommendation of the Committee. In
addition, the Company has adopted the 2012 Scheme pursuant
to which it may grant the directors and employees of the Group

options to subscribe for Shares as a long-term incentive.
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PENSION SCHEMES

The Company participates in a pension scheme, which was
registered under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance (the “MPF Ordinance”), for all its
employees in Hong Kong. The scheme is a defined contribution
scheme effective from December 2000 and is funded by
contributions from employer and employees in accordance with
the provisions of the MPF Ordinance. If the employer makes any
voluntary contributions for the employees under the scheme,
forfeited contributions in this nature can be applied to reduce
the amount of future voluntary contributions payable by the

employer.

Furthermore, the employees of the Group in the Mainland of
China are members of respective state-managed defined
contribution retirement benefits schemes operated by the local
governments. The employers and the employees are obliged to
make contributions at a certain percentage of the payroll under

rules of the schemes.

During the year under review, the total amount contributed by
the Group to the said schemes and charged to the Consolidated
Statement of Profit or Loss amounted to HK$6,744,000 (2017:
HK$7,461,000) and no contributions were forfeited.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH SUPPLIERS
AND CUSTOMERS

The Group understands that it is important to maintain good
relationship with its suppliers and customers to achieve its
short-term and long-term goals. To maintain its competitive
status, the Group aims at providing quality products and services

to its customers.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND R Z R IR
SHORT POSITIONS

As at 31st December, 2018, the following sharcholders (other T e e L S ] N e [= W [ L
than the Directors of the Company) were interested, directly or WORA A FERERIN) BESHE A
indirectly, in 5% or more of the number of issued shares and RN F 2 BB AT Ay B AH B B A B H 2

underlying shares of the Company and those interests were 5%BE LA b O E £ o T % 4 R 4 2 A R GIE
required to be recorded in the register required to be kept under I KRB 91D 553361 2 B e 8k i 78
Section 336 of the SFO: THifez &R -

(I) Substantial Shareholders of the Company I ARAFZFEERER

Number of Shares held

(proportion to

Name of shareholders the number of issued Shares)
ikt 2 8 H
Jit 3K 45 (MEHRTBRNBHZASLL)
King China Holdings Limited §f #E4E [# 4 R A ] (2) 252,919,265  (12.14%)
Rivera (Holdings) Limited (‘RHL”) JI[YA £& [ A BR 22 =] ([ N3 1) (B) 247,300,000  (11.87%)

(II) Other Person an Hiib A+

Number of Shares held

(proportion to

Name of shareholder the number of issued Shares)

Pkt 2 8 H
Ji 3K 44 i (MEHELTRMBHZASLL)
E-Shares Investments Limited (a) 181,103,859 (8.69%)

Notces: Mt -

(a) King China Holdings Limited and E-Shares Investments () SRIELEEAGIR AN F & E-Shares
Limited were the beneficial owners of these Shares Investments Limited 43 All £ 3% % B
respectively. They were wholly owned by Madam Hsu Feng Bz EwmEA N> Mk L E
in her capacity as a beneficial owner. Pursuant to the SFO, mEA NS DR EHEAREEEA
their interests in the Shares therefore constituted part of PR /A 7 & E-Shares Investments
the total interests of Madam Hsu Feng in the capital of the Limited ° K It - MR8 GE F KW &
Company as disclosed in the above paragraph headed ) » 3% % N Fl A 2 B BE 25
“Directors’ Interests and Short Positions in Securities” in T A A 3 A5 o A A R Ay [ S
this Report. Z SR AR ROR A ] — T B

i LA 2 AN R R A 2
HE 25 48 7 — Wy -
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(b) RHL had interests in these Shares through corporations
under its control under the SFO. Details of these interests
are set out in Note (B) to the above paragraph headed
“Directors’ Interests and Short Positions in Securities” in

this Report.

Amongst these Shares disclosed, 230,390,970 Shares were
beneficially held by Shine Trip Limited, which was a
wholly-owned subsidiary of Superwell Development
Limited in which RHL held its entire equity interest.
Therefore, Shine Trip Limited, Superwell Development
Limited and RHL were interested or were taken to be

interested in these Shares pursuant to the SFO.

Save for the above interests, the Directors of the Company are
not aware of any person (other than the Directors of the
Company) who had, directly or indirectly, interests or short
positions in the number of issued shares and the underlying
shares of the Company and those interests or short positions
were required to be recorded in the register kept under Section
336 of the SFO as at 31st December, 2018.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors as at the date of this
Report, the Company has maintained a sufficient public float as

prescribed by the Listing Rules.

ENVIRONMENT POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

The Group is committed to the long term sustainability of the
environment and communities in which it operates. It
continually seeks to identify and manage environmental impacts
attributable to its operation activities to minimize the impacts if
possible. It adheres to the principle of recycling and reduction
and implements green office practices such as double-sided
printing and copying and reducing energy consumption by

switching off idle lightings and electrical appliances.
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The Group also secks to reduce its material consumption and
construction wastes in construction works. During the year
under review, the Group strived to comply with local regulations

for treatment of construction wastes.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

The Group commits itself to comply with the relevant laws and
regulations including, inter alia, the Listing Rules, Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance and other applicable local laws and
regulations in various jurisdictions in which it operates.
Furthermore, the Group, acting as a property developer, is
subject to environmental protection laws and regulations,
including air and noise pollution and discharge of construction
wastes and water in the Mainland and the Macao Special
Administrative Region of China. To the best knowledge of the
Board, the Group has complied with all the relevant laws and
regulations that have significant impact on the Group during the

year under review.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31st December, 2018 have been audited by the Auditor of
the Company, Messrs Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu and there was
no change in the Auditor of the Company in the previous three

financial years.

They will retire at the conclusion of the 2019 AGM and, being

eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment.

On behalf of the Board
Albert Tong

Vice-Chairman and Executive Director

Hong Kong, 25th March, 2019
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Deloitte

TO THE MEMBERS OF
TOMSON GROUP LIMITED

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Tomson
Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as “the Group”) set out on pages 67 to 201 which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31st December, 2018, and the consolidated statement of profit or
loss, consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in
equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,

including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group
as at 31st December, 2018, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements

of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient

and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on

these matters.

Valuation of investment properties

We identified the valuation of investment properties as a key
audit matter due to the significance of the assets and
involvement of management judgement and estimation in

determining the fair value.

The fair value of investment properties (which included
commercial properties, residential properties and industrial
properties in Shanghai of the People’s Republic of China
(“PRC”)) amounted to HK$7,980,161,000 as at 31st December,
2018, with gain on fair value changes recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss of HK$318,311,000 for
the year then ended.

As disclosed in Notes 5 and 16 to the consolidated financial
statements, in estimating the fair value of these investment
properties, the Group engaged a professional independent valuer
(the “Valuer”) to establish and determine the appropriate
valuation technique and inputs to the valuation. The significant
unobservable input are reversionary yield, taking into account
annual unit market rental income and unit market value of
comparable properties. A slight increase in the reversionary yield

would result in a significant decrease in fair value, and vice versa.

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Our procedures in relation to the valuation of investment

properties included:

. Evaluating the competence, capabilities and objectivity of
the Valuer;

Tomson Group Limited % i £E B 4 FR /A 7]

[5# o % w35 JH

IR G g T AR R A A B2 K B
RABHAMNE G MR RN FE KA E
BRI HEIH - B REIE R ERMERER
B B Rk Ko B R AT IR PR o
TMAGHE L RIERMEE BN E R -

P& P 2 A E

T A e Fl B8 & W 3 B0 Al (L 27 I o o e =
> PR R E O K B
O A T B Al A 1 H A P ME -

AR e AR oG T S el = P < )
% (EIE A  HE NR SL A (7 A E)
ETHMEAmE  CEWERTEY
%) BN T-{E £7,980,161,000% I - 1E A4
RIS AR R PR A T ES
B RFE AR 2 I 45 £5318,311,000% G ©

T A5 e B 5 Rk 3R B RS K16 B - TR
fFH B R AP ER > HEEE
i S B SE A (B ([ (ELR)) DA Sr K
e S 3 TR A (L 50 90 B Al (L 2 g A O

BRI AT B A i A BOE s 1R R i el R
RE T A B T 5 4F A B WA S AT AR L
) S 1) B TR (EL o AR i A A A b
THAFEE A ERIE T B - RZ IR -

Fe A A6 2 st v 4 oy g B R B A 2 0H

FAM 43 B Wy S A (B B AT RO R P L 4

o RMGMGERTER - B8 R F B



. Obtaining an understanding of the valuation process and
significant assumptions and critical judgement areas from
the management to assess if the investment approach is
appropriate for the respective properties and industry

norms;

e Evaluating the appropriateness of the estimations used, in
particular, the underlying assumptions and methodologies,
based on our knowledge of the properties market of the

relevant locations; and

e Assessing the reasonableness of the key inputs used by the
Valuer in the valuation model, including the reversionary
yield, taking into account annual unit market rental income
and unit market value of comparable properties and
adjustment factors for location and other individual factors
such as road frontage, size of property and facilities against
current market data and entity specific information on a

sample basis.

Provision for land appreciation tax

We identified the provision for land appreciation tax (“LAT”)
calculations as a key audit matter since significant judgement
and estimation required in determining the amount of LAT to
be paid by the Group within each of the property development

projects.

The Group is subject to LAT in the Mainland of the PRC. As
disclosed in Note 13 to the consolidated financial statements,
the provision for LAT of HK$169,666,000 was recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year ended 31st
December, 2018. The Group had LAT payable amounted to
HK$4,436,804,000 as at 31st December, 2018.

LAT has been provided at ranges of progressive rates of the
appreciation value, with certain allowable deductions including
land costs, borrowing costs and the relevant property development
expenditures, which are the key inputs in the calculation of the

LAT based on management’s best estimates.

Independent Auditor’s Report

R Y LR e

o GEAE BERE HBURSEAGEBAE - R
B e BT R > LA REAG BUE
J7 AIE T AF A AR B A 36 B AT SERLEE

o MREBRIAN B B H B 09 55 b E T
HO Rk o JEAG BT 2 Al A R
PE > o B R AR B AR e S 7 i 5

o AT A (L RTE A (BB RS o B BR T 2
R S iy A\ R B 5 B ELR AR R
Wedm R > MR LB EEHE
W A 2 AT A B 3 Y B T (E &
v A b 1 8 B TR 2R % A 8 1] 1R 3R
(B 7 7 B ~ 0 36 R /S B R it A
BE) o S b B B AT S R N
e 4 S R AT LR

k- b 394 1 BE 98 s

FAM i 3] - b 14 B0 88 45 10 w5 R
o S SR & NS (DS N
i HEHEE MY EERIEA S
B ST L G (B o

AR [ ZE A R B 2 b S (E R -
REEA B REMEI3FHE > BE
F—/NE+_A=+—HILEENES
18 25 2% b iR R oM 1 BB
169,666,000 7C ° Jh —F— N4+ H
=t+—H> HBHEBMEMNTHEEB
4 15 4,436,804,0009 T °

R RARYRE Mg 2 A FH DL RN A L
o 1 (BB 2 I i A B o BRI T
MWIEE (B4 £ A~ i 8RR K
I ) 26 58 B B S0) 4R o Rt (R 0
B R HVRHE BN ) st 3 (BB A

Annual Report 2018 44

62



63

Independent Auditor’s Report

383 > 4% BB o

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Our procedures in relation to the provision for LAT included:

. Obtaining an understanding from the management of the
Group about the basis adopted in arriving at the provision
for LAT;

*  Assessing the Group’s provision for LAT computation

prepared by the management of the Group with reference
to relevant rules and regulations with the assistance of our
tax specialists in the PRC; and

o Checking the financial information, including land costs,
borrowing costs and relevant development expenditures,
used in the calculation of provision for LAT to the Group’s

historical financial data.

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report

thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of

assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to
be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of
this other information, we are required to report that fact. We

have nothing to report in this regard.
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS
AND THOSE CHARGED WITH
GOVERNANCE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,

whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease

operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the

Group’s financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion solely to you,
as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of
this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial

statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism

throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud
is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,

misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

. Obrtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s

internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related

disclosures made by the directors.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the

Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of
the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events

in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
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. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We

remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant

deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought
to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related

safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to

outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the

independent auditor’s report is Sze On Tat.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
25th March, 2019
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
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For the year ended 31st December, 2018 BE_EF—-/NE+ _H=+—HIL&EE

2018 2017
— )\ 4 s
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 Tt Tt
Gross proceeds from operations AL Wi A AR A EET 684,829 2,167,464
Revenue A 6 678,094 2,107,365
Cost of sales B B B AR (190,960) (736,301)
Gross profit T 487,134 1,371,064
Net gain on financial assets at fair value WAFEFIABIGZ
through profit or loss A A W 2R I AR 674 10,461
Other income HAt e A 8 252,978 162,461
Other gains and losses HoAb g 5 X 5 48 9 (790) 30,483
Selling expenses B8 (180,285) (185,248)
Administrative expenses T (141,787) (144,022)
Gain on fair value changes of EB% Ja7/E YN (==X U]
investment properties RFEE A 2 IR 4 16 318,311 154,862
Gain on disposal of a joint venture HE—FE5EME
Z i 4 24 - 523,713
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries H B B 8 N R 2 Wi 4 10 - 551,435
Finance costs il 2 11 (51,717) (86,180)
684,518 2,389,029
Share of results of associates JRE A B N A 2 S A (560) (888)
Share of result of a joint venture JEIE—REEREZ
E—¥ 16,764 12,364
Profit before taxation B Bl B s 1) 12 700,722 2,400,505
Taxation i JH 13 (313,244) (1,055,840)
Profit for the year AF J3E g ) 387,478 1,344,665
Profit (loss) for the year attributable to: JRE Ak 4F B 6 1] (B 48)
/(1 N
Owners of the Company A A HE SR R A A 407,681 1,255,486
Non-controlling interests IE 12 1 1 TR 4 (20,203) 89,179
387,478 1,344,665
Earnings per share (HK cents) B LR Cis Al 15
— Basic —HAR 20.45 69.44
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
fa oy 1R A e LAt 4 i W £ %

For the year ended 31st December, 2018 BE - Z—/NE+_HA=+—HILEE

2018 2017
“ER-NE L ZF b
HK$’000 HK$’000
T#x T T
Profit for the year 4 J i A1) 387,478 1,344,665
Other comprehensive (expense) income I A 2 i (BH 2 ) W%
Items that may be subsequently reclassified to H 1 ] F R E
profit or loss: B #ZHHA -
Exchange difference arising from translation of: o RFE A 2 BB S 2= FA
— subsidiaries /AN (615,347) 803,150
— a joint venture ——RXEEME (9,831) 13,600
— associates o K- /N (403) 766
Gain on fair value changes of available-for-sale Al Ak SN E
investments 558 o) IR A 2 Wi 2R - Dl 1L3)
Reclassification adjustments from AW oG (AR R R
foreign currencies translation reserves: B A R
— release upon disposal of a joint venture —-REE—REE
1> SE TR AR BR - 33,528
— release upon liquidation of a subsidiary — G — K E
23 ) IR R R - (8,618)
— release upon disposal of subsidiaries — > B B g A D
IR fifE [ - (46,489)
Item that will not be reclassified to profit or loss: VYN
Ha K ZHA -
Fair value loss on equity instruments at fair value N PAE FE N HA
through other comprehensive income %EWEEZAHYTEZIKI/E\-
2N EE R (37,931) -
Other comprehensive (expense) income for the year A R H A A T
(B 32) Wik (663,512) 801,050
Total comprehensive (expense) income 4R B 2w (BH )
for the year W %5 48 %0 (276,034) 2,145,715
Total comprehensive (expense) income MELE 2T (B %)
attributable to: Wt AR AT
Owners of the Company ENNEIL X XS RSN (249,389) 2,025,314
Non-controlling interests IE F42 B S B HRE £ (26,645) 120,401
(276,034) 2,145,715
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
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At 31st December, 2018 A —F— /\4E+_H=+—H

2018 201
“E-NE L T b
Notes HK$’000 HK$°000
B 5 T T T
Non-Current Assets I B E
Fixed assets ] 2 &
— Investment properties — &Y * 16 7,980,161 8,061,471
— Property, plant and equipment —W 3 - WE Ko 17 195,998 226,184
Lease premium for land + i AH & 2 18 22,753 30,410
Film distribution rights R BEATHE 19 150 4,942
Goodwill i 20 33,288 33,288
Deferred tax assets % S Bl T 31 273,982 281,729
Interests in associates AWk N T 2 B £ 23 11,650 12,608
Interest in a joint venture R—REERE R 24 185,159 188,973
Club debentures & i fE 75 515 =
Equity instruments at fair value e i FEFT A HA
through other comprehensive income Wil 2 A TR ) 436,031 =
Available-for-sale investments a] ki E R E 5 - 189,228
Pledged bank deposits A ERAT A7 3K 39 798,733 941,848
9,938,420 9,970,681
Current Assets W& R
Lease premium for land + b & & 18 5,754 6,134
Properties under development B R 2E 20 3,449,254 3,554,039
Deposits paid for land use rights A 2 B A RT 4 21 376,104 396,063
Properties held for sale (CR=ES 2,117,661 2,278,099
Trade and other receivables FEUSCE 5 B3k~ HiAth
and prepayments JEWCHIR K B AT KIH 27(a) 528,963 1,841,016
Financial assets at fair value NP EFIAEGZ
through profit or loss A& 26 882 -
Inventories HeE 27(b) 4,516 5,047
Pledged bank deposits TR AT 47 3K 39 535,857 41,450
Bank deposits AT K 27(c) 700,000 -
Cash and bank balances Bl K BRAT 45 Bk 27(c) 4,268,775 3,692,955
11,987,766 11,814,803
Current Liabilities b R R
Trade and other payables and AT Z Bk - HoAth
accruals MEA IR LR B 27(d) 870,969 817,220
Contract liabilities HGHAE 27(e) 291,080 -
Receipts in advance TR IR - 220,946
Taxation Fid JH 4,549,148 4,851,723
Borrowings H K 30 483,682 451,435
6,194,879 6,341,324
Net Current Assets B R A 5,792,887 5,473,479
Total Assets Less Current Liabilities WG R B A 15,731,307 15,444,160
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
i BRI R
At 31st December, 2018 i —EF— /\4E+_—_H=+—H

2018 2017
“ER-NE L ZF b
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 Tt T IT
Capital and Reserves %N % B A
Share capital A 28 1,040,918 942,792
Share premium and reserves J A3 Y6 A I At A 11,986,139 12,281,336
Equity attributable to owners EN/NEIE SRS SN
of the Company JRE A HE 4 13,027,057 13,224,128
Non-controlling interests FE = B 1 R 4 256,316 296,461
Total Equity HHE 13,283,373 13,520,589
Non-Current Liabilities I B £ 1R
Borrowings i K 30 944,673 345,780
Deferred tax liabilities Ik E Bl TE B 31 1,503,261 1,577,791
2,447,934 15928857
15,731,307 15,444,160

The consolidated financial statements were approved and

authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 25th March,

2019 and are signed on its behalf by:

Hsu Feng
%t
Chairman

EY

BeMBERRCR “F-NE=A
T T AR R o A HE T
o i T EFAOREE

Albert Tong
%1l
Vice-Chairman

e
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

RO RELR S B R
For the year ended 31st December, 2018 #( % —ZF— /\4F+_H =+—H ILF &

Notes:

(@)

(b)

(0

(d)

(e)

The special reserves of the Group arose from the difference
between the aggregate amount of the then share capital and
share premium account of Tomson Investment Limited,
the former holding company of the Group, and the
nominal amount of the Company’s shares issued pursuant

to a scheme of arrangement in 1989.

Capital redemption reserve arose from repurchase of shares.
The amounts represent the nominal amount of the shares

repurchased.

The enterprises expansion reserve is an appropriation from
retained earnings in relation to tax concession granted by
the relevant government authorities. This reserve is only
used for the future development or expansion of that

company where concession is granted.

The statutory surplus reserve (“SSR”) is an appropriation
from retained earnings by subsidiaries of the Company in
the Mainland of the People’s Republic of China
(“Mainland China”). In accordance with the Company Law
of the Mainland China, the Mainland China subsidiaries of
the Company are required to allocate 10% of their profit
after tax to the SSR until such reserve reaches 50% of the
registered capital of that subsidiary. The SSR may be
converted to increase capital subject to certain restrictions

set out in the Company Law of the Mainland China.

Of the retained earnings of HK$8,680,405,000 (2017:
HK$8,348,566,000), retained earnings of HK$25,579,000
(2017: HK$19,562,000) and accumulated losses of
HK$7,759,000 (2017: HK$7,199,000) are attributable to a

joint venture and associates of the Group respectively.

Tomson Group Limited 5 B 4 [ 45 FRA 7]

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)
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P A F G L BCE A R Al 2 H
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et 2 {2 2258 -

A T (o it A R [ B A < ff
<6 L 0% I (B 1Y P 5% T S (L <

1> SE B (kA )5 i A B BUR HAS
T BB B R AR R A o bk
i AR B B 8 2 N wlAE H AR
BREIEREZ -

EEBBREEEAARNPEAR
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AR B3 3 ) 4 188 0 BRE o AR 48 b
N R/ 7R NN N U I R N B
J& > B ZE 4 B R B AR T R 9 109% &
BE B HEEMMER
W 2~ B9 G B AR 1950% o 15 E
ZLOR o vl e d o DASR R B A > HE
JE 3 1 v 3R A M N R I B A S T
B il o

A R B8 s 718,680,405,000 JT (
F—L4E : 8,348,566,0004 7T) EP
B RN — KA E LR E A
K AL B A F B EHE R S R A
25,579,000% oo (=& — L 4F :
19,562,000 JG) 5%7,759,000% JC
(ZF—L4F 17,199,000 7C) °



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

malleiiE®

For the year ended 31st December, 2018 BE - Z—/NE+_HA=+—HILEE

2018 2017
—E-NE L 2 EF
HK$’000 HK$’000
T TH I
OPERATING ACTIVITIES Rk
Profit before taxation %% B4 i Y ) 700,722 2,400,505
Adjustments for: MUAT PR
Share of results of associates JRE AL W 2 N B 2 AR 560 888
Share of result of a joint venture JEE— R E BN EZEE (16,764) (12,364)
Gain on liquidation of a subsidiary HEH— XM E A F 2 W - (8,783)
Gain on disposal of a joint venture HE—-ReEREIWE - (523,713)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries o B B B A R 2 i A - (551,435)
Interest expenses FEBH 2 51,717 86,180
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment BN & i 32,001 19,769
Amortisation of lease premium for land - H L 5,754 6,134
Impairment of film distribution rights R B AT RE W 4,792 -
Net impairment losses on trade and 135 0] E WS & 5 Bk e oAt
other receivables reversed R Wi B R 2 99 (L e 48 1 AR (673) (1,979)
Net gain on disposal/write off of property, e MEEE - R &
plant and equipment A 2 M i 1 AR (199) )
Gain on fair value changes of investment BE W) 20 (8 5 B F
properties 7 A Z W AR (318,311) (154,862)
Gain on fair value changes of financial assets WA EFI ARG Z
at fair value through profit or loss WAHS (5 B IFE
A2 A (37) -
Interest income FLE WA (89,846) (53,183)
Dividends from available-for-sale investments At ERE 2 B A - (86,498)
Dividends from equity instruments at fair value Fi N F-E w5 HoA 2 T i 25
through other comprehensive income ZRATRZBERA (90,393) =
Operating cash flows before movements in R S B2
working capital KRBT & 279,323 1,120,650
Decrease in properties held for sale GRE/EX % 91,807 800,284
Decrease (increase) in trade and FE W & 5 Bk~ HoAth B Wi
other receivables and prepayments W R K TR A
By (Hgm) 19,779 (80,915)
(Increase) decrease in financial assets WA EFIAEBZ Z
at fair value through profit or loss BABSE R (B m) Wk (845) 49,638
Decrease in inventories TFEWY 277 515
Increase in trade and other payables AT B2 55 Rk~ HL At e AS
and accruals M 2K I TELAR B R 1 70,352 268,837
Decrease in receipts in advance T UK A D - (93,665)
Increase in contract liabilities AR A B 81,073 -
Addition in properties under development BE A ) SE (74,315) (106,205)
Cash from operations REXEBEEZB® 467,451 1,959,139
Income taxes paid EBRNPRET (450,693) (283,633)
NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES REEGEEZBEFH 16,758 1,675,506
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

HABSmER

For the year ended 31st December, 2018 #( % —ZF— /\4F+_H =+—H ILF &

2018 2017
—F )4 —E L
Notes HK$°000 HK$’000
B 5E T L Tt
INVESTING ACTIVITIES P& 6 B
Withdrawal of pledged bank deposits 2 LB S5 SR AT 77 K 853,289 LS5
Placement of pledged bank deposits B O LA SR AT AE K (1,254,133) (806,837)
Withdrawal of restricted bank balance PRI PR SR AT &5 R - 654,519
Placement of time deposits with original BOERE I H = A
maturity over three months DL b2 8 B A7 2K (700,000) -
Addition in investment properties wEREYE (6,623) (7,343)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment WEEY)E -~ MR SO (23,262) (9,391)
Repayment from non-controlling SERZY S DAt
shareholders KA - 56,894
Interest received E Y B 85,392 52,725
Dividends from available-for-sale At ERE Y
investments e B A - 86,498
Dividends from equity instruments /N X [ NI =R R ]
at fair value through other WH T RATEY
comprehensive income B 90,393 5
Dividend from a joint venture WI—REERFELZ
(net of withholding tax) BB WA (B 0B
BB 10,210 12,282
Balance of proceeds from disposal of FAE BN F 2
subsidiaries in prior year 15 2 E 3 46 1,222,798 _
Proceeds on disposal of property, G E N N &L
plant and equipment Z P #g K 0 357 749
Net cash inflow of disposal of &g ARl 2
subsidiaries & WA G5 10 - 325,939
Advance to an associate BA T — KW N A
Z IE (5) (7)
NET CASH FROM INVESTING BREWHBHEEZ
ACTIVITIES B & H 8 278,416 477,585
FINANCING ACTIVITIES il ¥ 3% B
New borrowings raised R 34 1,183,000 -
Repayment of borrowings B A K 34 (511,686) (1,121,791)
Interest paid E AT F S 34 (43,952) (85,879)
Cash dividend paid RERETEN s (185,855) (184,412)
Repayment to a joint venture BT R aERE 34 - (55,779)
Return of capital to non-controlling T I 8 e JI% SRR 1R B A
shareholders - (12,122)
Dividend paid to non-controlling shareholder £ ] FF #2 B i 3 i £ (13,500) (76,500)
NET CASH FROM (USED IN) e s B R A (F ) 2
FINANCING ACTIVITIES bR ] 428,007 (1,536,483)
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND BHekB&%MHEA
CASH EQUIVALENTS B 723,181 616,608
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS R—H—HZHER
AT 1ST JANUARY BE%HEH 3,692,955 2,881,962
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE A b R A 2 B
RATE CHANGES (147,361) 194,385
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS BR+-H=+—HzZ
AT 31ST DECEMBER BHeERkBE&%EMHEH
represented by cash and bank balances RIVBR 4 I SRAT 45 8% 4,268,775 3,692,955

Tomson Group Limited 5 B 4 [ 45 FRA 7]




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fon 0 S0 5 e B

For the year ended 31st December, 2018 BE - Z—/NE+_HA=+—HILEE

GENERAL

The Company is a public limited company incorporated in
the Cayman Islands and its shares are listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).
The addresses of the registered office and principal place of
business of the Company are disclosed in the corporate

information of the annual report.

The principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively the “Group”) for the year were property
development and investment, hospitality and leisure
business, securities trading, PVC operations as well as
operation of and investment in media and entertainment

business.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”). In
addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (“Listing
Rules”) and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

1. — & B

A5 T By — S B B 3
2 RARAS T FE I s
&35 A R4S A (B3R BT D) I
o A2y 7 2 gk R R E
S5 4 2 2 ok £ A 92 28 7 RO
oo 3 . o

A w) B H W TR S R (KRR [ A &
B 1) AR R 2 T EH By W)
B RBUE AR A RS - W
FHE - BBREHL LS LE
T I o B S

2. %ok B B B5 A o AL R

AN B3 B R T 1 B A U A
N g 2 (R o B i A D AR
B o WAL > &5 TS i R N A B
22 B g o B LA (TCE T &R
HID 1) B 7 8 KA R B) Bk E 2
0 ] 9 R F A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
S5 A R B G
For the year ended 31st December, 2018 #( % —ZF— /\4F+_H =+—H ILF &

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND 3. WEH B al (7 8 B4 5 o
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG Q) K HAE T A
FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS
The Group has applied the following new HKFRSs and A 4R B B A A A B B R E L LA B
amendments to HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA for the F s & 5 € A 2 B R (R W
first time in the current year: S 5 S Y L) e HAB AT A
HKERS 9 Financial Instruments (BiEmBEREEN) SMIA

e
HKEFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with (FRMHEREEN) REZF A4 KA
Customers and the related B15% il
Amendments
HK(IFRIC) - Int 22 Foreign Currency Transactions (B (RPEHHEE Sy RBEMRE
and Advance Consideration wRZHY))
3L ki
Amendments to HKFRS 2 Classification and Measurement (BB HREEN)  BHETHRH R
of Share-based Payment Transactions F5% (BT A) il &
Amendments to HKFRS 4 Applying HKFRS 9 “Financial (FHEMHRERA) W ERMBREREA) S
Instruments” with HKFRS 4 45 (BT A) o[ M T A B(FE
“Insurance Contracts” B 5 S ) 240
Wﬁ“ﬂ — e
Amendments to HKAS 28 As part of the Annual Improvements to (B gsHEl) ER-F-NEE-%
HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle 2855 (AT &) /@L%H (FhuH
B ) 1 A O
) — i
Amendments to HKAS 40 Transfers of Investment Property (B GFHHEA) LB Y

F40%E (BT A)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Ao £ BV 255 o i

For the year ended 31st December, 2018 #% —%F— /\4F+_H =+—H ILFJF

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

Except as described below, the application of the other new
HKFRSs and amendments to HKFRSs had no material
effect on the consolidated financial statements of the

Group for current or prior accounting periods.

In the current year, the Group has applied HKFRS 9
“Financial Instruments” and the related consequential
amendments to other HKFRSs. HKFRS 9 introduces new
requirements for (1) the classification and measurement of
financial assets and financial liabilities, (2) expected credit
losses (“ECL”) for financial assets and (3) general hedge

accounting.

The Group has applied HKFRS 9 in accordance with the
transition provisions set out in HKFRS 9, i.e. applied the
classification and measurement requirements (including
impairment) retrospectively to financial instruments that
have not been derecognised as at Ist January, 2018 (date of
initial application) and has not applied the requirements to
financial instruments that have already been derecognised
as at lst January, 2018. The difference between carrying
amounts as at 31st December, 2017 and the carrying
amounts as at lst January, 2018 were recognised in the
opening retained earnings and other components of equity,

without restating comparative information.

Accordingly, certain comparative information may not be
comparable as comparative information was prepared under
Hong Kong Accounting Standard (“HKAS”) 39 “Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement”. Accounting
policies resulting from application of HKFRS 9 are
disclosed in Note 4.

g,

&

6 7 T
He [ ) %

A

CHr ¥ 104 255 o

~ {? HT ZIK (wF!)

<
\

!

BR T SCRT A AN > 8 H AL BT T KR

o T s o R R R HHE R A B AR

A5 [ 77 A it 400 TR B A et A0 [
A S R AR I R S

A > AEEC B CGR#EM
B M) o5k [ il TR | K H
AR BR R o S 75 ik 4 Y S ) AR 2
BT o KA o I 5 ik 5 YE Al S99k
FIAM) MBS & E LB B2 08
Lt > QMBEEZEUERE
BLREG)—BE Mg sHEZHHE

A AR ] AR 48 s B 5 i 2 E 1))
ﬁ%%%ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ%iﬁ%«ﬁ%
R ) BB 05k > ISt =%
—/\F—H—H (FWREHHH) &
F & E MERR Y 4 il T HL B B RE A 4y
BAEHEHE (BIEEIE) » Bl 4
BN -F-NF-A—-HEKKILL
MM EM T HABERZERE - =
T—tHE+ A=+ —HZIEHHE
KIZF—NF—H—-HZRHMEZ
7 BLTA AR 2 AR B8 Vi A B A A
TRy e R > Sl 4 E 5 LS R o

BRI > 25 T LB DR R 06 BLAR B8 (Fr
e EtERD) S35 [ @ T H - i

AR IR E R R T
P o 8l o S 5 i i HE B 269
ST B G R BOR R M RE4 0 5%
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
S5 A R B G
For the year ended 31st December, 2018 #( % —ZF— /\4F+_H =+—H ILF &

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

Summary of effects arising from
initial application of HKFRS 9

For available-for-sale equity investments reclassified to
equity instruments at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”), the Group elected to
present in other comprehensive income for the fair value
changes of all its equity investments previously classified as
available-for-sale. These investments are not held for
trading and not expected to be sold in the foreseeable
future. At the date of initial application of HKFRS 9,
HK$188,713,000 were reclassified from available-for-sale
investments to equity instruments at FVTOCI, of which
HK$48,091,000 related to unlisted equity investments
previously measured at cost less impairment under HKAS
39. The fair value gains of HK$317,688,000 related to
those unlisted equity investments previously carried at cost
less impairment were adjusted to equity instruments at
FVTOCI and investment reserve as at lst January, 2018.
In addition, the corresponding deferred tax liability of
HK$79,515,000 was adjusted to the investment reserve and
impairment losses previously recognised of HK$32,215,000
were transferred from retained earnings to investment
reserve as at lst January, 2018. The cumulative fair value
gains of HK$92,299,000 relating to those investments
previously carried at fair value continued to accumulate in

investment reserve.

Tomson Group Limited 5 B 4 [ 45 FRA 7]

U HE FH 7 i B 5 e o 4 1)
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AT 2 AR E
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TH > 7 4 B R 50 Se i o JH A ]
it B 2 B A A B 2 T (H A
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B IEFEEEE - HE A gl
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188,713,000% yu B o] fit th & & &
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HZzBATHE . BF aF
48,091,000%5 JC J5 JE A AR 48 (s &
w1 HE R ) 253998 4% AR A 1 B i H w1
B2 LT BARE o %% Lk
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31st December, 2018 #(% — %

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

Summary of effects arising from
initial application of HKFRS 9 (Continued)

As at Ist January, 2018, the Directors of the Company
reviewed and assessed the Group’s existing financial assets
measured at amortised cost for impairment using
reasonable and supportable information that is available
without undue cost or effort in accordance with the
requirements of HKFRS 9. The impact of impairment

under ECL model is insignificant.

The following table shows the adjustments of the Group

recognised for each individual line item and line items that

Ao £ BV 255 o i
—/NEFZA=T—HILERE

g,

&

6 7 T
He [ ) %

A

CHr ¥ 104 255 o

~ {? HT ZIK (wF!)

<
\

!

WU E A v B0 2 e o e HI )
ok Ak 2 W B (49

B_F—NE—H—H > ARFAE
R PR G o B 5 i o 8 U)o 9t
R E - {46 5 A5 HH RS a0 22 B9 B
AR T T AR S B KR SR
19 R 3 A 4 B B AT DL A R
BB EE 2 WAEAE AR T
fli - IR BB IRAAT 2 B EY
B AFEK -

T%%ﬁﬂﬁ%@ﬁ:%ﬁ]ﬁl 1 H e S
ZHE WA EEAZEHTEL

were not affected by the changes have not been included:

JHH :

31st Ist
December Impacts of January
2017 HKERS 9 2018
R —-LE S CHRBHE
+ZH EEEAD TR )\
=t—H Hogz e —H—H
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
T T T4 7T Tt
Available-for-sale investments Al A 188,713 (188,713) -
Equity instruments at fair value N PEFTA
through other comprehensive A 4 T WA 5
income Z A T - 506,401 506,401
Total Non-Current Assets FE I B A AR 9,970,681 317,688 10,288,369
Share premium and reserves JBE A9 e A J At A 12,281,336 238,173 12,519,509
Equity attributable to owners ENNEIR: ESES DN
of the Company JRE A HE 4 13,224,128 238,173 13,462,301
Total Equity HARE 4R 13,520,589 238,173 13,758,762
Deferred tax liabilities 1R IE B TH A 1 1,577,791 79,515 1,657,306
Total Non-Current Liabilities ) B EEE 1,923,571 79,515 2,003,086

Annual Report 2018 44

80



81

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
S5 A R B G
For the year ended 31st December, 2018 #( % —ZF— /\4F+_H =+—H ILF &

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

Summary of effects arising from
initial application of HKFRS 15

The Group has applied HKERS 15 for the first time in the
current year. HKFRS 15 superseded HKAS 18 “Revenue”,
HKAS 11 “Construction Contracts” and the related
interpretations. HKFRS 15 applies to all contracts with the

Group’s customers except for leases within the scope of
HKAS 17 “Leases”.

The Group has applied HKFRS 15 retrospectively with the
cumulative effect of initially applying this standard
recognised at the date of initial application, st January,
2018. Any difference at the date of initial application was
recognised in the opening retained earnings (or other
components of equity, as appropriate) and comparative

information has not been restated.

Information about the Group’s performance obligations
and the accounting policies resulting from application of
HKERS 15 are disclosed in Notes 6 and 4 respectively.

Tomson Group Limited 5 B 4 [ 45 FRA 7]

H
&

=
ﬂ
A
S

$A 5 e
il AN )

gk

XA

BZ

A
J

U HE A 7 i B % e o 4 1)
BISWEEZ B BME

A5 R A A B IR (T
S 75 s o Y D) B 1S9 o KO s S
it e U 55 1S 9RO G 8 &t e
HID 2518598 [ A ] ~ K& i & w1 4
R st (2 E 8] LA KRZ
B o (T s B 5 i YE 1)) 26 1S 9E I
RRAEEAES X - R CGEF
e & R E QD S 179% (A 5 ) #E K
ZREBRSD o

A% 45 ] BB WA A G U B A
HEHI) 5515598 > 1B Uk FE A R% Y A
ZEFREEN _F—-N\NE—H—H
HKHE A B RS - R E R ER H
W1 22 AT Ao 22 B A BA ) AR B s ) (5K
HE £5 2 Ho At AL RS  (Cnid A) ) Hp
fEsR > HIf 4 5 5 LL i B R o

A B A 25 1 E R ot U S o e
A1) 851558 B B 2 JB 4 AR 2 B R
Lo wt BUR I AR Wt k6 S 490 7



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31st December, 2018 #% —%F— /\4F+_H =+—H ILFJF

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

Summary of effects arising from
initial application of HKFRS 15 (Continued)

As at 1st January, 2018, advances from customers of
HK$220,946,000 in respect of contracts previously
included in receipts in advance were reclassified to contract

liabilities.

The following table shows the adjustments of the Group
recognised for each individual line item and line items that

were not affected by the changes have not been included:

i s
e H ) K

CHr o8 W0 % e

S 1/ HIZIK (%)

4—L

M

IR v B0 s e i e HID )
WIsREAEZ B EME @)

A F— )N4E—H—H SEHiFIA
KB REEFNABAHZ
B 3220,946,000% TCE B A S
ALK -

K 550 A A A5 R JE e R
R WAEAFAZEE B
HH :

31st 1st
December Impacts of January
2017 HKEFRS 15 2018
b (FEHE
T oA BEEADS SR )\E
=t—H sz —H—H
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

T T T # T T # T

Receipts in advance A W 2 T8
Contract liabilities e =K

Without application of HKFRS 15, the carrying amount of
contract liabilities of HK$291,080,000 as at 31st
December, 2018 will be included in receipts in advance in
the consolidated statement of financial position. The
impact on the consolidated statement of cash flows with
respect to receipts in advance will be an increase of
HK$81,073,000.

220,946 (220,946) -
- 220,946 220,946

A T ) R s B 5 i 2 ME RID) 56 15
PEMER T > R F—/NFE+A
=TT —HMWMAANAERTHE
291,080,000% JT ¥ JiA %5 A WA 5 41K
REFEEFPCRIAN - HEEGBE
iR 2R 52 B R TE R SR T A 1S
81,073,000% JC °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31st December, 2018 #( % —ZF— /\4F+_H =+—H ILF &

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

The Group has not early applied the following new
HKFRSs and amendments to HKFRSs that have been

issued but are not yet effective:

HE X
e Jl

;%
s
A
S

$A 5 e
il AN )

il
gk

74 ] 1 oA £ L LU B AR E
I A 2B R0 2 B W T (7 s 5 i s e
HID) R HAERTA

HKEFRS 16

HKEFRS 17

HK(IFRIC) — Int 23

Amendments to
HKFRS 3

Amendments to
HKFRS 9

Amendments to
HKEFRS 10 and
HKAS 28

Amendments to
HKAS 1 and
HKAS 8

Amendments to
HKAS 19
Amendments to
HKAS 28

Amendments to

HKEFRSs

Leases!
Insurance Contracts?

Uncertainty Over Income Tax

Treatments'
Definition of a Business®

Prepayment Features with
Negative Compensation'
Sale or Contribution of Assets

between an Investor and its

Associate or Joint Venture®

Definition of Material®

Plan Amendment, Curtailment
or Settlement!

Long-term Interests in
Associates and Joint
Ventures'

Annual Improvements to

HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle!
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Ao £ BV 255 o i

For the year ended 31st December, 2018 #% —%F— /\4F+_H =+—H ILFJF

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st
January, 2019.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st
January, 2021.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to
be determined.

Effective for business combination and asset acquisitions for
which the acquisition date is on or after the beginning of
the first annual periods beginning on or after 1st January,
2020.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st

January, 2020.

HKEFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model for the
identification of lease arrangements and accounting
treatments for both lessors and lessees. HKFRS 16 will
supersede HKAS 17 “Leases” and the related interpretations

when it becomes effective.

HKERS 16 distinguishes lease and service contracts on the
basis of whether an identified asset is controlled by a
customer. Distinctions of operating leases and finance
leases are removed for lessee accounting, and is replaced by
a model where a right-of-use asset and a corresponding
liability have to be recognised for all leases by lessees,

except for short-term leases and leases of low value assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
S5 A R B G
For the year ended 31st December, 2018 #( % —ZF— /\4F+_H =+—H ILF &

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost and
subsequently measured at cost (subject to certain
exceptions) less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses, adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease liability.
The lease liability is initially measured at the present value
of the lease payments that are not paid at that date.
Subsequently, the lease liability is adjusted for interest and
lease payments, as well as the impact of lease modifications,
amongst others. For the classification of cash flows, the
Group currently presents upfront lease premium for land as
investing cash flows in relation to leasechold lands for own
use and those classified as investment properties while other
operating lease payments are presented as operating cash
flows. Upon application of HKFRS 16, lease payments in
relation to lease liability will be allocated into a principal
and an interest portion which will be presented as financing
cash flows by the Group, upfront lease premium for land
will continue to be presented as investing or operating cash

flows in accordance with the nature as appropriate.

Under HKAS 17, the Group has already recognised prepaid
lease payments for leasechold lands where the Group is a
lessee. The application of HKFRS 16 may result in
potential changes in classification of these assets depending
on whether the Group presents right-to-use assets
separately or within the same line item at which the
corresponding underlying assets would be presented if they

were owned.

Other than certain requirements which are also applicable
to lessor, HKFRS 16 substantially carries forward the lessor
accounting requirements in HKAS 17, and continues to
require a lessor to classify a lease cither as an operating

lease or a finance lease.

Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by HKFRS

16.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31st December, 2018 #% —%F— /\4F+_H =+—H ILFJF

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

As at 31 December 2018, the Group has non-cancellable
operating lease commitments as disclosed in Note 36(b). A
preliminary assessment indicates that these arrangements
will meet the definition of a lease. Upon application of
HKERS 16, the Group will recognise a right-of-use asset
and a corresponding liability in respect of all these leases

unless they qualify for low value or short-term leases.

In addition, the Group currently considers refundable
rental deposits paid of HK$2,532,000 and refundable
rental deposits received of HK$79,143,000 as rights and
obligations under leases to which HKAS 17 applies. Based
on the definition of lease payments under HKFRS 16, such
deposits are not payments relating to the right to use the
underlying assets. Accordingly, the carrying amounts of
such deposits may be adjusted to amortised cost.
Adjustments to refundable rental deposits paid would be
considered as additional lease payments and included in the
carrying amount of right-of-use assets. Adjustments to
refundable rental deposits received would be considered as

advance lease payments.

The application of new requirements may result in changes
in measurement, presentation and disclosure as indicated
above. The Group intends to elect the modified
retrospective approach for the application of HKFRS 16 as
lessee and will recognise the cumulative effect of initial
application to opening retained earnings without restating

comparative information.

Except for the new HKFRSs mentioned above, the
Directors of the Company anticipate that the application of
all other new HKFRSs and amendments to HKFRSs will
have no material impact on the Group’s consolidated

financial statements in the foreseeable future.

@ﬁ%ﬁﬂ(%‘%ﬁi%%ﬁ%
A ) B Fo A 5T AR 4

W

AR NEFZA=+—H &
45 1B A It 5E36(b) T 4 25 2 K ] e
R T EKYE - M R BN >
FRP T AMENER - RNEH
G s BA W 4 ME HIDD) BB 1655 4% > A&
45 18 1% 5% 55 BT A R R A
EERMEAR 25 HERE
HC AR =k A BR 4D -

UeAb » A 4 [ B R R 5 A AT 4R 1)
B T 4:2,532,000% 7 & E i nl 2
] FH & 5T 479,143,000 o 1E & (F
et F 17958 2
Fl K F s - MR (R v B 1S i 05 e
HIY 551695 H F L& 3k 2 E 5% -
w255 w1 4 00 I BLAH A B A
RS W 2% 2
T 2% € 5 5 2 4 8 AR o B E A
A AR (8] L T A 00 o S N W A
SR E AT R > R A S E
W AE - BB EHEET SN
AR R M A 5 TELAS A B A K e

JRE PR 3 B o B B B b SO R 2 E
B RU R EE A - AL
VB B 7RCRHL N $58 398 45 48 6 5T 48 05
PG s B 5 it MR JID) 55 1698 > 317
ATl R UK ME AR R B R R Y
Bnhi 2, G 4 5 R E R

B b SCRT A 2 3R AT o s B S R
Q) b o A F TR A
A Ho At B R (o B R At D K%
EVT$%$%@T%%%Z@
SV s i 3 7 0 K

Annual Report 2018 4 4F 4

86



87

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31st December, 2018 #( % —ZF— /\4F+_H =+—H ILF &

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis, except for investment properties
and certain financial instruments, which are measured at
fair values, as explained in the accounting policies set out

below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the

consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into
account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.
Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in
these consolidated financial statements is determined on
such a basis, except for share-based payment transactions
that are within the scope of HKFRS 2 “Share-based
Payment”, leasing transactions that are within the scope of
HKAS 17, and measurements that have some similarities to
fair value but are not fair value, such as net realisable value
in HKAS 2 “Inventories” or value in use in HKAS 36

“Impairment of Assets”.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the

asset in its highest and best use.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on
the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which

are described as follows:
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31st December, 2018 #% —%F— /\4F+_H =+—H ILFJF

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

J Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity

can access at the measurement date;

. Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the

asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

. Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or

liability.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities controlled
by the Company (its subsidiaries). Control is achieved
when the Company:

. has power over the investee;

. is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its

involvement with the investee; and

. has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to

one or more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the
Group losses control of the subsidiary. The results of
subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
from the date of the Group gains control until the date

when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
S5 A R B G
For the year ended 31st December, 2018 #( % —ZF— /\4F+_H =+—H ILF &

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the

non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies

in line with those used by the Group.

All significant inter-group transactions, balances, income

and expenses are eliminated on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group’s equity therein, which represent
present ownership interest entitling their holders to a
proportionate share of net assets of the relevant subsidiaries

upon liquidation.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of net assets and
operations of another entity for which the agreement date
is before Ist January, 2005 represents the excess of the cost
of acquisition over the Group’s interest in the fair value of
the identifiable assets and liabilities of the relevant acquiree

at the date of acquisition.

From 1st January, 2005 onward, the Group will carry

goodwill at cost less any accumulated impairment losses.

Capitalised goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business
is presented separately in the consolidated statement of

financial position.
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For the year ended 31st December, 2018 #% —%F— /\4F+_H =+—H ILFJF

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Goodwill (Continued)

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill arising
from an acquisition is allocated to each of the relevant
cash-generating units, or groups of cash-generating units,
that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the
acquisition. A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has
been allocated is tested for impairment annually, and
whenever there is an indication that the unit may be
impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a
financial year, the cash-generating unit to which goodwill
has been allocated is tested for impairment before the end
of that financial year. When the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit is less than the carrying amount of the
unit, the impairment loss is allocated to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit first, and then
to the other assets of the unit pro rata on the basis of the
carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any impairment
loss for goodwill is recognised directly in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss. An impairment loss for goodwill

is not reversed in subsequent periods.

On subsequent disposal of the relevant cash-generating
unit, the attributable amount of goodwill capitalised is
included in the determination of the amount of profit or

loss on disposal.

Interests in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence. Significant influence is the power to
participate in the financial and operating policy decisions
of the investee but is not control or joint control over those

policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties
that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to
the net assets of the joint arrangement. Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement,
which exists only when decisions about the relevant
activities require unanimous consent of the parties sharing

control.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
S5 A R B G
For the year ended 31st December, 2018 #( % —ZF— /\4F+_H =+—H ILF &

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Interests in associates and joint ventures
(Continued)

The results and assets and liabilities of associates and joint
ventures are incorporated in these consolidated financial
statements using the equity method of accounting. Under
the equity method, investments in associates or joint
ventures are carried in the consolidated statement of
financial position at cost and adjusted thereafter to
recognise the Group’s share of the profit or loss and other
comprehensive income of the associate or joint venture, less
any identified impairment loss. When the Group’s share of
losses of an associate or a joint venture exceeds its interest
in that associate or joint venture (which includes any
long-term interests that, in substance, form part of the
Group’s net investment in the associate or joint venture),
the Group discontinues recognising its share of further
losses. Additional loses are recognised only to the extent
that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payment on behalf of that associate or

joint venture.

The associate’s and joint venture’s financial statements used
for the application of equity method of accounting are
prepared using uniform accounting policies with the Group

for transactions and events in similar circumstances.

The Group assesses whether there is an objective evidence
that the interest in associates or joint ventures may be
impaired. When any objective evidence exists, the entire
carrying amount of the investment (including goodwill) is
tested for impairment in accordance with HKAS 36 as a
single asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher of
value in use and fair value less costs to sell) with its
carrying amount. Any impairment loss recognised forms
part of the carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal
of that impairment loss is recognised in accordance with
HKAS 36 to the extent that the recoverable amount of the

investment subsequently increases.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Ao £ BV 255 o i

For the year ended 31st December, 2018 #% —%F— /\4F+_H =+—H ILFJF

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Interests in associates and joint ventures
(Continued)

Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over
the cost of acquisition, after reassessment, is recognised
immediately in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
When a group entity transacts with an associate or a joint
venture of the Group, profits or losses are eliminated to the
extent of the Group’s interest in the relevant associate or

joint venture.

When the Group ceases to have significant influence over
an associate or a joint venture, it is accounted for as a
disposal of the entire interest in the investee with a
resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss.
When the Group retains an interest in the former associate
or joint venture and the retained interest is a financial asset
within the scope of HKFRS 9/HKAS 39, the Group
measures the retained interest at fair value at that date and
the fair value is regarded as its fair value on initial
recognition. The difference between the carrying amount of
the associate or joint venture and the fair value of any
retained interest, and any proceeds from the disposal is
included in the determination of the gain or loss on
disposal of the associate or joint venture. In addition, the
Group accounts for all amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income in relation to that associate or
joint venture on the same basis as would be required if that
associate or joint venture had directly disposed of the
related assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss
previously recognised in other comprehensive income by
that associate or joint venture would be reclassified to
profit or loss on the disposal of the related assets or
liabilities, the Group reclassifies the gain or loss from
equity to profit or loss (as a reclassification adjustment)
upon disposal/partial disposal of the relevant associate or

joint venture.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
S5 A R B G
For the year ended 31st December, 2018 #( % —ZF— /\4F+_H =+—H ILF &

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when
a group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the financial instrument. All regular way
purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and
derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the time frame established by

regulation or convention in the market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value except for trade receivables arising
from contracts with customers which are initially measured
in accordance with HKFRS 15 since st January, 2018.
Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets or financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or
deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or
financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of
financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss are recognised immediately in the

consolidated statement of profit or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability and
of allocating interest income and interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts and
payments (including all fees paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs
and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life
of the financial asset or financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount

on initial recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Ao £ BV 255 o i

For the year ended 31st December, 2018 #% —%F— /\4F+_H =+—H ILFJF

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial

assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are

subsequently measured at amortised cost:

. the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is to collect contractual cash flows;

and

. the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and

interest on the principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at fair
value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”), except that at the
date of initial application/initial recognition of a financial
asset the Group may irrevocably elect to present subsequent
changes in fair value of an equity investment in other
comprehensive income if that equity investment is not held

for trading.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

. it has been acquired principally for the purpose of

selling in the near term; or

*  on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual pattern of

short-term profit-taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as

a hedging instrument.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
S5 A R B G
For the year ended 31st December, 2018 #( % —ZF— /\4F+_H =+—H ILF &

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial

assets (Continued)

(i) Amortised cost and interest income

(ii)

Interest income is recognised using the effective
interest method for financial assets measured
subsequently at amortised cost. Interest income is
calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the
gross carrying amount of a financial asset, except for
financial assets that have subsequently become
credit-impaired. For financial assets that have
subsequently become credit-impaired, interest income
is recognised by applying the effective interest rate to
the amortised cost of the financial asset from the next
reporting period. If the credit risk on the
credit-impaired financial instrument improves so that
the financial asset is no longer credit-impaired,
interest income is recognised by applying the effective
interest rate to the gross carrying amount of the
financial asset from the beginning of the reporting
period following the determination that the asset is

no longer credit impaired.

Equity instruments designated as at FVTOCI

Investments in equity instruments at EVTOCI are
subsequently measured at fair value with gains and
losses arising from changes in fair value recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
investment reserve and are not subject to impairment
assessment. The cumulative gain or loss will not be
reclassified to profit or loss on disposal of the equity
investments, and will be transferred to retained

earnings.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Ao £ BV 255 o i

For the year ended 31st December, 2018 #% —%F— /\4F+_H =+—H ILFJF

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial

assets (Continued)

(ii)  Equity instruments designated as at FVTOCI (Continued)

Dividends from these investments in equity
instruments are recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss when the Group’s right to
receive the dividends is established, unless the
dividends clearly represent a recovery of part of the

cost of the investment.
(iii) Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being
measured at amortised cost or designated as FVTOCI
are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value
at the end of each reporting period, with any fair
value gains or losses recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss. The net gain or loss
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss includes any dividend or interest earned on the

financial asset.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
S5 A R B G
For the year ended 31st December, 2018 #( % —ZF— /\4F+_H =+—H ILF &

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4. EEGFHBUR @)

POLICIES (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECL on financial
assets which are subject to impairment under HKFRS 9
(including trade and other receivables, pledged bank
deposits, bank deposits and bank balances). The amount of
ECL is updated at each reporting date to reflect changes in

credit risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all
possible default events over the expected life of the relevant
instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m ECL”)
represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to
result from default events that are possible within 12
months after the reporting date. Assessment are done based
on the Group’s historical credit loss experience, adjusted
for factors that are specific to the debtors, general economic
conditions and an assessment of both the current
conditions at the reporting date as well as the forecast of

future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifecime ECL for trade

receivables individually.

For other financial assets, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
the Group recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of
whether lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on
significant increases in the likelihood or risk of a default

occurring since initial recognition.

Tomson Group Limited % i £E B 4 FR /A 7]

&b TH 4)
W& B (4E)
BB 2 WA

7 4 T AR 4t s B 5 i o HE T
FOSRHZ BEM R B EE (|
175 B WS B o R i L A R i B K
R RAT A7 K > SRAT A7 K e BRAT 46
%) ERE T (5 B 1R 2 e TR 4 -
HE B R E R & ol B
Ao LR AE R M B UK RS A
R -

2 W T B e 1R 16 A B TR 1
w AR A BT AT RT R AR A SR E AR
Z TR SR - MR - 12 H
45 H s B R IR B g2
AN RS ENEFELEZ
w2 TR B R o REAL J9AR
PR A 4R O 115 B s 1R RS B 1T
AR B N e R~ — M AL IR
DU LA B T R H 4 22 8 R IR DL &
IR BRI T B 2 A A i SR

7 4R 8] — AL ) B A R i
e M S S 1E

o

MHEMPMBEENS > AEEG R
HAE A 1248 H EIE B8 2 iE
A - B OFHE B B B O R
DA S 1 T > Bl A 4 [ e RR 2
TG B 1E o FEAL 2 B EERR 2
HATE S B 1R > T9 3R A B IR
Tt 5 DA 2l % 2B 98 4 2 AT RE M s JE B
B -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Ao £ BV 255 o i

For the year ended 31st December, 2018 #% —%F— /\4F+_H =+—H ILFJF

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument
as at the reporting date with the risk of a default occurring
on the financial instrument as at the date of initial
recognition. In making this assessment, the Group
considers both quantitative and qualitative information that
is reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that is

available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has increased

significantly:

. an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external (if available) or

internal credit rating;

o significant deterioration in external market indicators
of credit risk, e.g. a significant increase in the credit

spread or the credit default swap prices for the debtor;

*  existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected to
cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to

meet its debt obligations;

o an actual or expected significant deterioration in the

operating results of the debtor; and

o an actual or expected significant adverse change in the
regulatory, economic, or technological environment
of the debtor that results in a significant decrease in

the debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
S5 A R B G
For the year ended 31st December, 2018 #( % —ZF— /\4F+_H =+—H ILF &

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the
Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the Group
has reasonable and supportable information that

demonstrates otherwise.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the
criteria used to identify whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk and revises them as appropriate to
ensure that the criteria are capable of identifying significant

increase in credit risk before the amount becomes past due.

For internal credit risk management, the Group considers
an event of default occurs when information developed
internally or obtained from external sources indicates that
the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors, including the

Group, in full (without taking into account any collaterals

held by the Group).

The Group considers that default has occurred when the
financial instrument is more than 90 days past due unless
the Group has reasonable and supportable information to
demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion is more

appropriate.
Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more
events of default that have a detrimental impact on the
estimated future cash flows of that financial asset have
occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired
includes observable data such as significant financial

difficulty of the borrower.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Ao £ BV 255 o i

For the year ended 31st December, 2018 #% —%F— /\4F+_H =+—H ILFJF

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability
of default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the loss
if there is a default) and the exposure at default. The
assessment of the probability of default and loss given
default is based on historical data adjusted by
forward-looking information. Estimation of ECL reflects an
unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is
determined with the respective risks of default occurring as

the weights.

Generally, the ECL is estimated as the difference between
all contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the
Group expects to receive, discounted at the effective

interest rate determined at initial recognition.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss for all financial
instruments by adjusting their carrying amount, with the
exception of trade and other receivables where the
corresponding adjustment is recognised through a loss

allowance account.

Classification and subsequent measurement and
impairment of financial assets (before application of
HKFRS 9 on 1st January, 2018)

Financial assets are classified into the following specified
categories: available-for-sale financial assets and loans and
receivables. The classification depends on the nature and
purpose of the financial assets and is determined at the

time of initial recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
S5 A R B G
For the year ended 31st December, 2018 #( % —ZF— /\4F+_H =+—H ILF &

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement and
impairment of financial assets (before application of
HKFRS 9 on 1st January, 2018) (Continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables (including trade and other
receivables, pledged bank deposits, amounts due from
associates and cash and bank balances) are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market. Subsequent to initial
recognition, loans and receivables are carried at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less any identified

impairment losses.

Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio of
receivables could include that Group’s past experience of
collecting payments, significant financial difficulty of the
issuer or counterparty, default or delinquency in interest or
principal payments, the borrower being probable to enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation, observable changes
in national or local economic conditions that correlate with

default on receivables.

An impairment loss is recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss when there is objective evidence
that the loans and receivables are impaired, and is measured
as the difference between the carrying amount and the
present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted

at the original effective interest rate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Ao £ BV 255 o i

For the year ended 31st December, 2018 #% —%F— /\4F+_H =+—H ILFJF

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement and
impairment of financial assets (before application of
HKFRS 9 on 1st January, 2018) (Continued)

Loans and receivables (Continued)

The carrying amounts of the loans and receivables are
reduced by the impairment loss directly with the exception
of trade and other receivables, where the carrying amount
is reduced through the use of an allowance account.
Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance account
are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss. When trade and other receivables are considered
uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance
account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
written off are credited to the consolidated statement of

profit or loss.

Impairment losses are reversed in subsequent periods when
an increase in the recoverable amount can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was
recognised, subject to a restriction that the carrying amount
of the loans and receivables at the date the impairment is
reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost would

have been had the impairment not been recognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
S5 A R B G
For the year ended 31st December, 2018 #( % —ZF— /\4F+_H =+—H ILF &

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement and
impairment of financial assets (before application of
HKFRS 9 on 1st January, 2018) (Continued)

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that
are either designated or not classified as financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss, held-for-maturity

investments and loans and receivables.

Available-for-sale financial assets are measured at fair value
at the end of the reporting period except for equity
investments that do not have a quoted market price in an
active market. Changes in fair value are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in investment
reserve, until the financial asset is disposed of or is
determined to be impaired, at which time, the cumulative
gain or loss previously accumulated in investment reserve is

reclassified to the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Available-for-sale equity investments that do not have a
quoted market price in an active market and whose fair
value cannot be reliably measured are measured at cost less
any identified impairment losses at the end of the reporting
period. An impairment loss is recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss when there is
objective evidence that the asset is impaired. The amount
of the impairment loss is measured as the difference
between the carrying amount of the asset and the present
value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the
current market rate of return for a similar financial asset.
Such impairment losses will not reverse in subsequent

periods.

Tomson Group Limited % i £E B 4 FR /A 7]

4. EREGHEBUOR )

@ T H )
M B & E (4

5 & 2 R At R
B =F—NE—H—HEH
(7 78 1 % 2 77 R ) SE99E 2 Fir)
(%)

Al i) B R B

(At & B & ) 3 R AT A2 TH
H > HEAG 2 5l it i B 5
BOR B A T AP EFFABRE Z
MBEEE] THRAZANZRE]
DA R T8k S E W AR 3k

Tt AR > T It e R TR 1
NFERNR > MRS BTG B
W35 W 2 A B E RS - AP H
2 53 B S A 22 T A 2 1) AfE R AL
BB AT AR M EE
B 4 W E A BT IR > i B
AR R BCE AN R FE 2 Bl
SEREEN B EA G HEE -

TE I B8 T 45 30 48 17 45 B HLOR RE R
N h - /NS S AR i
B R R % AR AT AT E
BB s R R o E A R B RR
W% B > J el (s 1R
B G 1R R KRR o W(E S B S A
LA 7 MR T (L B 2 0T 5 O R
A7 5 [ R B2 A w AR B
TR BE 2 AR o ZF W EE
AR B A AR 0 [ 3¢ ]



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31st December, 2018 # % —.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement and
impairment of financial assets (before application of
HKFRS 9 on 1st January, 2018) (Continued)

Available-for-sale financial assets (Continued)

A significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of an
available-for-sale equity investment below its cost is
considered to be objective evidence of impairment. Any
impairment losses on available-for-sale financial assets are
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity investments
will not reverse in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss in subsequent periods. Any increase in fair value
subsequent to impairment loss is recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in investment

reserve.
Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another

entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised
cost, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the sum of the consideration received and receivable is

recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

On derecognition of an investment in equity instrument
which the Group has elected on initial recognition to
measure at FVTOCI upon application of HKFRS 9, the
cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the
investments reserve is not reclassified to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, but is transferred to retained

earnings.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
S5 A R B G
For the year ended 31st December, 2018 #( % —ZF— /\4F+_H =+—H ILF &

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4. EEGFHBUR @)

POLICIES (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are
classified according to the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial

liability and an equity instrument.
Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of the Group after deducting
all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the
Company are recorded at the proceeds received, net of

direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instrument is
recognised and deducted directly in share capital for par
value and in share premium for total amount paid in excess
of par value. The same amount recognised in share capital
will be transferred from retained earnings to capital
redemption reserve. No gain or loss is recognised in
consolidated statement of profit or loss on the purchase,
sale, issue or cancellation of the Company’s own equity

instruments.
Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at

amortised cost, using the effective interest method.
Derecognition of financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are derecognised when and only when,
the obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired.
The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable is recognised in the consolidated statement of

profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Ao £ BV 255 o i

For the year ended 31st December, 2018 #% —%F— /\4F+_H =+—H ILFJF

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment losses other than goodwill and
financial assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its assets to determine whether there is
any indication that those assets have suffered an

impairment loss.

The recoverable amount of its assets are estimated
individually, when it is not possible to estimate
individually, the Group estimates the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.
When a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be
identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual
cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to the
smallest group of cash-generating units for which a

reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to
sell and value in use. If the recoverable amount of an asset
(or a cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is
reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is

recognised as an expense immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount,
but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or a
cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an

impairment loss is recognised as income immediately.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
S5 A R B G
For the year ended 31st December, 2018 #( % —ZF— /\4F+_H =+—H ILF &

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals

and/or for capital appreciation.

On initial recognition, investment properties are measured
at cost, including any directly attributable expenditure.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are
measured at their fair values using the fair value model.
Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of
investment property are included in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss for the period in which they

arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use or no future economic benefits is expected from
its disposals. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of
the asset (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss in

the year in which the item is derecognised.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, including leasehold land
and buildings held for use in the production or supply of
goods or services, or for administrative purposes other than
construction work-in-progress, are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment

losses, if any.

Construction work-in-progress is stated at cost less any
identified impairment loss. When the construction is
completed and the asset is available for use, the related cost
is transferred to appropriate category of property, plant and
equipment and depreciated in accordance with the

following policy.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31st December, 2018 # % —.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of
assets other than construction work-in-progress less than
their residual values over their estimated useful lives, using

the straight-line method.

If an item of property, plant and equipment becomes an
investment property because its use has changed as
evidenced by end of owner-occupation, any difference
between the carrying amount and the fair value of that item
at the date of transfer is recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in revaluation reserve. On the
subsequent sale or retirement of the asset, the relevant
revaluation reserve will be transferred directly to retained

earnings.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the item) is included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss in the year in which

the item is derecognised.

Properties held for sale/properties under
development (current asset)

Properties held for sale/properties under development
(current asset) are stated at the lower of cost/deemed cost
and estimated net realisable value. Properties under
development which are intended for sale in the ordinary
course of business upon completion are classified as current

assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
S5 A R B G
For the year ended 31st December, 2018 #( % —ZF— /\4F+_H =+—H ILF &

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, are
capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. Capitalisation
of such borrowing costs ceases when the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.
Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for

capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss in the year in which they are

incurred.

Revenue from contracts with customers

Under HKFRS 15, the Group recognises revenue when (or
as) a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control”
of the goods or services underlying the particular

performance obligation is transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a goods or service (or
a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of

distinct goods or services that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised
over time by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation if one of

the following criteria is met:

. the customer simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefits provided by the Group’s performance as
the Group performs;

. the Group’s performance creates and enhances an
asset that the customer controls as the Group

performs; or
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Ao £ BV 255 o i

For the year ended 31st December, 2018 #% —%F— /\4F+_H =+—H ILFJF

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

. the Group’s performance does not create an asset with
an alternative use to the Group and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment for performance

completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when
the customer obtains control of the distinct goods or

service.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to
transfer goods or services to a customer from which the
Group has received consideration (or an amount of

consideration is due) from customer.

The progress towards complete satisfaction of a
performance obligation is measured based on output
method, which is to recognise revenue on the basis of direct
measurements of the value of the goods or services
transferred to the customer to date relative to the
remaining goods or services promised under the contract,
that best depict the Group’s performance in transferring

control of goods or services.

Incremental costs of obtaining a contract are those costs
that the Group incurs to obtain a contract with a customer
that it would not have incurred if the contract had not

been obtained.

The Group recognises sales commissions as an asset if it
expects to recover these costs. The asset so recognised is
subsequently charged to the consolidated statement of
profit or loss when the Group transfers to the customer of

the relevant goods to which the assets relate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
S5 A R B G
For the year ended 31st December, 2018 #( % —ZF— /\4F+_H =+—H ILF &

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue recognition (prior to 1st January, 2018)

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable for
goods sold and services provided in the normal course of
business, net of discount. Revenue is recognised when the
amount of revenue can be reliably measured; when it is
probable that future economic benefits will flow to the
Group and when specific criteria have been met for each of

the Group’s activities, as described below.

When properties are developed for sale, income is
recognised only when the respective properties have been
completed and delivered to the buyers. Payments received
from purchasers prior to this stage are recorded as receipts
in advance under current liabilities. Revenue from sale of
goods is recognised when the goods are delivered and title
has passed. Revenue from provision of services is recognised
when the services are rendered. Property management fee
income is recognised on an appropriate basis over the

relevant period in which the services are rendered.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Ao £ BV 255 o i

For the year ended 31st December, 2018 #% —%F— /\4F+_H =+—H ILFJF

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are
recorded in the respective functional currency (i.e. the
currency of the primary economic environment in which
the entity operates) at the rates of exchanges prevailing on
the dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies

are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date.

Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised in
consolidated statement of profit or loss in the period in
which they arise except for exchange differences on
monetary items receivable from or payable to a foreign
operation for which settlement is neither planned nor likely
to occur (therefore forming part of the net investment in
the foreign operation), which are recognised initially in
other comprehensive income and reclassified from equity to
the consolidated statement of profit or loss on disposal or
partial disposal of the Group’s interest in associates/a joint

venture.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars (“HKD?”)) at the rate of
exchange prevailing at the end of the reporting period, and
their income and expenses are translated at the average
exchange rates for the year, unless exchange rates fluctuate
significantly during the period, in which case, the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of transactions are used.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under
the heading of foreign currencies translation reserves
(attributed to non-controlling interests as appropriate).
Such exchange differences accumulated in equity in respect
of that operations attributable to the owners of the
Company are reclassified to the consolidated statement of
profit or loss in the period in which the foreign operation

is disposed of.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
S5 A R B G
For the year ended 31st December, 2018 #( % —ZF— /\4F+_H =+—H ILF &

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Taxation

Taxation represents the sum of the tax currently payable

and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit before taxation
because it excludes items of income or expense that are
taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes
items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s
liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of

the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
base used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred
tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognised
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be
available against which deductible temporary differences
can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised
if the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the
initial recognition (other than in a business combination)
of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects

neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and
interests in associates and joint ventures, except where the
Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax
assets arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments and interests are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will
be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the
benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected

to reverse in the foreseeable future.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31st December, 2018 #% —%F— /\4F+_H =+—H ILFJF

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be

recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period when the
liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively

enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount

of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred taxes for investment
properties that are measured using the fair value model, the
carrying amounts of such properties are presumed to be
recovered entirely through sale, unless the presumption is
rebutted. The presumption is rebutted when the
investment property is depreciable and is held within a
business model whose objective is to consume substantially
all of the economic benefits embodied in the investment
property over time. If the presumption is rebutted, deferred
tax for such investment properties are measured in
accordance with the general principles set out in HKAS 12
“Income Taxes” (i.e. based on the expected manner as to

how the properties will be recovered).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
S5 A R B G
For the year ended 31st December, 2018 #( % —ZF— /\4F+_H =+—H ILF &

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority and the Group
intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net

basis.

Current tax and deferred tax are recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss, except when they
relate to items charged or credited directly to other
comprehensive income, in which case the current and
deferred tax are also recognised in other comprehensive

income.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is calculated using the weighted average

method.

Share-based payment transactions

The fair value of services received determined by reference
to the fair value of share options granted at the grant date
is recognised as an expense in full at the grant date when
the share options granted vest immediately, with a
corresponding increase in share option reserve. If a director
or an employee chooses to exercise options, the related
share option reserve is transferred to share premium. When
the share options are forfeited after the vesting date or are
still not exercised at the expiry date, the related share

option reserve is transferred directly to retained earnings.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31st December, 2018 #% —%F— /\4F+_H =+—H ILFJF

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of
the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as

operating leases.
The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss on a straight-line

basis over the terms of the relevant lease.
The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the terms of the relevant lease.
Benefits received and receivable as an incentive to enter
into an operating lease are recognised as a reduction of

rental expense over the lease terms on a straight-line basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
S5 A R B G
For the year ended 31st December, 2018 #( % —ZF— /\4F+_H =+—H ILF &

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Leasing (Continued)
Leasehold land and building

When the Group makes payments for a property interest
which includes both leasehold land and building elements,
the Group assesses the classification of each element as a
finance or an operating lease separately based on the
assessment as to whether substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of each element have been
transferred to the Group, unless it is clear that both
elements are operating leases, in which case the entire lease
is classified as an operating lease. Specifically, the
consideration (including any lump-sum upfront payments)
are allocated between the leasehold land and the building
elements in proportion to the relative fair values of the
leasehold interests in the land element and building

element at initial recognition.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be
made reliably, interest in leaschold land that is accounted
for as an operating lease is presented as “lease premium for
land” in the consolidated statement of financial position
and is amortised over the lease terms on a straight-line basis
except for those that are classified and accounted for as

investment properties under the fair value model.

Retirement benefit cost

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit
schemes are charged as expenses when employees have

rendered service entitling them to the contributions.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognisd at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid as
and when employees rendered the services. All the
short-term employee benefits are recognised as an expense
unless another HKFRS requires or permits the inclusion of

the benefit in the cost of an asset.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31st December, 2018 #% —%F— /\4F+_H =+—H ILFJF

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES
OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in Note 4, the Directors of the
Company are required to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and other factors that are considered
to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these

estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both

current and future periods.

Critical judgements in applying accounting
policies

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those
involving estimations (see below), that the Directors of the
Company have made in the process of applying the
Group’s accounting policies and that have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the

consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
S5 A R B G
For the year ended 31st December, 2018 #( % —ZF— /\4F+_H =+—H ILF &

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES
OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

(Continued)

Critical judgements in applying accounting
policies (Continued)

Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax arising from
investment properties that are measured using the fair value
model, the Directors of the Company have reviewed the
Group’s investment property portfolios and concluded that
the Group’s investment properties are held under a business
model whose objective is to consume substantially all of the
economic benefits embodied in the investment properties
over time. Therefore, in measuring the Group’s deferred
taxation on investment properties, the Directors of the
Company have determined whether the presumption that
the carrying amounts of investment properties measured
using the fair value model are recovered entirely through
sale is rebutted and the Group has recognised deferred tax
on changes in fair value of investment properties on the
basis that the deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that
will follow from the manner in which the Group expects at
the end of the reporting period to recover the carrying

amount of the investment properties.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumption concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at
the date of reporting period, that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of

assets and liabilities within the next financial year.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31st December, 2018 #% —%F— /\4F+_H =+—H ILFJF

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES
OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

Land appreciation tax (“LAT”)

The Group is subject to LAT in the Mainland China.
However, the implementation and settlement of the tax
vary amongst different jurisdictions in various cities in the
Mainland China and the Group has not finalised its LAT
calculation and payments with any local tax authorities in
the Mainland China. Accordingly, significant judgement is
required in determining the amount of the LAT and its
related income tax provisions. LAT has been provided at
ranges of progressive rates of the appreciation value, with
certain allowable deductions including land costs,
borrowing costs and the relevant property development
expenditures, which are the key inputs in the calculation of
LAT, the Group recognised the LAT based on
management’s best estimates. The final tax outcome could
be different from the amounts that were initially recorded,
and these differences will have impact on the income tax
provisions in the periods in which such tax is finalised with
local tax authorities. The carrying amount of Group’s LAT
provision at 31st December, 2018 was HK$4,436,804,000
(2017: HK$4,551,373,000).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
S5 A R B G
For the year ended 31st December, 2018 #( % —ZF— /\4F+_H =+—H ILF &

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES
OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

Net realisable value assessment of properties under
development and properties held for sale

Properties under development and properties held for sale
are measured at the lower of cost or net realisable value.
Net realisable value is determined by reference to Directors’
estimates on future selling prices based on the prevailing
market condition. The future selling prices are estimated by
reference to the recent selling prices of similar properties in
the same project or relevant locations. In addition,
management estimated the future costs to complete the
properties under development by reference to the actual
development cost of the Group’s other completed projects,
adjusted by certain current market data. The Group has
properties under development and properties held for sale
in Shanghai and Macau, which exposes the Group to
certain price risk. If the net realisable value is less than the
cost, write-down of the properties under development and
properties held for sale has to be made. Management is
optimistic about the prospect of the Group’s investment in
the property sector and it has been cautious in formulating
and reviewing regularly the Group’s business plan. The
carrying amount of Group’s properties under development
and properties held for sale at 31st December, 2018 was
HK$3,449,254,000 and HK$2,117,661,000 (2017:
HK$3,554,039,000 and 2,278,099,000) respectively.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31st December, 2018 #% —%F— /\4F+_H =+—H ILFJF

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES
OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

Valuation of investment properties

Investment properties are carried in the consolidated
statement of financial position at 31st December, 2018 at
their fair values, details of which are disclosed in Note 16.
The fair value of the investment properties was determined
by reference to valuations conducted on these properties by
an independent firm of qualified professional valuers using
investment approach. Property valuation techniques involve
significant unobservable input including reversionary yield,
taking into account annual market rental income and unit
market value of comparable properties. Favourable or
unfavourable changes to these assumptions may result in
changes in the fair value of the Group’s investment
properties and corresponding adjustments to the changes in
fair value reported in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss. The carrying amount of Group’s investment
properties at 31st December, 2018 was HK$7,980,161,000
(2017: HK$8,061,471,000).

Valuation of unlisted equity instruments

Unlisted equity instruments are measured at fair values
being determined based on unobservable inputs using
valuation techniques. Judgements and estimation are
required in establishing the relevant valuation techniques
and the relevant inputs thereof. Changes in assumptions
relating to these factors could affect the reported fair values
of the instruments. The carrying amount of Group’s
unlisted equity instruments at 31st December, 2018 was

HK$287,739,000 (2017: HK$48,091,000).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
S5 A R B G
For the year ended 31st December, 2018 #( % —ZF— /\4F+_H =+—H ILF &

GROSS PROCEEDS FROM
OPERATIONS AND REVENUE

Revenue represents the aggregate of revenue under the

following headings:

(i) Property investment
= GCreSCntS revenue frOm pl’OpCl’ty management

and rental income

(ii) Property development and trading
= represents gross revenue received and receivable

from sales of properties

(iii) PVC operations
= represents the gross revenue from sale of PVC

pipes and fittings

(iv) Leisure
—  represents the income from golf club operations

and its related services

(v) Media and entertainment
—  represents the gross revenue received and
receivable from investment in the production of
live entertainment shows, film distribution and

related income

Gross proceeds from operations include the gross proceeds
and dividend income received and receivable from financial
assets at FVTPL under the business of securities trading, in

addition to the above aggregated revenue.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
LR A R B G
For the year ended 31st December, 2018 #% —%F— /\4F+_H =+—H ILFJF

6. GROSS PROCEEDS FROM 6. A Woa B EWNA )
OPERATIONS AND REVENUE
(Continued)
Revenue and gross proceeds from each type of business for gL - /N\FE+_HA=+—HIk
the year ended 31st December, 2018 consist of the A A R E S Z I B R 4 AR
following: FHEHE T 545 -
2018 2017
—F2 -0\ SR
HK$’000 HK$°000
T R
Revenue from sale of properties HEYZEZ A 366,585 1,803,193
Revenue from sale of goods FHE M Z A 1,296 1,114
Revenue from rendering of services = T R R g SR AR5
from golf club operations Z YA 40,344 42,674
Revenue from property management fee WEEHE A 37,910 37,276
Revenue from media and entertainment TEERE T B 4 ST 2 A
business 8,147 4,695
Revenue from contracts with customers REHEPGHZWA 454,282 1,888,952
Revenue from property rental L E A N 223,812 218,413
Total revenue A 678,094 2,107,365

Gross proceeds from sale of and dividend N FEFI ARG Z

income from financial assets at FVTPL BB & 2 e R
A Z M 2 6,735 60,099
Gross proceeds from operations 878 W A 684,829 2,167,464
The Group’s revenue from contracts with customers are REFHREEEF GLZIA EER
mainly derived from the Mainland China except for B A > ME AR B S Y G
revenue from media and entertainment business which are 153 A SE RS A I Y 2 T ZE B
derived in Hong Kong and certain properties sales in BRAN (AN sE7 0 PR 88) -

Macau as disclosed in Note 7.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
S5 A R B G
For the year ended 31st December, 2018 #( % —ZF— /\4F+_H =+—H ILF &

6. GROSS PROCEEDS FROM

OPERATIONS AND REVENUE
(Continued)

Performance obligation for contracts with
customers

Revenue from rendering of property management fee is
recognised over time as income when the services and
facilities are provided. Other revenue from contracts with
customers are recognised at a point in time when customer
obtains control of the distinct goods and services. For the
revenue from sale of properties, the payment term is less
than one year upon signing the sales and purchase

agreement.

Transaction price allocated to the remaining
performance obligation for contracts with
customers

Except for the revenue from property management fee, all
other revenue from contracts with customers are contracted

for periods of one year or less.

Contracts for property management services are typically
have a more than one year non-cancellable term in which
the Group bills a fixed amount each month according to

the terms.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
LR A R B G
For the year ended 31st December, 2018 #% —%F— /\4F+_H =+—H ILFJF

SEGMENT INFORMATION 7. ABEFR
The Group’s operating and reportable segments are based A5 B 2 B RO T R
on information reported to the chief operating decision U873 e e 3E A RTAL B B9 ) 28
makers, the Executive Directors of the Company, for the PR E (AR A RFATHESE) ik
purposes of resources allocation and performance 2GR E o BR B REC() £ (v)
assessment. In addition to those set out in Note 6(i) to (v), Ab > A 4E B R BB R 0 B S R B R
the Group’s operating segments under HKFRS 8 HIY 558505 [ /8 3 70 J | R 2 B i )
“Operating Segments” include securities trading segment BB GFEE SR A PFHEFSARGEZ
which is dealing in financial assets at FVTPL. MBEEBEHFEENH -
2018 —B—N\F

Property

Property  Development PVC Mediaand ~ Securities
Investment ~ and Trading  Operations Leisure Entertainment Trading Total
HES T Rk

B34 ki BBRE MWRE  BRRE WERHE frit
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS000  HEKS000  HKS'000
T T T R T Tin T

GROSS PROCEEDS e

FROM OPERATIONS

- SEGMENT REVENUE - A 261,722 366,585 1,296 40,344 8,147 6735 684,829
RESULTS £ |
Segment profic (loss) MR (BR) 491,359 78,985 @30 (6877) (6,836) M 536503
Other unallocated income EAFHERA 250,967
Unallocated expenses TR (51,255)
Finance costs MEER (51,717)

084,518

Share of results of associates ElBanmz 5 (560)
Share of result of a joint venture Elh—RAELE7 25 16,764
Profit before taxation BBt Al 700,722
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
S5 A R B G
For the year ended 31st December, 2018 #( % —ZF— /\4F+_H =+—H ILF &

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 7. BRER @

2017 SRSl o
Property
Property  Development PVC Mediaand  Securities
Investment ~ and Trading ~ Operations Leisure  Entertainment Trading Total
B KER
WERE REE EBER O MREE  REEEK EHEE At
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000
ik Tk T T T T ik
GROSS PROCEEDS FROM BEW A
OPERATIONS
- SEGMENT REVENUE -l 255,689 1,803,193 1114 4,674 4,695 60,09 2,167,464
RESULTS £ |
Segment profit (loss) MR (B8) 8102 965,497 (58)  (33,734) (1,724) 10061 1,267,615
Other unallocated income EATAEIRA 1,266,113
Unallocated expenses ATHERY (58,519)
Finance costs MEER (86,180)
2,389,029
Share of results of associates [l L INVE S (888)
Share of result of a joine venture — FEIF—H B BLELER 12,364
Profit before taxation Nl 2,400,505

Except for the presentation of segment revenue which is
different from the reported revenue in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, the accounting policies of the
operating segments are the same as the Group’s accounting
policies described in Note 4. For details of revenue from
each type of business and reconciliation of segment revenue
to the Group’s revenue of HK$678,094,000 (2017:
HK$2,107,365,000), please refer to Note 6.

Segment profit (loss) represents the results by each segment
without allocation of central administration costs, directors’
salaries, share of results of associates and a joint venture,
other non-recurring income and expenses and finance costs.
This is the measure reported to the Executive Directors for
the purposes of resource allocation and performance

assessment.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Ao £ BV 255 o i

For the year ended 31st December, 2018 #% —%F— /\4F+_H =+—H ILFJF

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Segment assets and liabilities are not presented as the chief
operating decision makers review the consolidated financial
position of the Group as a whole to assess their
performance. Management focuses more on the results of

the Group.

Other Information

Amounts included in the measure of segment profit or loss:

7. BFER )
TESEREE UM A SR
B BT R DA A R

MR > Bl 25 BB E KA
R o G E FE A 2 A -

4t %

8 BHE 4 2 B A

pa(l(3

Property
Property  Development PVC Media and Securities
Investment ~ and Trading  Operations Leisure ~Entertainment Trading  Unallocated Total
ES: iRk
LIES 1Y R#g WBER MWER BREE O RRHE ATAE wit
HEK$000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$°000 HK$000 HKS$'000 HK$°000
T Tt Tt T Tt Tt T T
2018 e X
Depreciation of propery, VEN TR
plant and equipment 95 17,032 70 14,297 122 - 385 32,001
Amortisation of lease TR EE R
premium for land - - - 5,749 - - 5 5,754
Impairment losses on trade (B ) R AE A
and other receivables B AR R
(reversed) recognised R WilEER (999) - (741) - 519 - 548 (673)
Gain on fair value changes REMEAT HEH R
of investment properties EAZ WA 318,311 - - - - - - 318,311
Gain on fair value changes of  FAT-HFARE L
financial assets at FVTPL BHERATHRE
B - - - - - 37 - 37
2017 -t
Depreciation of property, VES T
plant and equipment 99 4137 84 15,082 - - 367 19,769
Amortisation of lease LA EER B
premium for land = = - 6,129 - - 5 6,134
Impairment losses on trade and 5 FI YU B 53 IR Ik
other receivables reversed e v g 1,300 - 073 - - - - 1,979
Gain on fair value changes RENEAT HEH N
of investment properties EE e 154,362 - - - - - - 154,862
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
S5 A R B G
For the year ended 31st December, 2018 #( % —ZF— /\4F+_H =+—H ILF &

Ve

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Information about Major Customers

For the year ended 31st December, 2018, revenue from
three single customers in property development and trading
segment amounted to HK$160,246,000, HK$97,558,000
and HK$92,799,000 which contributed to approximately
23.63%, 14.39% and 13.69% respectively, of the Group’s

total revenue.

For the year ended 31st December, 2017, revenue from a
single customer in property development and trading
segment amounted to HK$236,923,000 which contributed
to approximately 11.24% of the Group’s total revenue.

Geographical Information

The Group’s operations are located in Hong Kong, Macau
and Mainland China.

The Group’s revenue from external customers based on the
location of the operations:

7. wBEFR @)

HHEEEPZER

BT — N AR e Sl
R R EEREREE S B RK
B = s e e e i e
160,246,000% JC ~ 97,558,000%% JG
592,799,000 7T > 43 Hll Al A< 4E (5]
Z B B R £923.63% ~ 14.39% K&
13.69% °

BE_F—LFT+-_H=1+—HIE
FE RN ERRLEE S
HARE - —-FFZWAL
236,923,000%5 7T > {5 4% £ [#] 2 Z8k
A BB #111.24%

Y 1 5 28 B

AL 2 SEHS LR A P
B A o

AREEE HHINE T Z AR
B

2018 2017
—B-N\E FE-LF

HK$’000 HK$°000

T# T T T

Hong Kong Hi 8,147 4,695
Macau B[ 1,500 338,657
Mainland China R ] A Hb 668,447 1,764,013
678,094 2,107,365

The Group’s non-current assets, excluding deferred tax
assets, amounts due from associates and a joint venture,
club debentures, pledged bank deposits and equity
instruments at FVTOCI/available-for-sale investments,
amounted to HK$8,417,863,000 (2017: HK$8,546,585,000).
By geographical location, the assets and operation of the
associates and a joint venture are substantially situated in

the Mainland China.

Analysis of Group’s revenue by each type of business is set
out in Note 6.

Tomson Group Limited % i £E B 4 FR /A 7]

AEEZ B EE O 45 % T
BEEE BWEAAA—FREER
ERF - ghES - IKHBRITAER
S & i /N |- N W R T ol i
ATH afithEHE) &t
8,417,863,000% jo (& — L 4F :
8,546,585,000%5 JC) o Fi¢ Hb [ # 53 >
B ANmE—-FAEMEZERERK
AR S T B P B A e

A% G T 25 M SR WO 5 BT S B
A6 o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
LR A R B G
For the year ended 31st December, 2018 #% —%F— /\4F+_H =+—H ILFJF

OTHER INCOME 8. Ht A
2018 2017
RN\ —E L
HK$’000 HK$’000
Tt Tt
Other income included: HAh g A5 :
Interest income FLE WA 89,846 53,183
Dividends from available-for-sale At R E
investments B S A
— listed AT - 12,784
— unlisted i A e - 73,714
Dividends from equity instruments at i/ | = N = R R TN
FVTOCI Z A TREZ B EIRA
— listed = IEfp 11,505 -
— unlisted — == BT 78,888 2
OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES 9. H itk i K s 18
2018 2017
“E-)NE R L
HK$’000 HK$°000
T# T T
Net impairment losses on trade and other 5% ] B UL & 5 IR 3k M
receivables reversed A R Wi R 3k 2
CRIEY TR I=REiK 673 1,979
Net gain on disposal/write off of property, Y 2 R K
plant and equipment B PR E AL ] 199 9
Net exchange (loss) gain BEE b0, (JE5 48 e 4 9 2H (1,662) 19,712
Gain on liquidation of a subsidiary A — X ME -~ A 2 i - 8,783
(790) 30,483
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
S5 A R B G
For the year ended 31st December, 2018 #( % —ZF— /\4F+_H =+—H ILF &

10. Hi 8 Bt 8 2 ¥

RFE—LFENA > AEE SN
WL o =07 A K e G M E A "l R
P B SO RO ) SO B B
KFE R ERMZEEFEWT

10. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

In August 2017, the Group completed the disposal of its
wholly-owned subsidiary, Tianjin Tomson Development
Co., Ltd. and its subsidiary to an independent third party.

The net assets at the date of disposal were as follows:

HK$’000
T
Net consideration received in cash and EH 4 KB 45 EEH
cash equivalents Z RAB 5 1,056,288
Bills receivable FEWCE 5 1,222,798
Total consideration received B AR A AaRE 2,279,086
Analysis of assets and liabilities over which KRV EE R AT
control was lost:
Property, plant and equipments Y2k ~ s Kkt 638
Deferred tax assets % E R TEUE 3,907
Properties held for sale FrEYE 2,744,296
Trade and other receivables and prepayments R 52 5 Bk~ LAt B iR K
K wEA A 64,534
Cash and bank balances Bl S RAT &G R 730,349
Trade and other payable and accruals WEAS B S MRk ~ HoA R A MRk
KA (858,313)
Receipts in advance FE U R IE (142,203)
Taxation i JE (25,095)
Net assets disposal of & EE B 2,518,113
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Ao £ BV 255 o i

For the year ended 31st December, 2018 #% —%F— /\4F+_H =+—H ILFJF

10. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

10. H 8 bt & 2 ¥ )

(Continued)
HK$°000
T T
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries iR AR P &
Total consideration received B A8 Aa 8 2,279,086
Net assets disposed of A (2,518,113)
Non-controlling interests FF 122 e e SR HE 4 728,464
Released statutory surplus reserve figR IR 125 0 L f AR 15,509
Released foreign currencies translation reserve fiFf [ 1 B o0 4t 5t A 46,489
Gain on disposal B A 551,435
Net cash inflow on disposal of subsidiaries AR B A 6l 2
BREeEwAG#
Net consideration received in cash and S 4 R 4% HEER
cash equivalents Z RIEE%E 1,056,288
Less: cash and cash equivalent balances W BB e KB &S EEE
disposed of Zk fi (730,349)
325,939
The bills receivable was included in trade and other JRE AT B2 o T > JHC At I A R ik M T

receivables and prepayments which was settled in February i R TE AL AR ) R i O R &
2018. — /NAE T #50 o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B £ BV 255 e o P

For the year ended 31st December, 2018 #( % —ZF— /\4F+_H =+—H ILF &

11. FINANCE COSTS

11. & EH

2018 2017
“ENE SFELF
HK$’000 HK$’000
T T
Interest on borrowings AR 43,544 86,180
Other finance charges oAt 7 & 2 8,173 -
51,717 86,180
12. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 12. B B i i A1
2018 2017
“E®NE CE L
HK$’000 HK$’O(LO
Tl T
Profit before taxation has been arrived B B A 6 A1 2 FOBR
at after charging:
Staff costs EIJﬂEZIK 71,829 80,368
Retirement benefit scheme contributions B AR AE A 5T E 4t K 6,744 7,461
Total staff costs (Note 1) BB TR (f7E1) 78,573 87,829
Auditors’ remuneration % SCH N 4 : 2,898 2,808
Depreciation of property, Y3 - R Ko
plant and equipment 32,001 19,769
Amortisation of lease premium for land iiﬂﬁﬂ%%ﬁﬁ 1 5
(included in administrative expenses) (ﬁ')\i?ﬂ%ﬂq) 5,754 6,134
Impairment of film distribution R BT REWE
rights (included in cost of sales) (FH A 855 iAs) 4,792 =
Other selling expense ﬁf’@ R
(included in selling expenses) (Note 2) (FrASEZER)
(Hfit2) 65,177 -
Minimum lease payment under KBTS 2 R AR &
operating leases . 10,833 10,590
Cost of inventories recognised as expenses TR B 2 A7 B A 122,561 678,891
and after crediting: A EFEA
Gross rental income from investment SRS L E Vit AL K|
properties 223,812 218,413
Less: direct operating expenses from W R E AHBERAZ
investment properties that generated BEYEZ HiE
rental income during the year w598 (15,228) (15,526)
Net rental income from investment Tﬁ%{#@%*ﬂé‘z\q&)\
properties R 208,584 202,887

Tomson Group Limited 5 B 4 [ 45 FRA 7]




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
LR A R B G
For the year ended 31st December, 2018 #% —%F— /\4F+_H =+—H ILFJF

12. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 12. B B A & A )
(Continued)
Note 1: BT -
The total staff costs included emoluments paid to Directors BE T RABIENMNTAANFESE 2
of the Company as follows: 40T
Salaries,

allowances Employer’s
and other contribution

benefits  to pension Total
Fees (Note (2)) scheme emoluments
K& BEzZ
HAmA Bk
Name of Director HHEH 4 (K7 (a) % P 4 48 3

HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000
T# T# T#T T

2018 “E NG
Executive Directors WiTEF
Madam Hsu Feng th it
(Managing Director) (EFEKH) - 13,575 - 13,575
Mr Albert Tong (o ERCP - 3,685 18 3,703
Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles R eta ) - 5,468 18 5,486
Mr Yeung Kam Hoi 1 i ¥ S AR - 2,402 - 2,402
Independent Non-Executive By ES
Directors
Mr Cheung Siu Ping, Oscar [ 163 - - 163
Mr Lee Chan Fai 2R 163 - - 163
Mr Sean S ] Wang EORIEE 163 - - 163

489 25,130 36 25,655
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
S5 A R B G
For the year ended 31st December, 2018 #( % —ZF— /\4F+_H =+—H ILF &

12. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

(Continued)

Note 1: (Continued)

12. BB il i A )

Mtztn - (4)

Salaries,
allowances  Employer’s

and other contribution

benefits  to pension Total
Fees (Note (a)) scheme emoluments
L BEZ
HAtEA  BIAEH
Name of Director HHIEH Wwe  (Bita) 3  MEEH
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
THTT THIT THTC THIT
2017 e v
Executive Directors irdE S
Madam Hsu Feng e MLt
(Managing Director) (S A7) = 12,234 = 12,234
Mr Albert Tong A - 3,789 18 3,807
Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles BT EEE - 5,598 18 5,616
Mr Yeung Kam Hoi 1 858 e 4 - 2,419 - 2,419
Independent Non-Executive BT ESE
Directors
Mr Cheung Siu Ping, Oscar i KT S A 150 — — 150
Mr Lee Chan Fai 2B ST 150 - - 150
Mr Sean S ] Wang o @l 150 - — 150
450 24,040 36 24,526
Note (a): Other benefits include the market rentals of Mlat@) - HALEFR EHEEm L+

directors’ quarters occupied by Madam Hsu
Feng, Mr Albert Tong and Mr Tong Chi Kar

Charles as their residence.

No Director waived any emoluments for both years.

The Executive Directors’ emoluments shown above were

for their services in connection with the management of the

affairs of

the Group. The Independent Non-Executive

Directors’ emoluments shown above were their

remunerati

on as Directors of the Company.

Tomson Group Limited 5 B 4 [ 45 FRA 7]
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For the year ended 31st December, 2018 #% —%F— /\4F+_H =+—H ILFJF

12. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

(Continued)
Note 1: (Continued)

Senior management only comprises the Executive Directors
listed above, so no separate disclosure for remuneration of

senior management is presented.

During the year, the five highest paid individuals of the
Group included four (2017: four) Executive Directors
whose emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented
above. The emolument of remaining highest paid

individual is as below.

12. BB il i A o)

Mttt « (4E)

AR BN BB RS S 2 B
FreE s > W I 8 S i iR R AR
NEBZHiM o

RN o ASE I T A5 B T L
WA (—F L4 L) JAT

o WEZMEC R L3 R
R o BR T fe BN L B

2018 2017

R -NE SFLF

HK$’000 HK$°000

T# T T T

Salaries, allowances and other benefits Bra o HEG M A AR A 1,347 1,695
Retirement benefit scheme contributions AR ARAE FFE 18 18
1,365 1,713

Note 2:

During the year ended 31st December, 2018, a non-wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company entered into an
arbitration agreement with its former property project
manager in connection with a claim arising from a project

management agreement.

Subsequent to the year ended 31st December, 2018, the
Arbitral Tribunal determined and declared that the
non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company is liable to
pay a project premium of HK$65,177,000 in accordance
with the project management agreement and relevant
finance charges of HK$8,173,000. The provision for
project premium related to the sales and marketing services
for a property project, hence it is classified as selling
expenses. The management of the subsidiary concerned is
reviewing the award of the Arbitral Tribunal and actions to

set aside the award are under consideration.

Mtit2 -

WEE - Z—-N\NE+_H=+—H
WEFRE s RRFZ —REZEN B
AT BEEAT Y EEE S REEE
HH o 2 AR 2 R BT L R R

REE_Z—NF+_H=+—H
IE A FEAR > R E ) P R E M AR
AR Z ARG AR AREEE
EM W RA T XNMNEBE S
65,177,000 JC & A1 B Al & # A
8,173,000% JC - TH H 48 4 # i B YY)
EHHE Z s BT H B
WHB B G ERE - ZHEA
A 2 PR I AE 9 B R R E 2 B
P RE R ZRIRZATE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
S5 A R B G
For the year ended 31st December, 2018 #( % —ZF— /\4F+_H =+—H ILF &

The Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% (2017:
16.5%). No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been

made since there is no assessable profit for the year (2017:

the assessable profit was wholly absorbed by tax losses

brought forward).

The Macau Complementary Tax is levied at 12% (2017:

12%) on the taxable income for the year.

The income tax rate of the subsidiaries in the Mainland
China for the year ended 31st December, 2018 is 25%

(2017: 25%).

Tomson Group Limited % i £E B 4 FR /A 7]

13. TAXATION 13. BiIH
2018 2017
R
HK$°000 HK$’000
Tt Tt
The charge comprises: XA
Mainland China Enterprise Income Tax R ] [A) M A 2E I A5 A 106,122 316,060
Mainland China LAT H 8] A i - b 484 (E 169,666 391,454
Macau Complementary Tax R P4 et - 29,196
Dividend withholding tax i S S 97,789 627
Underprovision (overprovision) WA A
in prior years BRI AR
— Mainland China Enterprise Income Tax — o B A AR E T AR A 3,918 35,121
— Dividend withholding tax — [ B AN s - (376)
377,495 772,082
Deferred tax (credit) charge (Note 31) WIERTE (4E0) B
(B 5E 31) (64,251) 283,758
Total tax charges for the year A EBITH B S A 313,244 1,055,840

s FIAS BT EH 2 Bl R £516.5%
(—F—LF 1 165%) o FAFEE
S 40 FE SR B v A > R I I A A s
FIASBEAE Ml (- F— L4E &
o B s A B R AT B TE B 4R 2 T R

) -

A AR Y BT A5 A TR T DA ORE SR A
AZ12% (ZF—-E4 1 12%) 8k -

wE - F—-NEFEI _HA=1+—HIt
4E FEAE R BR IA) M 2 S 4 ] B A R
B F25% (—F—L4E 1 25%) °
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B 7 S B A B R

For the year ended 31st December, 2018 #% —%F— /\4F+_H =+—H ILFJF

13. TAXATION (Continued) 13. B IE (47)

AF B 57 W B4R A 1E AR R 2 BRBAT i

The charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit

before taxation per the consolidated statement of profit or FlZ FERR -
loss as follows:
2018 2017
— )4 F L4
HK$°000 HK$’000
T Tt
Profit before taxation (excluding share of BB AT A (O 6236 BEAL
results of associates and a joint venture) s AT R —REEMNE
ZHER) 684,518 2,389,029
Tax at the domestic income tax rate of 25% & & LTS BLBLF 25%
(2017: 25%) (Note) (ZF—L4 : 25%)
I ZBUE (Bf7E) 171,130 597,257
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised KERBIEE R
Tod 5 5 ¢ 3,588 3,208
Tax effect of expenses that are not fiit 72 ME AU i ] IRF S AT 1
deductible in determining taxable profit FOBLBA S 2 B B 36,414 39,355
Tax effect of income that is not assessable e S R AL Ve ) IR 2B 1
in determining taxable profit PRI 2 BT Y 2 (29,859) (35,773)
Effect of tax rate in different jurisdiction NGRS IH:HZ*EK?; - - 61,840
Utilisation of tax losses previously not 5 DA R AERR 2
recognised i T i 18 - (18,297)
Underprovision of income taxes in AR A B BT AR B N L
prior years 3,918 34,745
Effect on Mainland China LAT R R [A) B - b 28 A
R 127,516 372,878
Dividend withholding tax i S F A 537 627
Tax expense for the year AF BB TE BH 52 313,244 1,055,840

Details of deferred taxation are set out in Note 31.

Note:

The domestic income tax rate is the income tax rate of the

jurisdiction where the major operations of the Group are

based.

it

AR AT B TH 2 w1 O B 5E31 o

P A5 BB A S A 4 I B
P 2 mlEHE R 2 BT S BLBL = -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
S5 A R B G
For the year ended 31st December, 2018 #( % —ZF— /\4F+_H =+—H ILF &

14. DIVIDEND

15.

Subsequent to the end of reporting period, the Directors
have declared payment of an interim dividend of 18 HK
cents per share (2017: 43 HK cents per share) amounting
to approximately HK$374,731,000 (2017: HK$810,801,000)
for the year ended 31st December, 2018.

Of the dividend paid during 2018, approximately
HK$624,946,000 (2017: HK$553,064,000) were settled in
fully paid shares under the Company’s scrip dividend
scheme approved by the Board on 27th March, 2018 in
respect of the interim dividend for the year ended 31st
December, 2017.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic earnings per share attributable

14. & B

RHAEBARE  EEEREBEE -F
e AN i = M 711 2|l E
W B R8s Al (—F — L 4F
43Il - B G 2L A £5374,731,000
WIT (—&F—1L4F 1 810,801,000470) °

WBEBEERN T~ NE=H
“t+EtHMEE -ZF—-LtE+ A
=t —HIEFEZ R RS
DL E T # > AAR R ZF—N
FEEATE F 41624,946,0008 5T (—
Z — L 4F 1 553,064,000% oT) LLEL
S 7 K AT o

15. & i & A

A ) HE A5 4 A N A B R AR

to the owners of the Company is based on the following FITI R AT E R 5
data:
2018 2017
—“F-N\E _F-bE
HK$’000 HK$°000
T-# 0 T T
Earnings B
Profit for the year attributable to E N R UAEHE R B A
owners of the Company for the B 2 A F R 4
purposes of basic earnings per share R A N AL i 407,681 1,255,486
Number of shares Ji 4y 8t H
Weighted average number of ordinary PR RERRF 2
shares for the purpose of basic 408 I i AE ST 15 B
earnings per share 1,993,657,884 1,808,030,689

No diluted earnings per share is presented as there was no

potential ordinary share in issue during both years.

Tomson Group Limited 5 B 4 [ 45 FRA 7]

F S AR AR R ¥ A O
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B 7 S B A B R

For the year ended 31st December, 2018 #% —%F— /\4F+_H =+—H ILFJF

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 16. & W 3%

2018 2017
Fair value ZE-NE L
hierarchy HK$’000 HK$°000
4 % 8 T il 52 Tt
AT FAIR VALUE 2P AE
At st January w—H—H 8,061,471 7,339,691
Addition NE 6,623 7,343
Gain on fair value changes N {5 B IRF 7 AR
Z W 4 318,311 154,862
Exchange adjustments [ b, 77 4 (406,244) SO
At 31st December TS T = e S e Level 3
=) 7,980,161 8,061,471
There were no transfers into or out of Level 3 during the AER > NP ERE A SR = AR Bk H 5F = &%
year. HE o

The Group’s investment properties are held outside Hong

Kong and are held under operating leases.

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties at 31st
December, 2018 has been arrived at on the basis of a
valuation carried out on that date by a professional
independent valuer not connected with the Group. The
valuation was arrived at by reference to market yield
expected by investors for similar type of properties and the
net income derived from existing tenancies with due
allowance for reversionary income potential of the
properties on a recurring basis, and market evidence of
transaction prices for similar properties. As a result of the
valuation, an unrealised gain on property valuation of
approximately HK$318,311,000 (2017: HK$154,862,000)
was credited to the consolidated statement of profit or loss
for the year ended 31st December, 2018.

In estimating the fair value of the properties, the highest

and best use of the properties is their current use.

The Group’s property interests held under operating leases
to earn rentals or for capital appreciation purposes are
measured using the fair value model and are classified and

accounted for as investment properties.

Z NS 87/ BN R RS
o W EHERA -

W_FE—/NEF+_H=+—H &
LEZEWEN T E R EALSE
V] O 4BE ) L ) 78 7. B 3 L R
H AT 10 (8 2 L AR - A5 (E )
ZEREH T HBBEEYEZ T
Wi R R EEEE R ARY
R 35 WL AT R B ) SE AR B A ) T
N RBEWENT SEEEED -

AR 2 &5 R > WA 2 R 5
Bk %5 49318,311,000% ¢ (%

— B4 : 154,862,000% 75) E 5 A
HE - F-NFE+_A=+—HIE
WEEZAABRERN -

fhst¥EZ AP EFE > MEZES
Je t A 6P 2 R

AL EEHERA - HRRUHE
& BAF AN (E R A Y SR 2R )Y
A EREENE > 3 U AR
BRI o
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7 S B A B R E

For the year ended 31st December, 2018 #( % —ZF— /\4F+_H =+—H ILF &

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 16. - EWE )

The following table gives information about how the fair ™ R B ARE A P ER &2 W
values of the investment properties are determined (in N B 2 n] B AR T ] i e AR
particular, the valuation techniques and inputs used), as Yy 26 2 o3 (B (FF Il J2 i 06 B9 Ak
well as the fair value hierarchy into which the fair value (B 45 i e g A BUHR) KA P E R &
measurements are categorised (Levels 1 to 3) based on the B ATFEER (BE—HRES
degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements =) ER e

is observable.

Investment properties

held by the Group Relationship of
in the consolidated unobservable
statement of Fair value Valuation technique(s) Significant inputs for fair value
financial position hierarchy and key input(s) unobservable input(s) and sensitivity
i 5 & 5 IR DL 06 4% 16 B HRFEABE e v B i A\ W
A5 i 4% 5 0 AFEHR T EEARR LN 8 P % SR E 2 TR 1R
Commercial Level 3 Investment approach Reversionary yield, taking  The slight increase
properties The key inputs are: into account annual unit in the reversionary
- not developed 1. Reversionary yield; market rental income yield would result
by the Group 2. Market unit rent of and unit market value of in a significant
of carrying amount individual unit; and the comparable properties  decrease in fair value,
of HK$339,756,000 3. Adjustment factors of 2.75% (2017: 2.75%) and vice versa
(2017: for location and
HK$342,178,000) other individual
factors such as road
frontage, size of
property and facilities
[ERiik7E =M BREHA B ABMGHIGEERE  ERRE R T
— 3t A oy A FEWARRES WA SR e R FERIR
Z IR 1L BRI R BAWE > ERNGEE T RZOA
339,756,000 7T 2. AR A B2.75% (ZF—4
(ZF—t4: TiGEAHE & 2.75%)

342,178,000%5 JC)

1 4 1 Tomson Group Limited 5 B 4 [ 45 FRA 7]
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Ao £ BV 255 o i

For the year ended 31st December, 2018 #% —%F— /\4F+_H =+—H ILFJF

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

Investment properties
held by the Group

in the consolidated

16. Bt & W3k )

Relationship of

unobservable

statement of Fair value Valuation technique(s) Significant inputs for fair value
financial position hierarchy and key input(s) unobservable input(s) and sensitivity
TR i S 5 e 16 18 4% 5 & BRFEWEE B 2% i A R
A % i £ e B W AVHES T RE AT i \ B % 2 A B 8% 2 B R
Commercial Level 3 Investment approach Reversionary yield, taking  The slight increase

properties The key inputs are: into account annual unit in the reversionary

— developed 1. Reversionary yield; market rental income yield would result

by the Group 2. Market unit rent of and unit market value of in a significant

of carrying amount
of HK$1,350,017,000
(2017:
HK$1,310,961,000)

L YE 3

— M A SR B %
Z MR E
1,350,017,000% 7C
(ZF—+L4E:
1,310,961,000% 7C)

Residential properties Level 3
of carrying amount of

HK$5,757,610,000
(2017: HK$5,883,059,000)

REYEZ
AR T {5,757,610,000% 7C
(ZF—t4H:
5,883,059,000% 7 )

H=H

individual unit; and
3. Adjustment factors
for location and
other individual
factors such as road
frontage, size of

property and facilities

#EHX
FTEMAERES
1 BB R
2. {7 BLA37 A

MRS &
3. B TE LAY R R
T LA B R %
(G0 A %

VE SN
B

Investment approach
The key inputs are:
1. Reversionary yield;
2. Market unit rent of
individual unit; and
3. Adjustment factors
for location and
other individual
factors such as road
frontage, size of

property and facilities

#EHA
TRWAMBES
1 B %
2.l ALY

MG H S 5
3. B S s B (R 3R
BOH AR TR
(A e B

IE IV
RO

the comparable properties
of 6.25% to 8.50%
(2017: 6.75% to 8.50%)

Bt ARG TEEES
N34 E 3]
BT E - 1R a2
F16.25%%£8.50% (%

—L&  6.75%%8.50%)

Reversionary yield, taking
into account annual unit
market rental income
and unit market value of
the comparable properties
of 0.75% (2017: 0.75%)

B ANEATIHEERS
N EE(E:4 EL
AT - R R
F0.75% (ZE—+4E
0.75%)

decrease in fair value,
and vice versa

ik i dwis
PR EAFER IR
T RZIFK

The slight increase
in the reversionary
yield would result
in a significant
decrease in fair value,
and vice versa

e T
WEEAT AR
TH 2
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
S5 A R B G
For the year ended 31st December, 2018 #( % —ZF— /\4F+_H =+—H ILF &

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 16. - EWE )

Investment properties
held by the Group

in the consolidated

Relationship of

unobservable

statement of Fair value Valuation technique(s) Significant inputs for fair value
financial position hierarchy and key input(s) unobservable input(s) and sensitivity
TR o S 5 e 18 45 5 & R JE AT B B 2% i A R S
7 5 M i 5 4 % ok AFEER AR i \ Y 8% 2 A B 8% 2 B R
Industrial properties Level 3 Investment approach Reversionary yield, taking  The slight increase
of carrying amount of The key inputs are: into account annual unit in the reversionary
HK$532,778,000 1. Reversionary yield; market rental income yield would result
(2017: HK$525,273,000) 2. Market unit rent of and unit market value of in a significant
individual unit; and the comparable properties  decrease in fair value,
3. Adjustment factors of 6.75% (2017: 7.25%) and vice versa
for location and
other individual
factors such as road
frontage, size of
property and facilities
THWHEZ H=H #EIA B ABMTSEERE BERGEREM LT
W 1 (532,778,000 T EEEAYGRS WARTERERY RS AEIATEKE
(ZF—+L4: 1. R B i 2 RAWE BRREE T RZIAA

525,273,000% 7C)

Tomson Group Limited 5 B 4 [ 45 FRA 7]

2. {7 B A3z B
mGRAHE s &
3. B AE #1072 [
T A A R %
(i e %
E NS
WA )

F6.75% (ZE—+H4E
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Ao £ BV 255 o i

For the year ended 31st December, 2018 #% —%F— /\4F+_H =+—H ILFJF

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND

17. W3 ~ W M ok i

EQUIPMENT
Furniture,
Leasehold Construction fixtures and
land and Plant and work-in-  equipment and
buildings equipment progress motor vehicles Total
- %8
il Bt
VTS T LR T A
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
T i i i T
At cost A
At 1st January, 2017 woF—tF—H—H 426,999 25,282 4,528 82,476 539,285
Additions NE - 130 - 9,261 9,391
Written off ik = - - (657) (657)
Disposals i - - = (1,436) (1,436)
Disposal of subsidiaries B A = = = (2,360) (2,360)
Transferred from properties  #ifff (A B %
held for sale 18,718 - - = 18,718
Exchange adjustments B . % 32,490 1,928 345 5,084 39,847
At 31st December, 2017 R-Z—tE+-H=+—H 478,207 27,340 4,873 92,368 602,788
Additions NE - 17 - 23,245 23,262
Written off HWsH = = = (94) (94)
Disposals i - - - (1,848) (1,848)
Exchange adjustments [ i 7% (36,193) (1,378) (246) (3,938) (41,755)
At 315t December, 2018 R-Z—AE+_H=1—H 442,014 25,979 4,627 109,733 582,353
Accumulated depreciation Rt 4% R{H
and impairment
At Ist January, 2017 R-ZF—L%E—-A—H 252,185 20,630 - 62,577 335,392
Provided for the year LA 14,988 632 - 4,149 19,769
Eliminated on written off S S 8 = = = (656) (656)
Eliminated on disposals ER B - - - (697) (697)
Eliminated on disposal O 20 )
of subsidiaries - = = (1,722) (1,722)
Exchange adjustments HE b 7 19,325 1,573 - 3,620 24,518
At 31st December, 2017 W_F—t#E+-A=1—H 286,498 22,835 = 67,271 376,604
Provided for the year B Rt 14,747 597 - 16,657 32,001
Eliminated on written off MBS 5 = = = (94) (94)
Eliminated on disposals R - - = (1,690) (1,690)
Exchange adjustments T s (16,606) (1,150) = (2,710) (20,466)
At 315t December, 2018 WZE—-NEF+ZH=1+—H 284,639 22,282 - 79,434 386,355
Carrying values R
At 31st December, 2018 REZ-NEFZA=F—H 157,375 3,697 4,627 30,299 195,998
At 31st December, 2017 WoF—LEFZAZ1—H 191,709 4,505 4,873 25,097 226,184
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B £ BV 255 e o P

For the year ended 31st December, 2018 #( % —ZF— /\4F+_H =+—H ILF &

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND 17. W3 ~ Wb Bkl )

EQUIPMENT (Continued)

The Group’s leasehold land is situated outside Hong Kong.

Depreciation of the above property, plant and equipment
except for construction work-in-progress, is provided to
their estimated residual value over their estimated useful

lives by equal annual instalments at the following rates per

annum:

Leasehold land and 2% to 4% or over the terms of
buildings the relevant lease

Plant and equipment 9% to 13%

Furniture, fixtures and 18% to 40%

equipment and motor

7% 42 ) 2 L6 7 A T U B AL o

BRAERE TAELASE > Bk W€ - MR
Je et ) ¥ Ak sl R 4 4 > D
47 HE A B BOBUREEL A AR (2
FHEITEE > FRUE

B L T 2% % 4% A B
& 2 414
W S s A 9% % 13%
RAE - deE B 18% E40%
AR B HLA

vehicles
18. LEASE PREMIUM FOR LAND 18. LA A
The Group’s lease premium for land comprises: ALE 1 2+ i AH B R AL
2018 2017
“EBNE FE L
HK$’000 HKS$°000
T # T Tt
Leasehold land in Hong Kong 17 s LA 4 7 2 1 4t 141 146
Leasehold land outside Hong Kong FWIESN A A 7 A 2 13 28,366 36,398
28,507 36,544
Analysed for reporting purposes as: Fts B4 2
Current assets T E & 5,754 6,134
Non-current assets I E 22,753 30,410
28,507 36,544

1 45 Tomson Group Limited % i £E B 4 FR /A 7]
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Ao £ BV 255 o i

For the year ended 31st December, 2018 #% —%F— /\4F+_H =+—H ILFJF

19. FILM DISTRIBUTION RIGHTS 19. & h AT HE
HK$°000
Tt
Cost AR
At 1st January, 2017 and 31st December, AN B —H4HFE—H—H >
2017, and 2018 SR LR FE-N\E
+=—FB=+—H 26,715
Amortisation and impairment i B B A
At 1st January, 2017 and 31st December, 2017 HN_F—-LHE—-H—-HRK
—F—-tH+H=+—H 21,773
Impairment I 4,792
At 31st December, 2018 W_E—-NE+_H=+—H 26,565
Carrying value IS TTR
At 31st December, 2018 W _F—-N\E+_H=+—H 150
At 31st December, 2017 wW_E—+tE+_H=+—H 4,942

Film distribution rights are amortised over their economic
beneficial period. During the year ended 31st December,

2018, the Group has performed the impairment assessment

and recognised an impairment loss of HK$4,792,000.

B ST HE IR SL 8 DR 4 90
o WMEF— A=
FI AL 4 B » A S B AT A A A

SIf7 e 52 ek (B 5 184,792,000 IC ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
S5 A R B G
For the year ended 31st December, 2018 #( % —ZF— /\4F+_H =+—H ILF &

20. PROPERTIES UNDER 20. R E
DEVELOPMENT

2018 2017
ZER-NE DL
HK$’000 HK$’000
T T T Wt
At 1st January, at cost W—H—H A 3,554,039 3,203,593
Additions NE 74,315 106,205
Exchange adjustments [ 50, 5 2% (179,100) 244,241

At 31st December, at cost T sl = e E R
A 3,449,254 3,554,039

21.

Properties under development under current assets of
approximately HK$3,449,254,000 (2017: HK$3,554,039,000)
are not expected to be completed within twelve months

from the end of reporting period.

DEPOSITS PAID FOR LAND USE
RIGHTS

At 31st December, 2018, deposits of HK$376,104,000
(2017: HK$396,063,000) were paid for the land use rights
of a site located in Pudong New Area, Shanghai, the
Mainland China with a site area of approximately 52,500
square meters (2017: 52,500 square meters) and the
delivery of vacant possession to the Group is under
negotiation. The Directors of the Company expected that

the negotiation will be completed in the foreseeable future.

Tomson Group Limited % i £E B 4 FR /A 7]

21.

MNEBEENMNBRESYY XL
3,449,254,000% 70 (& — L 4 :
3,554,039,000%5 JC) TH 7 A & 7t #Ht
HWRRFE A R

+ 5 BE 2 B A RT &

W _EF—-NE+_A=+—H B
A H B T M b 3 T I ROET I —
e Mo B 2 b M (R RE S AT ET &
376,104,000 o (& — L 4F -
396,063,000%5 J6) © #% M@ + H 2
& TH BE 952,500 ok (ZF—+
1 52,500°F oK) > BLIESEZE &
AREFEMEATIER - AN R EHEF
T8 A IS AN A A2 58 B o
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Ao £ BV 255 o i

For the year ended 31st December, 2018 #% —%F— /\4F+_H =+—H ILFJF

22. GOODWILL 22. P&
HK$’000
T # T
Cost and carrying value FRAR Be Y i AE
At 1st January, 2017, 31st December, 2017 R_F—tHFE—H—H-
and 31st December, 2018 —F—tH#+_H=1T—HK
—F-NFE+_A=+—H 33,288

Goodwill is allocated to the cash-generating unit of a
wholly owned subsidiary which is engaged in property

development and trading activities.

During the year ended 31st December, 2018 and 2017, the
management of the Group determined that there was no
impairment of the cash-generating unit containing

goodwill.

The recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit was
measured based on fair value less costs to sell calculation by
reference to observable market price using market
comparable approach for similar properties, adjusted for
location and other individual factors such as road frontage
and size. It was determined by management’s past
experience, based on the estimated gross profit from selling
of properties, taking into the consideration prevailing

market price.

[ i Ve S Sy < 40l AN KB
EEARM > ZAFEEY SRR
B 845 65

BE_F—N\EX _FT—LF+
A=Z+—HILFE > REBEHE
TR N7 SRR 4 B A BEAE A TR -

B 4 7 A 67 B AT i (B A G AR R
A] BT 35 (B AR BB 2E DL T 45
HBOEAE 2% - it T 7E # S Ho At
3 DR 2R [ o 2 e S HL R /M) A
REAR DA F- (6 980 B A 3 T
o o B M R 1 AR IR E
R €8 & W EE B A A > 5t
Lo R Y T AH o
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23. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
S5 A R B G
For the year ended 31st December, 2018 #( % —ZF— /\4F+_H =+—H ILF &

23. i Bk = O W) 2 HE R

2018 2017
S = =
HK$’000 HK$’000
T T T#
Cost of unlisted investments in associates R EHBE AR Z
& A 7,071 7,071
Share of post-acquisition losses, net of JRE A Wi i A% s 4R
dividend received 41 E Wik S (7,759) (7,199)
Exchange difference arising from MABE N FAREEZ
translation of associates [fE 5d, 2= % 1,555 1,958
867 1,830
Amounts due from associates Wi 5 N 7 R KR 10,783 10,778
11,650 12,608

The amounts due from associates are unsecured, interest

free and have no fixed repayment terms.

In the opinion of the Directors, the amounts due from
associates will not be repayable within twelve months from

the end of the reporting period and accordingly, the

amounts have been classified as non-current assets.

Details of principal associates at 31st December, 2018 are

included in Note 43.

Tomson Group Limited 5 B 4 [ 45 FRA 7]
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
LR A R B G
For the year ended 31st December, 2018 #% —%F— /\4F+_H =+—H ILFJF

23. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 23. N Bk 8 o v Z BE 45 o)

Summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s H B A4 8O 8 R A B K 2 B
associates that are not individually material is set out AN EY BB R S
below:
The associates are accounted for using the equity method IR E A T RS i 3% 6 Wi s s A DARE %5
in these consolidated financial statements. HEAHE -
2018 2017
ZE-NE FE - LE
HK$’000 HK$’000
T T T Wt
Total assets G 41,479 45,670
Total liabilities AR (45,5306) (46,841)
Net liabilities A& (4,057) (QlsIk7L)
Group’s share of associates’ net assets 7 4 [E A\ BG4S N )
ZHERE 867 1,830
Revenue PN 11,116 11,527
Loss for the year AF JE R (1,646) (3,185)
Other comprehensive (expense) income HoAh AT (B 7)) Ik 2% (1,240) 2,259
Group’s share of associates’ loss for the year 7 A [ 4 B A B 4% N H)
b i (560) (888)
Group’s share of associates’ other 7 4 [ 4 B A B A% N H)
comprehensive (expense) Z HoAh AT (B 32 Ukt
income for the year (403) 766
Group’s share of associates’ total 7 45 [H] 4 I RE (L B 5N
comprehensive expense for the year Z A TH B X KA HR (963) (122)

Annual Report 2018 4 4F 4 1 50



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
S5 A R B G
For the year ended 31st December, 2018 #( % —ZF— /\4F+_H =+—H ILF &

24. INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE 2. MK ERLEZ MR
2018 2017
—E | B
HK$’000 HK$’000
Tt T
Cost of unlisted investments R—RELTEESEZ
in a joint venture & A 130,185 130,185
Share of post-acquisition profits, R A o 4% 36 A
net of dividend received B E Wik B 25,579 19,562
Exchange difference arising from WME—FEESER
translation of a joint venture A 2 T b 25 B 28,882 38,713
184,646 188,460
Amount due from a joint venture —REBELERK 513 5115
185,159 188,973
In October 2016, the Group entered into an equity transfer W E—NAETH s AEBEE LK

HERTE 0 ok > DAL LA R T i
BEARLA (RZF—-NE+Z

agreement to dispose of its whole investment in Tianjin

Jinwan Property Co., Limited, a joint venture of the Group

as at 31st December, 2016, at a consideration of
RMB1,173 million. The consideration had been received
and an amount of HK$654,519,000 was placed in
restricted bank account. The transaction was completed in
January 2017 and the restriction was released on
completion date. A gain of HK$523,713,000 on the
disposal was recognised in the consolidated statement of

profit or loss for the year ended 31st December, 2017.

The amount due from a joint venture is unsecured, interest

free and has no fixed repayment terms.

In the opinion of the Directors of the Company, the
amount due from a joint venture will not be repayable
within twelve months of the end of the reporting period
and accordingly, the amount has been classified as

non-current assets.

Details of a joint venture at 31st December, 2018 are
included in Note 43.

Tomson Group Limited 5 B 4 [ 45 FRA 7]
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Ao £ BV 255 o i

For the year ended 31st December, 2018 #% —%F— /\4F+_H =+—H ILFJF

24, INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE

(Continued)

Summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s
joint venture is set out below. The summarised financial
information below represents amounts shown in the joint

venture’s financial statements prepared in accordance with

HKEFRSs.

The joint venture is accounted for using the equity method

in these consolidated financial statements.

Shanghai Jinjiang Tomson Hotel Co., Ltd
(“Jinjiang Tomson Hotel”)

24. R—KEBRLEZRESR )

A B A B 5 B 4 € B BRI
ZRIIWT - IT B ER R Y
5 & B A AR IR G ok I B o e
HIP) A 5 B 25 S 3R B 7R R

A S M A A S DA 2
HEANR -

¥ L % B K T AR
2w ([EIL S EWE]D

2018 2017

ZE-NE  —FE—LHF

HK$’000 HK$’000

Tt T T

Current assets B B 325,135 333,023
Non-current assets FE B & E 99,519 94,268
Current liabilities I B= R 55,362 50,371
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For the year ended 31st December, 2018 #( % —ZF— /\4F+_H =+—H ILF &

24, INTERESTS IN A JOINT VENTURE

(Continued)

The above amounts of assets and liabilities include the

following:

24 M KA EBE LR @)

bt g E R A SRS T A&

2018 2017
“ERNE DL
HK$’000 HK$’000
T T T Wt
Cash and cash equivalents Be KB &% MEEE 289,977 266,102
Current financial liabilities (excluding trade I 8 A %5 & & OR & 45
and other payable and accruals) FEATE 5 iRk~ HiAth
JREAST B ik e FEL 4 2 ) 4,094 3,698
Revenue N 224,285 198,101
Profit for the year A Vi ) 33,528 24,728
Other comprehensive (expense) income A R A 4 (B S2) U
for the year (19,662) 27,200
Total comprehensive income for the year AF B 4 T U 5 AR AR 13,866 51,928
Dividend received from a joint venture W —REELEZBEE 10,747 12,533
The above profit for the year includes the following: bl A R N M AL A T 4 A% H
2018 2017
BN\ —EF-LF
HK$’000 HK$’000
T # T T# T
Depreciation Ire 14,998 15,724
Interest income B ke A 11,028 11,348
Income tax expense Jilr 45 i BH 52 11,281 8,342
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24, INTERESTS IN A JOINT VENTURE

25.

(Continued)

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial
information to the carrying amount of the interest in

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
LR A R B G
For the year ended 31st December, 2018 #% —%F— /\4F+_H =+—H ILFJF

24 MK AR BEZ LR )

3l B B A L S A S A S
A e R 2 B V3 B I O 2 B i Y

Jinjiang Tomson Hotel recognised in the consolidated B T (H 2 ¥R -
financial statements:
2018 2017
—E—-N\E _F—-LF
HK$’000 HK$°000
T T T T
Net assets FEE 369,292 376,920
Proportion of the Group’s ownership interest A AL E 2 WA RERE 45 H A 50% 50%
Carrying amount of the Group’s interest A5 T HE i 2 AR T 184,646 188,460
EQUITY INSTRUMENTS AT 25. A FAE A H Ath 22 1
FAIR VALUE THROUGH OTHER [ G &7 N = S
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/ MERE
AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE
INVESTMENTS
The investments as at 31st December, 2018 and 2017 }%‘:E—/\E&:?—t@ﬂ*iﬂ
comprise: =t—HZHEEME :
2018 2017
“EB-NE CFLF
HK$’000 HK$°000
Tt T T
Equity instruments at FVTOCI (Note (a): F N E 51 H At 4 T ik
t Z WA T2 (Mt @) -
Equity securities listed in Hong Kong AU LT 2 AR 148,292 -
Unlisted equity investments (Note (b)) LT RABE (Mt ®) 287,739 =
436,031 -
Available-for-sale investments: At ERE
Equity securities listed in Hong Kong AU LT 2 AR RS - 140,622
Unlisted equity investments (Note (c)) FE LA E (M) - 48,091
Club debentures o i fi 2 - 515
_ 189,228
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For the year ended 31st December, 2018 #( % —ZF— /\4F+_H =+—H ILF &

25. EQUITY INSTRUMENTS AT

FAIR VALUE THROUGH OTHER

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/
AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE
INVESTMENTS (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

(b)

(c)

The above equity investments are not held for trading,
instead, they are held for long-term strategic purposes.
The directors of the Company have elected to

designate these investments in equity instruments as

at FVTOCI.

The unlisted equity investments represent investments
in private entities incorporated in the Mainland
China mainly engaging in property investment
business. The valuation techniques and assumptions
used in the determination of the fair value is set out

in Note 33(c).

The unlisted equity investments represent investments
in private entities incorporated in the Mainland
China mainly engaging in property investment
business. They are measured at cost less impairment
as at 31st December, 2017, and because the range of
reasonable fair value estimates is so significant the
Directors of the Company are of the opinion that
their values cannot be measured reliably. No
impairment loss was recognised in prior year based on

the net asset value of the investee company.

26. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

Financial assets at FVTPL represent equity securities held

for trading which are listed in Hong Kong.

Tomson Group Limited 5 B 4 [ 45 FRA 7]
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31st December, 2018 #% —%F— /\4F+_H =+—H ILFJF

27. NET CURRENT ASSETS 27. MEE E A

(a) BEWE 5K - Hib

(a) Trade and other receivables and

prepayments

The general credit term of the Group given to trade
customers is 60 days. A longer credit period may be
granted to customers with long business relationship.
The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its

outstanding receivables to minimise credit risk.

Included in trade and other receivables and
prepayments are trade receivables, net of allowance
for credit losses, of HK$5,256,000 (2017:
HK$2,355,000) and their aged analysis based on
invoice date as at the end of the reporting period is as

follows:

B WAC Bk sk B FELASF K JHL

AEHGTHEAGEF Z — K
FEMAC0H o AL M B & 45
THRMEBRIRZEF LR
ZAREY - AEEFEE YR
ASF ) B R AR ) et B A AR
R A5 B Ja -

TEREWCE 5) Bk ~ oAt B U B
X TR A I A LA R U &
R 3K (28 40 R 15 B s 18 435 445
5,256,000 76 (& — L 4F -
2,355,000 J6) - H A
AR5 5% 5 H A 2 HE M 2 AT 4n
T

2018 2017

—E2 N\ ZEF—LEF

HK$’000 HK$’000

T # 0 Tt

0 — 3 months & =18 A 4,112 1,689
4 — 6 months W ESSAN (iDE| 7 147
7 — 12 months &+ MA 1,137 519
5,256 2,355

As at 31st December, 2017, included in the Group’s
trade receivable balance are debtors with aggregate
carrying amount of HK$811,000 which were past due
but not provided for impairment loss. These
receivables related to a number of independent
customers that had a good track record with the
Group. Based on past experience, management
believed that no impairment allowance was necessary
in respect of these balances as there had not been a
significant change in credit quality and the balances
were still considered fully recoverable. The Group did
not hold any collateral over these balances. The

average age of these receivables was 180 days.

W_EF—tHFE+_H=+—
H > 24 [ 2 BB E 5 iR A
iR 45 B 26 1 (H 2R A (8 S 18
B 2 MO  HRH(E &
3£811,000% J0 o Uk %5 M Uk I
T BLASE [ 2 4 9 KGR Bk R
W2 WS &P A B - AR
e SHBMG ERGEE
CER X TN E JEREY P
15 B A5 2 o] A B [m] > O R
UL S A5 R ET PR W A o A
A [ NI 4 15 A 0 5 A R 2 AT ]
HEAT 5 o I 5 R i BR 3K Y T2
HR S £5180°K o
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For the year ended 31st December, 2018 #( % —ZF— /\4F+_H =+—H ILF &

27. NET CURRENT ASSETS (Continued)

(a) Trade and other receivables and
prepayments (Continued)

Aging of trade receivables which are past due but not

27. MEVE E 1 ()

(a) BEWHE SR - Hib
B VG B sk B FELASF K I (40)

A S 1EL A AR B M 22 B W B ) iR

impaired: KB
2017
—F—kE
HK$°000
T T
61 — 90 days 61290K 145
91 — 180 days 91%£ 180K 147
181 — 365 days 1818365k 519
Total & & 811

Movement in the allowance for credit losses (2017:

doubtful debts) on trade receivables:

MEWCH 5 sk 2 {8 Bl 1R (—
T4 IRAR) B 2 )

2018 2017

L

HK$’000 HK$°000

T # 70 AP

Balance at beginning of the year ) & Bk 3,734 5,361
Impairment losses recognised B R 22 W (E S 1R 519 51
Impairment losses reversed B3 ] 2 3 (E s 1R (1,708) (2,010)
Exchange adjustments [ffE b, 38 3% (80) 332
Balance at end of the year AR A GE i 2,465 3,734

As at 31st December, 2017, other receivables with an
aggregate carrying amount of HK$3,322,000 are
individually impaired as the amount is unlikely to be

recovered from the relevant debtors.

Tomson Group Limited 5 B 4 [ 45 FRA 7]
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27. NET CURRENT ASSETS (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Ao £ BV 255 o i

For the year ended 31st December, 2018 #% —%F— /\4F+_H =+—H ILFJF

Trade and other receivables and
prepayments (Continued)

Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts on
other receivables as at 31st December, 2017:

(a)

27. MEVE 1 ()

W VBB B ek > L At JE
W B ik M FELASE K (4

e e e
H o At RS IR TRt £
2B

2017

—ZF—tF

HK$°000

T

Balance at beginning of the year )& R 3,105
Impairment losses recognised Ol sR Z W(H e 4R 10
Impairment losses reversed B 3 0] 2 3 (E s 12 (30)
Exchange adjustments e 5, e 25T,
Balance at end of the year G S S BE327,

Details of impairment assessment of other receivables
for the year ended 31st December, 2018 are set out in
Note 33.

As at 31st December, 2018, included in the prepayment
of HK$285,030,000 (2017: HK$300,156,000) related

to the prepayment of development cost in related to
the property project as disclosed in Note 21.

Inventories

Details of inventories are as follows:

(b)

REE_F—-NANHE+TA
= b Bk AR A R R K
Z A A A w1 O B 33

WoF—/FE+_A=1+—H>
O A 4 7E F A 3(285,030,000%
o (Z=F — L4 1 300,156,000
W oT) o S BLYE AT AH B ) S TH
H Y B8 A A B o B 21
Jir % & -

8]

R -

2018 2017

R

HK$’000 HK$’000

T# T Tt

Finished goods Uy 71 180
Packaging materials and accessories A0, 25 b R I R A 4,445 4,867
4,516 5,047
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For the year ended 31st December, 2018 #( % —ZF— /\4F+_H =+—H ILF &

27. NET CURRENT ASSETS (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Bank deposits and cash and bank balances

Bank deposits comprised the time deposits with an
original maturity over three months.

Included in cash and bank balances are the following
amounts denominated in a currency other than the
functional currency of the entities to which they
relate:

27. MEVE E 1 ()

(o)

SRAT Ak DA B Bl & ]k
SRAT %4 R

SRAT A K 45 IR 2 H =18 A
DAk B 7E IAF 3K

TEB & RRATAE BRI - ABRHE
MOE RSN Z B S

2018 2017

“ER-N\NE L —FEHF

HK$°000 HK$000

T 0 T # T

United States Dollars 200 60,161 66,103

Renminbi NG 35,807 26,130
Trade and other payables and accruals (d) JEAHE 5 MRk ~ HoAth
JE A58 Mk sk % 6 4% # H

Included in trade and other payables and accruals are
trade payables of HK$126,105,000 (2017:
HK$140,123,000) and their aged analysis based on
invoice date as at the end of the reporting period is as
follows:

e FEAT & ) MRk ~ HoAth B A B
X TE AR N B A G
B #126,105,000% o© (%
— £ 4 : 140,123,000 9C) >
Hp R E R RS E A
HREE AT R -

2018 2017

—EZ-N\E F-LF

HK$°000 HK$’000

Tt Tt

0 — 3 months K =0 H 4,171 4,131
4 — 6 months A T E| 15 58
7 — 12 months &+ MA 26 126
Over 1 year —4ERL I 121,893 135,808
126,105 140,123
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For the year ended 31st December, 2018 #% —%F— /\4F+_H =+—H ILFJF

27. NET CURRENT ASSETS (Continued)

(d) Trade and other payables and accruals

(e)

(Continued)

The credit period on purchases is 90 days. The Group
has financial risk management policies in place to
ensure that all payables are settled within the credit
timeframe.

Included in other payables and accruals of
HK$270,363,000 (2017: HK$284,712,000) related
to the refundable deposit for golf course.

Contract liabilities

As at 31st December, 2018, contract liabilities
amounts of HK$291,080,000 (1st January, 2018:
HK$220,946,000) represented the deposits received

from sales of properties.

The Group receives 20% to 30% of the contract value
as deposits from customers when they signed the sale
and purchase agreement. The deposits will be
recognised as revenue when the customer obtains

control of the completed property.

During the year ended 31st December, 2018, the
amount of HK$207,879,000 included in the contract
liabilities balance at the beginning of the year was

recognised as revenue.

27. Ui B & E B ()
(d) FEAE 5 IRA% ~ H At

(e)

WE o ke sk Je RO B ) 40)

WEZFEEM A0 - REH
CL il 5T 5 5 Ja g A B IR O DA Tife
PRI A AT B 3 A5 BE A R
Bl

L Ath R AT B K R AR B R
$%5270,363,000% JC (& — L&
4 1 284,712,000%5 8) J1 A H
15 T R Bk A AR IR o

FHAE

LT 2 s R e
H &4 A 1E % %291,080,000
Wt (—F—NFE—H—H:
220,946,000%5 J6) $5 &4 B P 2
W 2 BT 4 o

A AR F A % 5 %R O T el I
Ie] 452 45 Wi 1 A1 (H 2 20% 2
30%1FE 24 51 4x o 5% 5 7T & M
BFE TR Y 2 I
bR e 8 2 WL

WEE-F—-NE+ A=+
—HILFE > BB EFEYEG
# 8 E 2 &5 8k 4 %6207,879,000
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For the year ended 31st December, 2018 #( % —ZF— /\4F+_H =+—H ILF &

28. SHARE CAPITAL 28. A
Number of shares Amount
1§40 ¥ H &H#
2018 2017 2018 2017
= A e SV S
HK$’000 HK$000
Tt Tt
Ordinary shares of HK$0.50 each 5 B 1T 0,507 7T
2
Authorised W E
— Balance as at Ist January —R—HA—HZ&H  2,000,000,000 2,000,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000
— Increase during the year — N 1,000,000,000 A 500,000 =
— Balance as at 31st December - tZHA=+—H
2K 3,000,000,000  2,000,000,000 1,500,000 1,000,000
Issued and fully paid CHfTRCH R
— Balance as at 1st January —h—HA—HZ&8  1,885,584,547  1,715,059,497 942,792 857,530
— Scrip dividend (Note) —URRE () 196,252,578 170,525,050 98,126 85,262
— Balance as at 31st December - ZA=1+—H
Z &R 2,081,837,125  1,885,584,547 1,040,918 942,792

Note:

On 14th June, 2018, 196,252,578 new shares of the
Company were allotted and issued at HK$3.1844 per share
to the shareholders, who elected to receive shares in lieu of
cash for the interim dividend for the year ended 31st
December, 2017. These shares rank pari passu in all

respects with the shares then in issue.

On 16th June, 2017, 170,525,050 new shares of the
Company were allotted and issued at HK$3.2433 per share
to the shareholders, who elected to receive shares in lieu of
cash for the interim dividend for the year ended 31st
December, 2016. These shares rank pari passu in all

respects with the shares then in issue.

Tomson Group Limited % i £E B 4 FR /A 7]

AT — \ERHTMEH > AN
I 358 5 DA AR S R BB > i AR R
E—tE+_H=1+—HILEEZ
WO L i 3. 184435 TT i B
KB 47196,252,578 1 A s v H#r Bk
By o 5% 55 M 0y BL IR © 8 47 10 IR 4
EHFEHER -

WZF—LEANHA+AH > ARH
)4 DU AR S R i R
FE—ANE+_A=+—HILEEZ
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For the year ended 31st December, 2018 #% —%F— /\4F+_H =+—H ILFJF

29. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT

TRANSACTIONS

A share option scheme was adopted by the Company
pursuant to a resolution passed on Ist June, 2012 (the
“2012 Scheme”). The 2012 Scheme was set up for the
primary purpose to provide incentives or rewards to
selected persons for their contribution to any member of
the Group or any entity in which any member of the
Group holds any equity interest (“Invested Entity”).
Subject to earlier termination by the Company in general
meeting or by the Board of Directors of the Company (the
“Board”), the 2012 Scheme shall be valid and effective
until 31st May, 2022. After the expiry of such valid period,
no further options will be offered or granted but in all
other respects the provisions of the 2012 Scheme shall

remain in full force and effect.

Under the 2012 Scheme, the Board may grant options to
(i) any employee or proposed employee (whether full time
or part time) of any member of the Group or any Invested
Entity, including any executive director of these companies;
or (ii) any non-executive director (including independent
non-executive director) of any member of the Group or any
Invested Entity; or (iii) any adviser, consultant or customer
of or supplier of goods or services to any member of the
Group or any Invested Entity; or (iv) any sharcholder of
any member of the Group or any Invested Entity or any
holder of any securities issued by any member of the Group

or any Invested Entity.

29. it HE 3t 22 5

ANFEVRER F——F/H—H
J0 8 ) PR TR R PR AN — TE S R T
((ZF—Z4F5H] - KL%
— T EMEEE R AR
2 2 N A AR AT AT B S R B
2 4 B AT AT B B 2N Rl 47 A AT Aol A
AT HEAE ([T S g ) 2 Bk
VE V0 Bh 5 38 B o i A< 2w S AR
MR K g A& LA N R #HF
Ja ([FE 3 )7 ) I 32 F 4 1k #% 5t
# —F-FFEHAUNEFE
TZHERA=1T—H1E - A
JiE T A5 S B AT 4R R R T SR
RO > ME T — AR T A K
TE 45 T TH] A% A6 758 2 T A 3 -

R —F— T EFH > HEF/A
PATR N b 452 B FC i - (i) A 4R AT
] B B 2 B SAT AT BT 45 M 2 AT
i i B 2% B B OF 4 Bk 3k
W) > BLAE L SF 2 A Z AT AT AT

=5 G A EAT AT B 2 R U
o7 Py BUE AR AL BT S (f
EWLFERATES) 5 lGiDAEH
AT B B 2 R BAT: fa] BT 4 A 2
CROES PN LR A AL
O3 ) BHEA B A P A BRI B 2 it
P 5 B (iv) A 4 AT T A B 2 A B
A AT BT 30 A 22 AT AT BBEOR > AR
A5 BT AR 8 B 2% ) AT AT By £ 1
W AT AT A R85 Z AL AT R A o
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29. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT

TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

The maximum number of shares of the Company in respect
of which options may be granted under the 2012 Scheme is
141,452,380 shares, representing 10% of the Company’s
issued share capital at the date of adoption of the 2012
Scheme, save as otherwise approved by shareholders of the
Company. The total number of shares of the Company
issued and to be issued upon exercise of the options granted
and to be granted to each participant or grantee (including
exercised and outstanding options) in any 12-month period
up to the date of grant shall not exceed 1% of the shares of
the Company in issue at the date of grant (the “Individual
Limit”). Any further grant of options in excess of the
Individual Limit must be subject to shareholders’ approval
in general meeting with such participant and his or her

associates abstaining from voting.

The acceptance of an offer of granting an option must be
made within 28 days from the date on which such offer is
made with a non-refundable payment of HK$1 from the
grantee to the Company by way of consideration for the
grant thereof. An option may be exercised at any time
during a period as the Board may determine which shall
not be more than 10 years commencing from the date of
grant of option. Save as determined by the Board and
provided in the offer of the relevant options, there is no
minimum period for which an option must be held before
it can be exercised under the 2012 Scheme. The
subscription price per share of the Company in respect of
any option granted under the 2012 Scheme shall be such
price as the Board in its absolute discretion shall determine,
save that such price will not be less than the highest of (i)
the closing price of the shares as stated in the daily
quotations sheet of the Stock Exchange on the date of offer
of the option, which must be a business day; (ii) the
average closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheets on the 5 business days
immediately preceding the date of offer of the option; and

(iii) the nominal value of the shares on the date of offer.

Tomson Group Limited % i £E B 4 FR /A 7]

29. I HE X AT AR 5 )

W I 55 AT AN B R 2 HEoE - AR
W oF— FEE B AR 2 B R
T EEAT 2 A w) B 1y e o IR 4 AR B
£5141,452,380/8% - B A 2 &) it 5% 44
TE ARG EE H B BT
10% - BB/ S HESRKIZALEBRE
B R B T+ @ A
N > R A A e 2 W R (B dE
AT B R AT E) T AT
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B AR ERRES B A
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29. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

29. i HE 3t 22 5 (an)

Under the 2012 Scheme, 4,200,000 shares of the Company

were issued upon exercise of share options in 2013. Under

g =T — —4FEFHE] > 4,200,000/%
AN T A A T — = AR AT B
WEREREAT o WP T — —4EFT
B R T — )\ HMEE R
7086 ~ 5 8 Bk 2% /% m B L 4 o
o _F—NE+_H=+—
Ho R4 T — FE5t 8 T 317
Z BB BB £137,252,3800% »
G AN A o R 2 B 38 4T AR
£16.59% o MR —F — ZFEFHH
A T A AF B A > M R R AT o

the 2012 Scheme, no option was granted, exercised,
cancelled or lapsed in 2018. Therefore, the maximum
number of shares available for issue under the 2012 Scheme
as at 31st December, 2018 was 137,252,380 representing
approximately 6.59% of the Company’s issued share capital
at the end of the reporting period. There are no
outstanding options granted under the 2012 Scheme
during both years.

HE o
30. BORROWINGS 30. fif 3
2018 2017
—E-N\E T LF
HK$’000 HK$’000
Tt T Wt
Short-term borrowings, secured a5 B8 2 A R 400,000 -
Current portion of long-term = WG 3 2 B AR 40
borrowings, secured PEEiEl 83,682 451,435
Total short-term borrowings R W R KA R 483,682 451,435
Long-term borrowings, secured B E K > AR 944,673 345,780
1,428,355 797,215
Carrying amount repayable: AR Z IR HE
Within one year — 4R A 483,682 451,435
More than one year, — 4 DL BN R A R AR
but not exceeding two years 153,681 14,408
More than two years Y A DA b (B 2t 4R
but not more than five years 572,089 72,037
More than five years AR, 218,903 259,335
1,428,355 797,215

Annual Report 2018 4 4F 4



165

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B £ BV 255 e o P

For the year ended 31st December, 2018 #( % —ZF— /\4F+_H =+—H ILF &

30. BORROWINGS (Continued)

The borrowings were secured by assets of the Group as

disclosed in Note 39.

Borrowings were floating-rate borrowings of
HK$1,428,355,000 (2017: HK$797,215,000) which
carried interest rates ranging from 3.57% to 5.39% (2017:

5.39% to 5.70%) per annum.

30. fif 3k (#1)

A G2 B A A SR A 2 A B

39 i -

& 3K B T B R R 1 3K1,428,355,000
ot (& — L4 797,215,000
J6) > FRIFAF3.57H 5,398 (—
F—LF 539EE5.70F) -

31. DEFERRED TAXATION 31. ¥E % B IR
Accelerated  Revaluation Exchange  Dividend
tax of difference  withholding Tax
depreciation properties AT  recognition tax losses Others Total
i Bl 1 (3] RE
RESE  WEEE O MER  EEER hER RER ) it
HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HKS000  HKS000
T T#r  Tix T T T#x  Ti#x T
Balance as at RZF—tE-A—F
Ist January, 2017 VA< (109481)  (1,820,668) 903,763 (46,890) - 14004 1943 (929,309)
(Charge) credit to RAEEGARER
consolidated statement o (47135() % [
profit or loss for the year (13,183)  (135,990) 107,168 = (93,469)  (146,500) (1,784 (283,759)
Disposal of subsidiaries HENE A - - - - - - (3,907) (3,907)
Bxchange adjustments o (8347)  (137481) 65,886 (3,578) - 4,476 (49 (79,088)
Balance as at REZ—LE+2A
31st December, 2017 =t-HzERk (131,011) ~ (2,094,139) 1,076,817 (50,468) (93,469) = (3,792)  (1,296,062)
Adjustment (Note 3) W (it - - - - - - (B (19519)
Balance as at RZZ—-\E—fA—H
Ist January, 2018 L5 (131,011)  (2,094,139)  1,076817  (50468)  (93,469) - (83,307)  (1,375,577)
(Charge) credit to RAEEGABRRR
consolidated statement o~ (47135) % [
profit or loss for the year (12,551) (63,429) 43,885 - 97,252 - (906) 64,251
Credit to other A2 X
comprehensive expense - - - - - - 14,965 14,965
Exchange adjustments B i 6,604 102,229 (45,304) 2,543 (3,783) = 4793 67,082
Balance as at REZ-NEFZH
3lstDecember, 2018 = F+—HZ &k (136,958) (2,055,339) 1075398 (47,925 - - (64459 (1,229.279)
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31. DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued)

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated
statement of financial position, certain deferred tax assets
and liabilities have been offset. The following is the analysis
of the deferred tax balances for financial reporting

purposes:

31.

9 Wt B I (4)

MBI MBIRWEM S > & T
EIEBLIHE E KA EC T8 - D
S i R ) S B T A
BRI

2018 2017

ZE N F L4

HK$’000 HK$’000

T T T W5 T

Deferred tax assets W SiE Bl VE A E 273,982 281,729
Deferred tax liabilities I SiE B TH A & (1,503,261) (1577 5750)
(1,229,279) (1,296,062)

At 31st December, 2018, the Group had unused tax losses
of HK$558.17 million (2017: HK$554.23 million)
available for offset against future profits. No deferred tax
assets have been recognised in respect of such tax losses due
to the unpredictability of future profit streams. Included in
unrecognised tax losses are losses of HK$95.11 million
(2017: HK$95.40 million) which will expire within five

years. Other losses may be carried forward indefinitely.

Withholding tax is imposed on dividends declared in
respect of profits earned by Mainland China subsidiaries
from 1st January, 2008 onwards. At 31st December, 2018,
the aggregate amount of distributable earnings of the
Group’s Mainland China subsidiaries in respect of which
the Group has not provided for dividend withholding tax
amounted to approximately HK$4,753.38 million (2017:
HK$5,101.92 million). No liability has been recognised in
respect of these amounts because the Group is in a position
in control of the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences and it is probable that such differences will not

reverse in the foreseeable future.

W_Z—NE+_H=+—H &
45 18 W] A K 8 oA 2R s R 2 R )
i JE &5 48 £5558,170,0004 7T (%
— L4 1 554,230,000% JC) ° B R
A A& i ] B S BT R P s IR R
#EaZ% 55 B TH i 1R e R R B K
B o RHERRFLIEEHF > 95,110,000
oo (& — L 4F 1 95,400,000% 7C)
Z e 4R A A TN JE R - HAth s 4R
A R & o

Hh B A b B R s i R R A —
H — H R BT & IR B S B B
HMB e R ZF— NE+ A
=+—H > AL MR KL R
SN RN W] I o T A B - B
4,753,380,000%5 70 (& — L 4 :
5,101,920,000%5 Jt) - fE i ik B 40
BB o R A AS 4R B A Be T B I
) B RF B 2 R M i S =]
NN BT N X 1 NP
A% S R TH R A -
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32.

33.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balances. The Group’s

overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, which
includes the borrowings disclosed in Note 30 and equity
attributable to owners of the Company, comprising issued
share capital, share premium, reserves and retained

earnings.

The Directors of the Company review the capital structure
periodically by considering the cost of capital and the risks
associated with each class of capital. When necessary, the
Group will balance its overall capital structure through the
payment of dividends, new share issues and share buy-backs

as well as the issue of new debt or the repayment of existing

debt.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(a) Categories of financial instruments

32. & A A b A B

AL EAE T E K SR A S
W R ] R A R R
A Al M5 B M i 45 B 2 B ARCRRE SR
B R [B]  o A 4R B 2 5 B
EFEEHERF S

AEBZEREBOEEYE (HH
AL 8 3 O B sE3045 88) ) A &
FHE 4 R A N RE AL R AR (45 C 8%
AT REA ~ ey dak M - Ak A % fR B i
A o

ARrEREMMATEARGNE E
LTS 5 R AN A K B A AR
ST WA 22 Ja B o WA R AR
VB 7 325 A R A BC U, - R AT R I I
73 1m0 38 > DA% 3% A7 0 185 B4R B
A B LA R B A S5

33. & T H

(a) ik T H 2

2018 2017
R
HK$’000 HK$°000
T T T
Financial assets B e
Financial assets at FVTPL WA TFEFTAEGEZ
BB G 882 -
Financial assets at amortised cost Pk SH R AR R 2
B B 6,464,017 6,016,288
Available-for-sale investments ATt E R - 188,713
Equity instruments at FEVTOCI i/ /A (= i /N = 1]
Wt 2 oA TR 436,031 —
Financial liabilities B AR
At amortised cost iz {8 51 A 2,021,683 1,381,670
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33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risks management objectives and

policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include
equity instruments at FVTOCI, financial assets at
FVTPL, available-for-sale investments, trade and
other receivables, amounts due from associates,
pledged bank deposits, bank deposits, cash and bank
balances, trade and other payables and borrowings.
Details of these financial instruments are disclosed in
the respective notes. The risks associated with these
financial instruments and the policies on how to
mitigate these risks are set out below. Management
manages and monitors these exposures to ensure
appropriate measures are implemented in a timely and
effective manner. There has been no significant
change to the Group’s exposure to financial risks or
the manner in which it manages and measures the

risks.

Market risks

(i) Currency risk

Certain cash and bank balances of the Group are
denominated in United States Dollars (“USD”)
and Renminbi (“RMB”) which are foreign
currency other than functional currency (i.e.
HKD) of the relevant group entities (see Note
27(c)). The Group currently does not have a
foreign currency hedging policy. However,
management monitors foreign exchange
exposure and will consider hedging significant

foreign currency exposure should the need arise.

33. @k TH )
(b) BA %5 )E B 45 PR H B %

Bk

AEE 2 EEEM T R A%
O3 R R H A 4 T Ui 4 2 i
ATH - #HAFEFAEGZ
MBEE ATl ERE - E
e B2 o MR Al 8 AR K
B 2 A ORI SR AT AR
A RATAE K B RRAT &
B~ I AT B 5 MR B At R A
MR DL R B 3K o 5% 5 i TR
Z w1 B A T B RE 0 B R
TS ZE M TAARZ
JaR i % A 3 A 7% <5 Jael i 2 I
W o P E R I LA A
B > LAHEOR BB K IRF F A 2800 1R
5 T8 Y 15 o A 4R B T R
J 5 JL gy L A B B R L B
2 F it Sl 4 TR A

T 85 )8\ g

() B b

AL A T B IR AT
BRI R T AR
(7% S0 ) T FF 45 A B 4
B 0 T BE B (B
Jt) FME (K E27(c)) -
AR H A A A R BCSh
iEESRUE @ N TR 2
& g B 1 REE JEL B > S
IR R
T 3 ) E R A e o
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33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risks management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Market risks (Continued)

@)

(ii)

Currency risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been
determined based on the exposure to currency

risk at the end of the reporting period.

No analysis is presented on HKD against USD
as HKD is pegged to USD and management of
the Company believes the foreign exchange

exposure is insignificant.

The following details the Group’s sensitivity to
a 5% (2017: 5%) appreciation/depreciation in
HKD against RMB.

*  DPost-tax profit for the year ended 31st
December, 2018 would decrease/increase
by approximately HK$1,790,000 (2017:
HK$1,307,000).

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate
risk in relation to bank deposits, bank balances
and variable-rate borrowings (see Note 30 for
details of these borrowings). It is the Group’s
policy to keep its borrowings at variable-rate of
interest so as to minimise the fair value interest
rate risk. The Group currently does not have an
interest rate hedging policy. However,
management monitors interest rate exposure and
will consider hedging significant interest rate

exposure should the need arise.

Tomson Group Limited % i £E B 4 FR /A 7]

33. @k T H )

(b) B 5 Ja\ B % B H A2 K

B (47)
T 355 JE B (4

() RWME ()

R E 7B

3 2 U E 2 A TS L
TP i R 2 B R L B

B 6 o B S ST b >
i 48 2 51 ¥ T Ak 5k T
2o ¥ BARNRE HE
AR Az 8 T O S HEE JRL B -

R A S
i N R THE B EH5%
(ZF— L4 5%) MK

e AEHEZE_ZF—N
#+—-_H=+—H
14 B 2 BR BLAR W
585 B 2> 1 &
1,790,000 7T (&
— Lt 4 11,307,000
WI6) o

(i) I B

A5 B2 [ R SRAT A7 3K~ SRAT
A B SR SR K (L5
HCRE 1 LT RE30) W ZH K
2B A AR o A%
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33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risks management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Market risks (Continued)

(ii) Interest rate risk (Continued)

The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk is
mainly concentrated on the fluctuation of the
market deposit rate and the Mainland China
official lending rate and Hong Kong Interbank
Offered Rate arising from the Group’s RMB

borrowings and HKD borrowings respectively.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been
determined based on the exposure to interest
rates risks for bank balances and variable-rate
borrowings. The analysis is prepared on the
balances at the end of reporting period. 50 and
100 basis points (2017: 50 and 100 basis points)
increase or decrease are used respectively which
represents management's assessment of the

reasonably possible change in interest rates.

In relation to the Group’s exposure to interest
rates risk on pledged bank deposits, bank
deposits and bank balances, if interest rates had
been 50 basis points (2017: 50 basis points)
higher/lower and all other variables were held
constant, the Group’s post-tax profit for the year
ended 31st December, 2018 would increase/
decrease by HK$25,652,000 (2017:
HK$18,497,000).

33. @k TH )

(b) 0% R B 4% PE H A K
B3R (45

i 355 JE B (42

(i) A F ) FE (4F)

A AR T 2 B 4 O A
B £ 2 4R P AR T 5 A K
M 2B e A AR
W i B L s T 1 K o
PN N A=
R AR ER R
B A B

B T

PLT B R RE 4 A T AR
P SR AT &5 R K7 B K
2 ) e B A ik E T
FE o I 43 B R i S A
R 2 &R A B o 4 AR
50510048 (—F—+
A 150 K 10055 B) Y1 N
w0 B HL e A B
| & 5 ) v] GE M A
fli st o

A B A AR T T R
TFERR > SRAT R S dRAT
4 B R R R B e AR B
F R BksoR B (—F
— L4 50 B) > AT
A At T A R R AR
o A ALEHEBRE —F
—NE+=_HA=+—8H
1E4F B 22 R B AR U6 R A
B 825,652,0009k
(= F — £ F
18,497,000 JT) ©
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33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 33. @k T H )

(b) Financial risks management objectives and (b) W5 B 45 B H AR &
policies (Continued) BUE (48)

Market risks (Continued) i 35 A\ B (42)

(ii) Interest rate risk (Continued)

(i) A F B (AE)

Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

Furthermore, in relation to the Group’s
exposure to interest rates risk on its variable-rate
borrowings, if interest rates had been 100 basis
points (2017: 100 basis points) higher/lower and
all other variables were held constant, the
Group’s post-tax profit for the year ended 31st
December, 2018 would decrease/increase by
HK$11,648,000 (2017: HK$5,979,000).

(iii) Equity price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk
through its equity instruments measured at
FVTPL and FVTOCI (2017: available-for-sale
investments) quoted in the Stock Exchange. For
equity instruments measured at FVTPL quoted
in the Stock Exchange, management intends to
manage this exposure by maintaining a portfolio
of investments with different risk profiles. In
additions, the Group also invested in certain
unquoted equity instruments for long term
strategic purposes which had been designed as
FVTOCI (2017: available-for-sale investments
measured at cost less impairment). The
Directors of the Company closely manage the
price risk by regularly reviewing the performance

of the unquoted equity instruments.

Tomson Group Limited % i £E B 4 FR /A 7]

R E 7T (FE)

WAk - A B A 4 ) T
77 B8 ORI 2B o i A
R EF T Ek100 2 (—
F—-L4F 10052 W
BT A H A mT A R A FE
Reg > IAREHRBEE —F
R S o e
1E AR B 2 R B AR U
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iy A2 e A S
5,979,000%5 JC) °
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17T 26 7 5 He A A A JL B
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33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 33. @k TH )

(b) Financial risks management objectives and (b) A% )R B 45 BE H B &
policies (Continued) BUE (45)
Market risks (Continued) i 355 JE B (42

(iii) Equity price risk (Continued) (iii) J& AN 15 M B (4 )

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been
determined based on the exposure to equity
price risks at the end of reporting period for
equity instruments excluding available-for-sale
investments measured at cost less impairment
for the year ended 31st December, 2017.
Sensitivity analysis for unlisted equity securities
with fair value measurement categorised within
Level 3 is disclosed in Note 33(c).

If the prices of the respective equity instruments
had been 10% (2017: 10%) higher/lower:

. post-tax profit for the year ended 31st
December, 2018 would increase/decrease
by HK$73,000 (2017: Nil) as a result of
the changes in fair value of financial assets

at FVTPL; and

. other comprehensive income would
increase/decrease by HK$14,829,000
(2017: HK$14,062,000) for the Group as
a result of the changes in fair value of
listed equity instruments at FVTOCI

(2017: listed available-for-sale investments).

R E 70T

5 2 R g3 A )5 AR
BoR R 2 kA T
R (#EzE_F—-—tH£+=
A=+—HIEHEELRE
& ¥ B A 40 8 (E S &
AR RE) ZRA
AR A% T i 27y ik YEE 17 76
AP E 7 & B R AR =
e BT R AR
T 2% B A b A R A BT G
33(c) °

A B A T B 2 8K
EF ST BR10% (%
—-E4FE 1 10%) > A :

e HWZE_-F — N\£F
+ZH=+—H1
A 2 B B AR T
A% 4% AP EFFA
Bu2zMBEEEAN
- (B 55 B G 18
W 073,000 00 (.
E—LHF M| &

o ALz HAth 2w
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33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risks management objectives and

policies (Continued)

Market risks (Continued)

(iii) Equity price risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis
is not representative of the Group’s equity price
risk as it only reflects the impact of equity price
changes to equity securities held at the year end

but not the exposure during the year.

Credit risk and impairment assessment

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in the
event of counterparties’ failure to perform their
obligations as at 31st December, 2018 in relation to
each class of recognised financial assets in the carrying
amount of those assets as stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position. In order to minimise
the credit risk, the management will monitor the
payment status of customers and perform necessary
procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken to

recover overdue debts.

As at 31st December 2017, the Group reviewed the
recoverable amount of each individual receivable to
ensure that adequate impairment losses are recognised
for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the
Directors of the Company consider that the Group’s

exposure to bad debts is minimal.

Tomson Group Limited 5 B 4 [ 45 FRA 7]
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33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risks management objectives and

policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment

(Continued)

The credit risk on bank balances, pledged bank
deposits and bank deposits with original maturity over
three months is limited because the counterparties are
banks with good reputation. The Group use 12m ECL
to perform the assessment under ECL model upon
application of HKFRS 9 (2017: incurred loss model)
individually. The impairment yet to be recognised are
insignificant. Other than concentration of credit risk
on bank balances, pledged bank deposits and bank
deposits with original maturity over three months
which are deposited with several banks with high credit
ratings assigned by international credit-rating agencies,
the Group does not have any other significant

concentration of credit risk.

The Directors of the company regularly reviewed and
assessed the gross amount of the Group’s trade
receivable of HK$7,721,000 for impairment under
lifetime ECL using reasonable and supportable
information that is available without undue cost or
effort in accordance with requirements of HKFRS 9.
In view of the balances of the trade receivables are
insignificant, no further disclosure on the impairment

were disclosed.

For other receivables and amounts due from
associates, the Directors of the Company regularly
reviewed and assessed the credit quality of the
counterparties. The Group performs impairments
assessment under ECL model upon application of
HKFRS 9 (2017: incurred loss model) individually.
In this regard, the Directors of the Company consider
that the credit risk on other receivables and amounts

due from associates is insignificant.
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33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 33. @k T H )

(b) Financial risks management objectives and (b) B4 %5 B 45 PR H B K
policies (Continued) BUE (48)
Credit risk and impairment assessment 5 B B K W AA BT A (42)
(Continued)
The Group’s internal credit risk grading assessment 7L [ 1 0 RS B R B BT AR AT
comprises the following categories: L 3E LA TR

Amounts due from

Internal credit associates and other
rating Descriptions receivables
I8 2 W Rk I

W Eb S ERER W L il J7E W 5k
Low risk The counterparty has a low risk of default and does not 12m ECL

have any past-due amounts
% JE B A 5y i B K JE B A > L Sl 4 AT AT 4 1 K 0E 1216 A G B 1R
Watch list Debtor usually settle after due date 12m ECL
BER 7B B N H B 8 H & AE A 126 A TG B 1R
Doubtful There have been significant increases in credit risk since Lifetime ECL

initial recognition through information developed internally  (not credit-impaired)

or external resources

175 H B KRR LR AE B R B B i N AR S i B R BN R HTEE B 1R
R B E B (RAEfE W HE)
Loss There is evidence indication the asset is credit-impaired Lifetime ECL
(credit-impaired)
k&5 18 B EUN G E B BUE B e 2B (G A
(B M5 EwE)
Write-off There is evidence indicating that the debtor is in severe Amount is written off

financial difficulty and the Group has no realistic prospect

of recovery

& A 4R BRI R85 N BB IR AR A I R R A
A g e 2 JE
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For the year ended 31st December, 2018 #% —%F— /\4F+_H =+—H ILFJF

33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risks management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continued)

The tables below detail the credit risk exposures of
the Group’s pledged bank deposits, bank deposits and
bank balances, amounts due from associate and other
receivables, which are subject to ECL assessment:

33. sk TH )

(b) % Rl B 4% PR H A K
B3R (A7)

e 8 L g B Yk AEL °F B (A

AR AR AR B 2 TR
B i 18 AP Al 2 SR ERAT A7 R
SRATAF K L SRATRE 85 - B A
A O e HAth R WSO K 2 A B

JEL B
External Internal 12m or Gross carrying
2018 credit rating credit rating lifetime ECL amount
B B 128 A 2k % 91
ZE )\ AhERAE EERESR WERE BWESR TG R W T A8 4
HK$000
%o
Financial assets
at amortised cost
& B 85 WA G &
Z &
Other receivables N/A Low risk 12m ECL i 8,166
A iR K A7 % = B 1210 H A B 518
Watch list 12m ECL 121,501
R 1210 H (S B 1E
Doubtful Lifetime ECL
(not credit iméaired) 14,946
feh )5 45 B
(R AEAE B E)
Loss Lifetime ECL
(credit-impaired) 3,670
B ESTE ey
(CAEME & E)
148,283
Amounts due from N/A Watch list 12m ECL 10,783
associates ‘
TSN 8 A7 H [ - 1246 A TG B 1R
Pledged bank BB+ or above N/A 12m ECL 6,303,365

deposits, bank
deposits and
bank balances
ST E g - BBeskBL L M
S 177 5k I
AT R

1218 A FE B 10
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For the year ended 31st December, 2018 #( % —ZF— /\4F+_H =+—H ILF &

33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risks management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continued)

The following tables show reconciliation of loss

33. @k T H )

(b) % Rl B 4% PR H A K
B3R (45

o L B O (4

T 2R 7 AL A R o R e R

allowances that has been recognised for other 2GR 2 HR
receivables:
Lifetime ECL  Lifetime ECL
(not credit- (credit-
12m ECL impaired) impaired) Total
2 30 8 0 2 30
1248 A #81 fri Bl fri il
A MR ORAF G B (C A fE BB At
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
T#T T T T
As at 31st December, 2017 2 & — L4
+ZA=+—H - - 3,322 3,322
Adjustment upon application 1 F (7 it BF 75 it o5
of HKFRS 9 HE Q) S0 E A% o B - - . -
As at Ist January, 2018 wFE— )\ 4F
—H—H - - 3,322 3,322
Changes due to financial & — H — H 72
instruments recognised as 1 T H T EH 2
at 1st January: S
— Impairment losses —E MR B
recognised 5 18 - - 556 556
— Impairment losses —EBEZBE
reversed g = - (40) (40)
— Exchange adjustments — e b8, 3 & - - (168) (168)
As at 31st December, 2018 =% — )\ 4F
+ZH=+—H - - 3,670 3,670
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For the year ended 31st December, 2018 #% —%F— /\4F+_H =+—H ILFJF

33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risks management objectives and

policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment

(Continued)

In accordance with HKFRS 9, the management has
assessed the impairment in relation to pledged bank
deposits, bank deposits and bank balances, the
amounts due from associates and other receivables
which are categorised under 12m ECL and lifetime
ECL (not credit impaired). The impairment yet to be

recognised are insignificant.

Liquidity risks

The Group is not exposed to any significant liquidity
risk as it has sufficient funds to meet its financial

obligations when they fall due.

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents generated from operations which are
deemed adequate by the management to finance the
Group’s operations and to mitigate the effects of
fluctuations in cash flows. The Group will consider to

raise bank borrowings when it is necessary.
Liquidity risk table

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial
liabilities. The table has been drawn up based on the
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based
on the earliest date on which the Group can be
required to pay. The table includes both interest and
principal cash flows. To the extent that interest flows
are floating rate, the undiscounted amount is derived

from interest rate at the end of the reporting period.

33. @k TH )
(b) BA %5 )E B 45 PR H B %

B (A7)

e 8 L g B Yk AEL °F B (A

AR (T v B 5 o E R 269
9% HE E K SR AT A7
AR~ SRATAF A ERAT A B W
B ] R H A R WU T
R (E - H B AR 121R A
HHME SRR A AR
i ORIEfE EBE) - MR
T RS Wi(E 2 R -

Ui By B < A g

HR A4 B A e B & 2 U
T B3 H AR A B S B RO
A 45 B T 2 O B B e LR
A AR EK

TE 8 B B & B R b - AR £
B AR B E TR
BekBeFHER2EHE
85 T B RFDUREAT A 4 3
B TR LR
HE - AEESER T RS
J& [ R AT

i ) B & B 7

R A 4R [ Y A A B S
BREZBTaR2MIER - 1t
R IR IR SR B A 7T RE B B oK
fE B 5 B R0 e - H O 2 B
B A UK I BB & O R
Wl o WREHME KA S B
EE o TEFM B E R TFEH A
RZATHET > AR B G U
Wl R ZFHGH -
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33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 33. @k T H )

(b) Financial risks management objectives and (b) B4 %5 B 45 PR H B K
policies (Continued) BUE (48)
Liquidity risks (Continued) mEE & 8 bE (42)
Liquidity risk table (Continued) B & & B % (4F)
Weighted
average  On demand Total Total
effective ~ orlessthan 3 months 7 months undiscounted cartying
interest rate 3 months  to 6 months tolyear  Overlyear  cash flows amount
mEFSs  BEXK  =HAZ LA A MBI &

ERAE  =ZHANR ~iA 2 CENE REME REAM
HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HK$000
T AL T T T T

As at 315t December, 2018 REZ— )\

A==
Non-derivative financial i e AR
liabilities
Trade and other payables Rt B AR R
H R iRt - 593308 - L - 59338 593318
Borrowing - variable rate AR 4,194% 155 483,788 36,149 L1812 1716496 1,428,355

608,650 483,788 36,149 1,181,037 2,309,824 2,021,683

As at 315t December, 2017 REF—LE
+=A=1-H

Non-derivative financial etk £ 15
liabilities

Trade and other payables TEMB AR

bR S 155 - - - SBASS S8

Borrowing - variable rate -8 SA4T% 453,568 4756 16356 STA090  L48770 797,015

1,038,023 4756 16,356 574,090 1,633,225 1,381,670

The above undiscounted cash flows amounts could ik A 5 HA A5 7% B s &) > HI| B ol ok
change if there are movements in floating interest RG34 0 B SRR IS S ) o

rates subsequent to the reporting period.
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33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(c) Fair value measurements of financial
instruments

Some of the Group’s financial instruments are
measured at fair value at the end of each reporting
period on a recurring basis. The following table gives
information about how the fair values of these
financial instruments are determined (in particular,

the valuation techniques and inputs used).

Fair value as at 31st December

33. @k TH )

()

&l T HZ A PHEAE

A S P 4 R A% R A
SO AR e 8 6 B DL P (E T
B o RN A B o] E
SF R T HZAFE (KR 2
JIT (55 FH A0 Al (65 907 B g A\ %)
i R o

R S Fair value Valuation techniques
2FAE hierarchy and key inputs
Financial assets 2018 2017 AHE%HK 1l 8 4l B = B A\ %
B &R “R-N\E ZZ L
HK$’000 HK$’000
SR THTT
Financial assets at FVTPL 882 - Level 1 Quoted prices in an active
market
N TEFT AR B & F— JA T B i 85 2 1
Equity instruments at FVTOCI
Fe s TAEFT A A 2 T i s 2
A T A
— Listed equity investment 148,292 140,622 Level 1 Quoted prices in an active
market
- EiiRARE % JATE B 35 2 B AE
— Unlisted equity investments 287,739 N/A  Level 3 Market approach for business
enterprises valuation with
reference to the market
capitalisation of listed
entities in similar
industries with
consideration of
marketability discount of
25% and adjustment of the
idle cash
- FEiiRARE AERH F=R SEBMITEN T E Y
i (38 % 18 259 T 5 i
PR I ] B B 4 TR AR
HEE A EETHENT
5T
436,913 140,622
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For the year ended 31st December, 2018 #( % —ZF— /\4F+_H =+—H ILF &

33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(c) Fair value measurements of financial

instruments (Continued)

Note:

A slight increase in the marketability discount used in
isolation would result in a significant increase in the fair
value measurement of the private equity investments, and

vice versa.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had no

Level 2 fair value measurements financial instruments.

There were no transfers into or out of Level 1 and

Level 3 during the year.

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value
measurements

Unlisted equity investments measured at FVTOCI

33. @k T H )
() &R THZAFMHEZE

(4
it -
S8 G T 40 1175 09 97

B o 5 4R B0 S SBOHE B 0
ERFEEFERN > R ZTRR -

TR IR > A 58 [ SIf 48 5 —
BAEFTEEHMTHE -

EN O MR R =
SENEE T (S T

B G B 2 BHIR

2 P AR A I 2 i g 2
FE LA B

HK$’000
T

As at 31st December, 2017
Reclassification of equity instruments at

EVTOCI upon application of HKFRS 9

Fair value gain upon application of HKFRS 9

As at 1st January, 2018
Fair value loss recognised in
other comprehensive income
Effect of foreign exchange rate change

As at 31st December, 2018

Except the financial assets that are measured at fair
value on a recurring basis, the Directors of the
Company consider that the carrying amounts of
financial assets and financial liabilities recognised in
the consolidated financial statements approximate
their fair values.

Tomson Group Limited 5 B 4 [ 45 FRA 7]

I e e e ] -
i R T A s B 5 e 4 M BT 56

9 AR Fie N TAE 7T A HAth A 1

Wt 2 A T H 2 &840 4 48,091
A FE PR W B 5 i s B 1)) 5

998K 2 8 AR IR 4 317,688
A B— NE—H—H 365,779

A A 2 AT A % A RR 2 A TE
&5 18 (60,566)

A i R S Y B (17,474)
w_E—NE+_H=+—H 287,739

B 4% LW PR R HE DL A P EHFH B Z B
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ARISING FROM FINANCING

ACTIVITIES

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
LR A R B G
For the year ended 31st December, 2018 #% —%F— /\4F+_H =+—H ILFJF

34. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities

arising from financing activities, including both cash and

non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing are

those from which cash flows were, or further cash flows will

be, classified in the Group’s consolidation statement of

cash flows as cash flows from financing activities.

34.

Al i B R Ak 2 B IR

TRASIALEEBMEFHELEZA
HEs UEReE RS -
Rl B A 2 BRI IR Bl R
B EUORACH & B R AL &S B
EMEBERT O AMEEHELZ

Hemez A -

Interest
payable
(included in
Amount due trade and
to a joint other payables
Borrowings venture  and accruals) Total
HE £ 8
(Gt ABER B 5
JR K~ At
B —%  BEAHHR &
fisk GEMEEKEH  HEERM) At
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
T#70 T#7T T#7t Ti#t
At Ist January, 2017 A —F—tHFE—-H—H 1,790,150 55,779 2,407 1,848,336
Financing cash flows SR & E (1,121,791) (55,779) (85,879) (1,263,449)
Interest expenses AL B - - 86,180 86,180
Effect of foreign exchange SN SRS 2 B
rate changes 128,856 - - 128,856
At 31st December, 2017 NoE—+E
+ZA=+—H 797,215 - 2,708 799,923
Financing cash flows B BB 671,314 — (43,952) 627,362
Interest expenses FIE BE - - 51,717 51,717
Effect of foreign exchange M s s L R
rate changes (40,174) - - (40,174)
At 31st December, 2018 =% — )\
+-A=t+—H 1,428,355 - 10,473 1,438,828
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35. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 35. AR AL IR
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had no AR AR > AR 48 [ R AF 1Y
material contingent liabilities for both years. S M R SR A A o
36. COMMITMENTS 36. & #fs
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had the R AR - AL E 2 EERE W
following material commitments: o 8
(a) Commitments in relation to expenditure (a) AR HEIHZ
on properties under development: R
2018 2017
e
HK$°000 HK$000
T # T Tt
Contracted but not provided for E R A9 {5 & B8 126,800 153,182
(b) Operating lease arrangements: (b) KEMBERH:
(i) The Group as lessee () AEEAEZRMAN
At the end of the reporting period, the Group TR R > AR R R AT il
had outstanding commitments under SHREHE s AEEAR
non-cancellable operating leases which fall due: N FAE A N B 2 RS
2018 2017
BN\ —EF-LF
HK$°000 HK$°000
T #c T T
— within one year ——FN 8,258 11,174
— in the second to fifth year inclusive — 5 AR R AR
(BLIEE R W 4F) 4,333 14,496
— over five years — AR - 490
12,591 26,160
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36. COMMITMENTS (Continued)

(b) Operating lease arrangements: (Concinued)

(@)

(ii)

The Group as lessee (Continued)

Operating lease payments represent rentals of
properties payable by the Group for certain of
its office properties. The operating leases relate
to office properties with terms of between one

to two years (2017: one to three years).

The Group as lessor

The properties held have committed tenants
from the majority of one year up to the

maximum of eight years.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group

had contracted with tenants for the following

36. K

)

(b) BEMERH : @

@@

(ii)

AREEAEBAMAN ()

408 L IR 46 A AR
A S
B2 L e o
UEFE -1 L3 P
ToEWE(CF &
£ —FE=HF)

74 45 [ A 2 /LA

ESEE . i PN
wHBKRZE—F > &k
B AR o

R R - REAEH
SR BTET & 4 > &M

future minimum lease payments which fall due: NZE A R B 4FE B R 3 A5
Z AR AT ¢

2018 2017

ZE2-)N\E ZF—LEF

HK$’000 HK$°000

T # T T ¥t

— within one year ——FR 125,588 168,884
— in the second to fifth year inclusive — 5B AT AR

(G458 B W) 56,106 116,718

— over five years —hHEM E 4,880 9,274

186,574 294,876
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37. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

The Group participates in a Mandatory Provident Fund
(“MPE”) Scheme established under the Hong Kong
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance in
December 2000. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held
separately from those of the Group, in funds under the
control of an independent trustee. Under the rules of the
MPF Scheme, the employer and the employees are obliged
to make contributions at the specified rate under the

scheme.

The contributions arising from the MPF Scheme charged
to the consolidated statement of profit or loss represent
contributions paid and payable to the fund by the Group at

rates specified in the rules of the scheme.

The employees in the Mainland China are members of
respective state-managed defined contribution retirement
benefits schemes operated by the local governments. The
employers and the employees are obliged to make
contributions at a certain percentage of the payroll under
rules of the schemes. The only obligation of the Group
with respect to the retirement benefit schemes is to make

the specified contributions.
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38. RELATED AND CONNECTED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Group had the following significant

transactions with related and connected parties:

(a)

A substantial shareholder of Rivera (Holdings)
Limited (“RHL”) together with her close family
members control the Company and that shareholder
has significant influence over RHL. Accordingly,
RHL is considered as a related party of the Company.
The Company agreed to provide administrative
services to and share office premises with RHL and its
subsidiaries in Hong Kong, and in return, RHL is
required to share an attributable portion of the
administrative cost of the Company on a cost basis.
During the year ended 31st December, 2018, the
administrative cost of the Company shared by RHL
amounted to HK$5,183,000 (2017: HK$4,984,000).
As at 31st December, 2018 and 2017, no outstanding
balance was owed by RHL.

The above transaction constitutes a continuing
connected transaction of the Company but is
exempted from disclosure and independent
shareholders” approval requirements under the Listing
Rules.

38. B 7 K BEN LR 5

AR TN o A S A B T % BN L
HUTERZY :

(a)

7% A & B 1] e 4R 8 A BR A A
(T)UAT ) — A% 35 B e o K Hoar
PR > T R% 4 AR A
HAES o Bt IR
By AN 2 BTy o AR ][R
T T s R A AT B S )1 T
S LB 4N ® DA R 3t R S
o 0 )1 YA] 2 A B AN e Ay 1
AN FIATECE B 2 AL BB o
e ey AN oy R = R
HIEAFERE > NS IEANF Z
178 H £45,183,0000 76 (—
E— L F 1 4,984,000 7T) o
W_F - NFR_F—-LF
+A=Z+—H > Il X
ASF AR 2 BT o] o 5 2 &6 6% o

A b 52 5y 5 AR % ) 22 45 A T
WG MR e (Ew
LR 2 49 8 Je 8 S7. e SR 41t o
ZHUE -
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38. RELATED AND CONNECTED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Compensation of key management personnel

(b)

W R BENLR S

FTEEHANBZME

The remuneration of Directors of the Company ERNANFHEEZFHWMAT -
during the year was as follows:

2018 2017
SEE SE b
HK$’000 HK$°000
T # 0 T # T
Short-term benefits L 4 A 25,619 24,490
Post-employment benefits R ARAE F 36 36
25,655 24,526

The remuneration of Directors is determined by the
Board (or under the authorisation of the shareholders
of the Company as the case may be) by reference to
market terms, individual responsibilities and
performance, and recommendation from the

remuneration committee of the Board.

The balances due from associates and a joint venture
at the end of the reporting period are set out in Notes

23 and 24, respectively.

The above transactions were conducted in accordance
with terms mutually agreed between the Group and

the respective related parties.

Tomson Group Limited 5 B 4 [ 45 FRA 7]

(©)

EHEHMIRERF (BURE
AN R BOR 2 5% HE - #L4% DL i
) 275 T 5 38 K F A8 R
ANEZELERE > U R#EH
JE T 2 B % B a2 ki
i E o

T R B R 22 R ST N T
— R BB EL T 5 A H R
B 5E23 K224 ©

E Rl 52 T B A A R B A ]
7 8 75 Al B 2 R AOETT -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Ao £ BV 255 o i

For the year ended 31st December, 2018 #% —%F— /\4F+_H =+—H ILFJF

39. PLEDGE OF ASSETS

Assets with the following carrying amounts have been pledged
to secure the Group’s borrowings of HK$1,428.355 million
(2017: HK$797.215 million):

39. & & Z K4

THBREA(H 2 & B O A 4
8 & %A £51,428,355,0004 76 (— &
—-4E 1 797,215,000 70) FE4E A7

2018 2017
—E-NE L LR
HK$’000 HK$000
T # T T
Investment properties Eitd-L7ES - 5,883,059
Properties held for sale frEY 424,490 440,104
Pledged bank deposits (Note) A SRAT A 3K (M 7E) 1,334,590 983,298
1,759,080 7,306,461

Note: WrEE -

The pledged bank deposits pledged to secure the Group’s
borrowings carry interest at rates which range from 0.30%
to 3.85% (2017: 0.30% to 1.95%) per annum. Deposits
amounting to HK$535,857,000 (2017: HK$41,450,000)
have been pledged to secure short-term borrowings and are
therefore classified as current assets. The balance of
HK$798,733,000 (2017: HK$941,848,000) have been
pledged to secure long-term borrowings and are therefore

classified as non-current assets.

VE 5 K40 DI FR A 4 [ 5 & 2 JK 4
SRATAFE K - HAFEFFE A T0.30H =
3.850E (& — L4 : 0.30H £1.95
JH) ° 4 %6 £5535,857,000% 06 (&
— L 4F : 41,450,000% 5C) Z 173K A
VEAE (R S 0 £ B 2 30 - R G Bl 40
BT E) & E - 45 68798,733,0005
JC (=& — L4 1 941,848,000 J0)
O 9 IR = A VR4 > By
BRhEREERE -
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For the year ended 31st December, 2018 #( % —ZF— /\4F+_H =+—H ILF &

40. FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF

THE COMPANY

The Company’s Statement of Financial Position as at 31st

40. A 2 Vi) 2 VA B B R

R-ZF—AET_R=+—-H: &

December, 2018 is as follows: IR Z IABAR MR
2018 2017
“ERNE DL
HK$’000 HK$’000
T T T T
Non-Current Assets Ik B A A
Investments in subsidiaries o 2N ) % & 637,404 637,404
Amounts due from subsidiaries JRE Wiz BFF Ja 2 ) 3K TR 2,148,146 2,186,094
Available-for-sale investments At ERE - 315
Club debenture o B & 55 315 =
2,785,865 S22 1L5)
Current Assets B E
Amounts due from subsidiaries JE Wit Bf B 2 ) S TE 355,000 454,551
Other receivables and prepayments Lt 8 A B K B TELAS 3K IE 8,057 3,646
Bank deposits SRAT A K 700,000 -
Cash and bank balances B4 T SRAT 45 % 764,881 392,074
1,827,938 850,271
Current Liabilities i B B E
Amounts due to subsidiaries JREASt BfF g 2 ) K IE 535,593 484,463
Other payables and accruals At 1 AT B 3k K 7E 4% 22 16,838 16,697
552,431 501,160
Net Current Assets i B & A 1,275,507 349,111
Total Assets less Current Liabilities H8F s DU B A 4,061,372 3,172,924
Capital and Reserves A K At
Share capital g A 1,040,918 942,792
Share premium and reserves JS Ay v A T At A 3,020,454 2,230,132
Total Equity A 4,061,372 3,172,924
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Ao £ BV 255 o i

For the year ended 31st December, 2018 #% —%F— /\4F+_H =+—H ILFJF

41. COMPANY’S SHARE PREMIUM AND 41. A 2> W] J B i 16 K% Gl A
RESERVES
Capital
Share redemption Contributed Retained
premium reserve surplus earnings Total
Bt EAWMEGE AARE  REGH frat
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
T SR T T SR
Balance at Ist January, 2017 A ~ & —L4F
—HA—HZ &% 2,035,781 16,608 327,645 11,117 2,391,151
Profit for the year R F - = = 108,655 108,655
Issue of shares under scrip TR DU AL B 518
dividend scheme BT 467,802 - - = 467,802
Dividend paid for 2016 R = F—ANEE
i35} (737,476) - - TR
Balance at R-F—tHE+ZH
31st December, 2017 =t—Hz&% 1,766,107 16,608 327,645 119,772 2,230,132
Profit for the year A JE Y ) = - - 1,074303 1,074,303
Issue of shares under scrip ~ HR¥ELARBEAC B 51
dividend scheme AT 526,820 = = - 526,820
Dividend paid for 2017 RN ZF—LHE
958 (810,801) = = - (810,801)
Balance at w_Z— )\&E+_H
31st December, 2018 =t —HZH 1,482,126 16,608 327,645 1,194,075 3,020,454
42. MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS 42. FBRIEBER 5

During the year ended 31st December, 2018, the Group
issued 196,252,578 new shares (2017: 170,525,050 new
shares) as scrip dividend of HK$624,946,000 for the year
ended 31st December, 2017 (HK$553,064,000 for the year
ended 31st December, 2016) as set out in Notes 14 and
28.

REE—E—/\FE+_H=1+—H
1 4E B A4 H E 85 47196,252,578
B o By (= & — B o
170,525,050 % #r 1% f3) A& 8 2 —
E—tHE+_H=1+—HILEEZ
B 5.624,946,000% & (# £ —~ &
—ANE+_A=+—HBILtEES
553,064,000% 7o) (G 7A Bt 5E14 &%
28) ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
S5 A R B G
For the year ended 31st December, 2018 #( % —ZF— /\4F+_H =+—H ILF &

43. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES, 43. FEME AT -
ASSOCIATES AND Wk 2 oy m)
A JOINT VENTURE —KaEMRE
Principal subsidiaries as at 31st December, 2018 ) A A S T 2 = e
HZ E2HEA A
Paid up issued  Proportion of issued share
Place of ordinary share  capital/voting power/effective
incorporation and capital/  interest in registered capital
Name of subsidiary operation registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
Ak AR K BROBTSER  AAASECBINA/
it 2% W) 44 A BEH Y Bk /GEMEA BN/ GEME ARG LR FEEE
Directly Indirectly
H% fi B
% %
Charlesville Limited British Virgin Islands US$100 100 - Investment holding
KBRS 10037t 14-sdle
Cosmos Success Development Limited ~ Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100 Investment holding
EBERARAR il 10,0001 ¢ RER
Farskill Development Limited Hong Kong HKS$2 - 100 Investment holding
fHEA R A R ik WL ia=eide
Garland Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100 Investment holding
RARAR ik 10,0009 ¢ REHR
Grand Lion Limited Hong Kong HKS$2 = 100 Investment holding
HEHRAR Fifs BT REHR
Grand View Property Management Mainland China US$500,000 - 100 Property management
(Shanghai) Co., Ltd. (Note (1))
HEEEH (LE) FRAR B A 500,000 7 NEEH
(Wit )
Humphreys Estate (Strawberry Houses)  Hong Kong HK$200 - 100 Securities trading
Limited Bk 20047 wrEE
Ideal Movement Limited Hong Kong HK$2 - 100 Property holding
BEARAH ik 2T ESEE
Island Sky Limited Hong Kong HKS1 - 100 Inactive
REARAR i 1T WEH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
LR A R B G
For the year ended 31st December, 2018 #% —%F— /\4F+_H =+—H ILFJF

43. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES, 43. FEM B A -
ASSOCIATES AND Wk 2 A |l )
A JOINT VENTURE (Continued) —XAa&EEE @

R-F-NE+_A=1+—

Principal subsidiaries as at 31st December, 2018

(Continued) H2Z 2B A &)
Paid up issued  Proportion of issued share
Place of ordinary share  capital/voting power/effective
incorporation and capital/ interest in registered capital
Name of subsidiary operation registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
Ak BT K BROBOLER  AXARHCBIRA/
I 2 22 REH BeA/GEMEAR BEHE/ GEMEARERERILE LEEE
Directly Indirectly
H# T &
% %
Jentime Limited Hong Kong HK$2 - 100 Providing property services
to the Group
ERERAR il 2T BAE BRI ERE
Kuto Limited Hong Kong HKS$2 = 100 Investment holding
HEl Y5 A PR il 2T RELK
Maxi Charm Holdings Ltd. British Virgin Islands US$1 - 100 Investment holding
RBEMRHE ES RELK
MHK (Penha Hill) Limited British Virgin Islands US$30,000 - 70 Property development
KBRS 30,0005 ¢ YRR
Model Year Limited Hong Kong HKS$2 = 100 Investment holding
A#AHRAR il 2T &K
Multiclassic Investments Inc. British Virgin Islands US$40,200,000 - 100 Investment holding
RBETAS 40,200,0005 76 B
Owina Limited Hong Kong HKS$2 = 100 Investment holding
Bk RAR Fifs W &R
Shanghai Tomson Huangpu Real Estate  Mainland China US$18,500,000 - 100 Property development
Development Co., Ltd. (Note (1))
HEGEERFAEREARAT  TEAL 18,500,000% 7 ERid

(M7 1)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
S5 A R B G
For the year ended 31st December, 2018 #( % —ZF— /\4F+_H =+—H ILF &

43. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES, 43. L 2B A F -

ASSOCIATES AND Bk 25 o vl )%

A JOINT VENTURE (Continued) R % {j\ {é 1 % (74

Principal subsidiaries as at 31st December, 2018 1‘1‘&‘ e Ay A 2

(Continued) H2Z FEME A )

Paid up issued  Proportion of issued share
Place of ordinary share  capital/voting power/effective
incorporation and capital/ interest in registered capital
Name of subsidiary operation registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
Ak K BRCBGEER  AAARACELRA/
O 2% ) 24 R th b Bk /GEMEAR BEHE/GEMEAEREGILE FEER
Directly Indirectly
H# fil %
% %

Shanghai Tomson Investment Mainland China RMB1,000,000 - 100 Investment holding
Management Co. Limited (Note (3))

LGRS EEHARAT B B %1,000,0007 REER
(H##3)

Shanghai Tomson Outer Gaogiao Mainland China US$15,000,000 - 100 Property development
Development Co., Ld. (Noze (1))

LG A AR A R f B 9 15,000,000 ¢ ES I
(Wit ()

Shanghai Tomson Plastic Company Mainland China RMB1,000,000 - 100 PVC pipes and fittings trading
Limited (Noze (3)

FEGEEBARAR (HiE3) PR AR #1,000,0007 BEREHRE

Shanghai Tomson Pudong Real Estate ~ Mainland China US$46,000,000 - 70 Property development
Development Co., Ld. (Noze (2))

tEGERREREREARAT PR 46,000,000% ¢ ES TS
(it )

Shanghai Tomson Real Estate Mainland China US$100,000,000 - 100 Property development and
Investment & Development investment holding
Co., Ltd. (Note (1))

LG EREREARAR B 100,000,000 7t ESI TSl
(Wit ()

Toben Limited Hong Kong HKS$2 = 100 Investment

ERARAT ik BT R
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
LR A R B G
For the year ended 31st December, 2018 #% —%F— /\4F+_H =+—H ILFJF

HRAR (W)

43. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES, 43. TEMH A -
ASSOCIATES AND Wi & oy m) &
A JOINT VENTURE (Continued) RN % /El\ ﬁ {L\ % (#&)
Principal subsidiaries as at 31st December, 2018 n_—Z—N\#+_H=+—
(Continued) H2Z 2B A &)
Paid up issued  Proportion of issued share
Place of ordinary share  capital/voting power/effective
incorporation and capital/ interest in registered capital
Name of subsidiary operation registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
Ak BT K BROBOLER  AXARHCBIRA/
I 2 22 REH BeA/GEMEAR BEHE/ GEMEARERERILE LEEE
Directly Indirectly
H# T &
% %
Tomson Administration Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 100 - Providing administrative
services to the Group
i 10,0009 7 T 4 2 [ 47 4477 B TR
Tomson (China) Limited Hong Kong HKS$2 - 100 Investment holding
Wik () AR Hi 2T e
Tomson Corporate (L.P.) Limited Hong Kong HKS$2 100 - Trademark holding
Vb (ki) A R A ) Hi 2T HEA
Tomson Corporation British Virgin Islands US$1 100 - Investment holding
BRERIHE B RELK
Tomson Empire View Co. Limited British Virgin Islands US$65,010,000 - 100 Investment holding
A R A R EBERAHE 65,010,000% 7T fErE R
Tomson Financial Investment Limited ~ Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100 Investment holding
ViR EARA it 10,0004 7 iaseidle
Tomson Golf (Shanghai) Mainland China US$40,000,000 - 100 Golf course and club
Limited (Note (1)) operation, and property
development
BEAETK (L) ARAR rh B 7 40,000,000% ¢ RWERG R ETEE
(Wit1) DAy 35 e
Tomson Group Garland (Shanghai) Mainland China US$16,000,000 - 100 Property development
Housing & Estate Ltd. (Noze (1))
GEEEEN (LG FhE i A 16,000,000% 7 ERid

Annual Report 2018 44

194



195

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B £ BV 255 e o P

For the year ended 31st December, 2018 #( % —ZF— /\4F+_H =+—H ILF &

43. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES,
ASSOCIATES AND
A JOINT VENTURE (Continued)

Principal subsidiaries as at 31st December, 2018

43.

%:g

A 2 2 (2 s

(Continued) H2Z FEME A )
Paid up issued  Proportion of issued share
Place of ordinary share  capital/voting power/effective
incorporation and capital/ interest in registered capital
Name of subsidiary operation registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
Ak K BRCBGEER  AAARACELRA/
O 2% ) 24 R th b Bk /GEMEAR BEHE/GEMEAEREGILE FEER
Directly Indirectly
H# fil %
% %

Tomson Group (Nominees) Limited Hong Kong HK$20 = 100 Providing nominee services to
the Group and investment
holding

WS (RIA) AR A ik 200 T RS AR LA AR &
RELR

Tomson Group (Nominees) Hong Kong HK$20 = 100 Providing nominee services to

No. 2 Limited the Group
GEEREZ (RENARAT & 2% RAE B R AR AR
Tomson Haijing Garden (Shanghai Mainland China 1S$58,200,000 - 100 Property development

Pudong New Area) Co., Ltd. (Note (1))

Vo B AL I (L SR ) fh B A 58,200,000% ¢ UES

HRAR (Hit1)

Tomson International Entertainment ~ Hong Kong HKS$2 - 100 Investment holding and

Company Limited investment in live

entertainment shows
business

o B R A R ) ik BT REL IR KB E B ER
Hi B

Tomson International Entertainment ~ Hong Kong HKS$1 - 100 Film distribution

Distribution Limited
W R R AR A ik 197 Ak 1)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Ao £ BV 255 o i

For the year ended 31st December, 2018 #% —%F— /\4F+_H =+—H ILFJF

43. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES,

ASSOCIATES AND

A JOINT VENTURE (Continued)

Principal subsidiaries as at 31st December, 2018

43.

S A A
k2 N\ K
—XEELE @

R-F-NE+_A=1+—

(Continued) H2Z 2B A &)
Paid up issued  Proportion of issued share
Place of ordinary share  capital/voting power/effective
incorporation and capital/ interest in registered capital
Name of subsidiary operation registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
GRS BRCBGLER  AXARACBLRA/
O 2% ) 24 REth b Bk /GEMEAR BEHE/GEMEAEREGILE FEER
Directly Indirectly
H# fil %
% %
Tomson International Trade Building ~ Mainland China US$16,800,000 - 100 Property development
(Shanghai) Co., Ltd. (Note (4))
GEEEAE (HE) ARAR B 16,800,000 70 E
(W)
Tomson Investment Limited Hong Kong HKS$3 100 - Investment holding
GEREHRAH ik 3T RER
TPR Secretarial Services Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 100 - Providing secretarial services to
the Group and investment
holding
Eil 10,0007 PO IR T A R
B
Yamako Limited Hong Kong HKS$2 - 100 Investment holding
JROCR R ) ik 2T RER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
S5 A R B G
For the year ended 31st December, 2018 #( % —ZF— /\4F+_H =+—H ILF &

Principal subsidiaries as at 31st December, 2018
(Continued)

Notes: For those subsidiaries established in the Mainland
China, their classification of establishment is as

follows:

(1) limited liability company (solely funded by

Taiwan, Hong Kong or Macau corporate)

(2) limited liability company (Taiwan, Hong
Kong or Macau and domestic equity joint

venture)

(3) limited liability company solely funded by a

foreign invested enterprise

(4) limited liability company (Taiwan, Hong

Kong or Macau equity joint venture)

There have been no material changes on the details of the

principal subsidiaries for both years.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities
outstanding at the end of the year, or at any time during

the year.

Summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s
non-wholly owned subsidiary that has material
non-controlling interest is set out below. The summarised
financial information below represents amounts before

intergroup eliminations.
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43. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES, 43. FEM B A -
ASSOCIATES AND Wk 2 A\l K
A JOINT VENTURE (Continued) R % {j\ {é 13 (4

%

- A o A (5
Z EEM &AW 4

BEAE : R v B MR ST Y R B
A HSr A

(1) ARBEELF (AR
ENEE)

2 AREELF (FH#ER
L NEE)

(3) ShE I E A KE AR
HAHREAEA A

4) ARBEELF (BER
7EH)

TE W18 4F B2 1 5 2 A JB 2 =D B A5
fr 48 E R S E o

2 B T > W 4 &5 B BUAF A AE AT IR
] UL S0 A e 1o oA A 2 AR B O
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
LR A R B G
For the year ended 31st December, 2018 #% —%F— /\4F+_H =+—H ILFJF

43. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES, 43, FEME AT -
ASSOCIATES AND Wi & oy m) &
A JOINT VENTURE (Continued) —XAa&EEE @
Principal subsidiaries as at 31st December, 2018 n_—Z—N\#+_H=+—
(Continued) H2Z 2B A &)
MHK (Penha Hill) Limited MHK (Penha Hill) Limited
2018 2017
S = =
HK$’000 HK$’000
T T T ¥
Properties held for sale FREY) % 523,581 525,027
Other current assets HoAth i B & = 57,908 162,421
Total current assets A 581,489 687,448
Non-current assets FE ) - 104
Current liabilities N (132,637) (111,026)
Equity attributable to owner EN/NEEIE S E= P =N
of the Company JRE A HE 2 314,196 403,568
Non-controlling interest FE 2 B 1B R 2 134,656 172,958
Revenue e A 1,500 338,657
Expenses 5 (84,174) (148,765)
(Loss) profit for the year FEE (1) A (82,674) 189,892
(Loss) profit and total comprehensive FEAE (518 6 A M 2 1
(expense) income attributable to: (B0 Wt A ZE a0 R -
Owner of the Company ZN/NEIL E RS RSN (57,872) 132,924
Non-controlling interest FE 2 B 1 TR 4 (24,802) 56,968
(82,674) 189,892
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
S5 A R B G
For the year ended 31st December, 2018 #( % —ZF— /\4F+_H =+—H ILF &

43. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES, 43. L EME A H -
ASSOCIATES AND Wt 2= 2w
A JOINT VENTURE (Continued) —XAEEE @
Principal subsidiaries as at 31st December, 2018 ) A A S T 2 = e
(Continued) H2Z 2B A @)
MHK (Penha Hill) Limited (Continued) MHK (Penha Hill) Limited (%)
2018 2017
—E-A SE LA
HK$’000 HK$’000
Tt T W
Net cash (outflows) inflows from operating BMEEBH S () RA
activities ikl (61,430) 233,282
Net cash inflows from investing activities PGS B BB A 88 76
Net cash outflows from financing activities Tl 6 B B 4 O S R AR (45,000) (255,000)
Net cash outflows for the year A FE I 40 H AR (106,342) (21,642)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Ao £ BV 255 o i

For the year ended 31st December, 2018 #% —%F— /\4F+_H =+—H ILFJF

43. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES, 43,
ASSOCIATES AND
A JOINT VENTURE (Continued)

Principal associates as at 31st December, 2018

S A A
k2 N\ K
—XEELE @

R-F-NE+_A=+—
H 2z 3 25 = 2w

Proportion of

Paid up issued share capital/
issued voting power/
Form of Place of ordinary effective interest in
business incorporation share capital/ registered capital
Name of associate structure and operation registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
BRCEE  ANASHCEERA/
kML K TERRA/  RRHE/ AR
i i o ABEMEA  EENE ik M A Mgl % FERH
Directly Indirectly
Hik fil %
% %
Roma Era Limited Incorporated Hong Kong HK§$3,935,206 - 26.7  Investment holding
ERARAR ek it AL Bk 3,935,067 & BEtER
China Boom Enterprises Incorporated British Virgin Islands US$1,280,000 - 44 Investment holding
Limited
BEARHRAA Al ERAER R 1,280,0003 7 fatEh
Tomson Entertainment Co. Incorporated Taiwan NTD25,000,000 - 45 Investment in film,
Limited television and
entertainment
businesses
HERERBARLF ik it AL nE 25,000,000% £ REEY  EHR
RS
Abundance Tomson Incorporated Hong Kong HK$2 - 50  Investment holding
Management Limited
SEGEEEAARAT  ERRT i 2B TERR

The Directors are of the opinion that a complete list of the
particulars of all subsidiaries and associates would be of
excessive length and therefore the above list contains only
the particulars of those subsidiaries and associates which

significantly affect the results or assets of the Group.

8 oe B B A K e A 7
g 2 ) 2 R A U R A S U
o f ERMES 2 H AL
AR IR 7 R 2B 2 T R A
LWt N w2 ERL o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
S5 A R B G
For the year ended 31st December, 2018 #( % —ZF— /\4F+_H =+—H ILF &

43. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES, 43. L 2B A F -
ASSOCIATES AND Bk 25 o vl )%
A JOINT VENTURE (Continued) R % /El\ g {L\ % (%)
A joint venture as at 31st December, 2018 ) A A S T 2 = e
HZ—HKAGELE
Proportion of
voting power/
Form of Place of effective interest in
Name of joint business incorporation Paid up registered capital
venture structure and operation registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
Ak K ARFRAH R/
Chigea EGEWEL KBNS BEEMER  GEMEAREEGILE  FEEHK
Directly Indirectly
H# Il %
% %
Shanghai Jinjiang Tomson ~ Limited liability =~ Mainland China US$24,340,000 - 50  Hotel owning and
Hotel Co., Ltd. company (Taiwan, operation
Hong Kong or
Macau and
domestic equity
joint venture)
i L B K I FREAAR Bk 24,340,000 7 BH R B IE
HRAR (B BTEIE R
HE)
There have been no material changes on the details of the TE /e A A B R SN T R — R
principal associates and a joint venture for both years. A B ERNFF B M E R o
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Schedule of Principal Properties
ERWEE

As at 31st December, 2018 A —F— N\&E+_H=+—H

PROPERTIES HELD BY THE GROUP ANEEFAZWE
Investment Properties wEWE
Approximate
Term of Gross Floor Area Group’s
Description Lot Number Lease (sq.m.) Use Interest
8 4 0 i
it 1 B 4 5% AL (FJiK) Jili& A 2 i
The whole of basement level 1, Lot 2-2-1 Medium term 19,521 for offices Commercial 100%
part of the level 1 and Lujiazui Finance and podium;
the whole of level 2 to 5 of the and Trade Zone 7,594 for car parks
commercial podium and
141 car parking spaces of
Tomson Commercial Building,
710 Dongfang Road,
Lujiazui Finance and Trade Zone,
Pudong New Area, Shanghai,
People’s Republic of China
e N (RN b R [ FER W < iRl WA RS [LE3 100%
PEZR W 2 B2 2 G R B 710%% B 19,520F 97K 5
IR YN 2-2- 155 E AEfiL7,594F ) K
HWEEIELE
e Y& YT Ve 3
QUL NE X
The whole of level 1 to 3 of the commercial Lot C3-001 Medium term 36,082 for offices Commercial 100%
podium, 4/F., 9/F. to 12/E., 17/F. t0 25/F. Waigaogiao Free and podium;
and part of 7/F. to 8/F., 12A/F. and 14/F. of ~ Trade Zone 4,299 for car parks
the office tower and 105 car parking spaces of
Tomson International Trade Building,
No.1 Jilong Road,
Waigaogiao Free Trade Zone,
Pudong New Area, Shanghai,
People’s Republic of China
b \ R AR i 5 SRR RBL R iR LIN YT GBS 100%
B e B PR A B 1 5% C3-001 558 36,082°F 5k ;
B ERE K8 JHHLA 4,299°F )7 K
ELEAEE BES R
AKHEAE o E 128
17BEIHEER

TREZSHE  1DABRBR 148 2 R
K105 IAEA
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Schedule of Principal Properties

ERYER

For the year ended 31st December, 2018 #( % —ZF— /\4F+_H =+—H ILF &

PROPERTIES HELD BY THE GROUP (Concinucd)

AREMMEF A W% )

Investment Properties (Continued) wEWME )
Approximate
Term of Gross Floor Area Group’s
Description Lot Number Lease (sq.m.) Use Interest
T A A
it Hi B4 5% AL (FJiK) ik A 2
Whole of level 1 to 4 of the commercial Lot 1/1, 244 Street, Medium term 11,903 for offices Commercial 100%
podium and 136 car parking spaces of Weifangxincunjiedao, and podium;
Tomson Business Centre, Lujiazui Finance and 5,054 for car parks
158, 188, 228 Zhangyang Road, Trade Zone
Lujiazui Finance and Trade Zone,
Pudong New Area, Shanghai,
People’s Republic of China
b \ R LA g T T EXECHESE il AR5 [EES 100%
PR 5 6 B AE 11,903 F 7K 5
WA 158 © 188~ 22855 244811 H{z5,054°F ik
VN LIYN
T 551 % 4B 28 T 1368 i
Tower B, Tomson Riviera, Lot No. 1, 17 Jiefang, ~ Long-term 35,423 Residential 100%
28 Huayuanshigiao Road, Meiyuan Road
Lujiazui Finance and Trade Zone,
Pudong New Area, Shanghai,
People’s Republic of China
i A RSB b R el B 17130 =2 35,423 i 100%
ERERMES R 1A B
fE [ A feRE 285
Br L — B
Tomson Waigaogiao Industrial Park, Lot 1/1 & 1/4, Medium term 108,561 Industrial 100%
No. 381, 383, 1 Futexi Road, 19 Jiefang,
27 & 29 Huashen Road, Waigaogiao Free
358 Futebei Road, Trade Zone
Waigaogiao Free Trade Zone,
Pudong New Area, Shanghai,
People’s Republic of China
G INSE e Sh R il 108,561 I3 100%

ShE B R

B AT B 185381 k383 -
HH P 07 R 29%; -

B L3584k

BrE o Ei i TR R
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Schedule of Principal Properties
FERVIER
For the year ended 31st December, 2018 #% —%F— /\4F+_H =+—H ILFJF

PROPERTIES HELD BY THE GROUP (Continued) AREBERAEZYE @)
Investment Properties (Continued) BEWZE )
Approximate
Term of Gross Floor Area Group’s
Description Lot Number Lease (sq.m.) Use Interest
18 4 A8 i i
i1 Hu BB 5 il (CFJik) ik A 2 B i
72/F., Shanghai World Financial Center, Lot 1, 20 Jiefang, Medium term 3,222 Commercial 100%
No. 100, Century Avenue, Meiyuan Xincun
Pudong New Area, Shanghai, Jiedao, Pudong
People’s Republic of China New Area
ARSI BT ik 3,22 [ 100%
R R MR i
HEALR B 100%E 20851
GBS AL 728
Golf Course T T R Bk 5
Approximate Gross Group’s
Description Term of Lease Floor Area (sq.m.) Use Interest
19 4 A i v
il HLA CEAA) ik A 2 HE g
Tomson Shanghai Pudong Golf Club Medium term Club houses, driving range and An 18-hole golf 100%
No. 1 Long Dong Avenue, maintenance room of 12,652 course
Pudong New Area, Shanghai, with site area of 952,154
People’s Republic of China
i NR A Gk G - RERRAE S R 18 F X 100%
Y O B RO 1 BE R12,650F K 2
Yk LR ARG (AR B A952,154 7 /K )
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Schedule of Principal Properties

ERYER

For the year ended 31st December, 2018 #( % —ZF— /\4F+_H =+—H ILF &

PROPERTIES HELD BY THE GROUP (Concinucd)

Properties under development

AREMMEF A W% )

24k S

Approximate
Gross Gross Estimated
Lot Site Area  Floor Area Group’s Stage of Date of
Description Number (sq.m.) (sq.m.) Use Interest Completion Completion
WRAEEE  AREEE fhitz
G B 5 (FJik) (k) M AEEZHER  THRER 5 H
A picce of land near the junction B-2 and B-13-4 248,200 176,000  Residential 100% The land will be Note
of Loushan Road Jingiao- developed in phases.
and Long Dong Avenue, Zhangjiang Superstructure for
Jingiao-Zhangjiang District, District Phase I and VIII was
Pudong New Area, Shanghai, topped out in
People’s Republic of China December 2014
O GEINES ] & - RILE 248,200 176000 % 100% BURRITLYE ¢ Wit
iR R B-2t & ]t LR
& - RILE B-13-4 R MAERZZ-N
i ALY TS YN T ASHHE

RAZ—W L

Note: The whole development plans are still under review, the

completion time for this property project cannot be estimated at

this stage.

Properties held for sale

Mfat : A EE R BN E R > B AR
TR M I H 52 B R ] o

(El=EVE S

Approximate
Term Gross Floor Area Group’s
Description Lot Number of Lease (sq.m.) Use Interest
2 4 v v A%EH
it 1 B4 % AL (FJiK) & Z M
Part of 6/F. to 7/F., 10/E., 11/F., 17/F. of Lot 2-2-1 Medium term 3,039 Commercial 100%
Tomson Commercial Building, Lujiazui Finance
710 Dongfang Road, and Trade Zone
Lujiazui Finance and Trade Zone,
Pudong New Area, Shanghai,
People’s Republic of China
i A RSB b R ERECHESE T 3,039 [ 100%

ok 5 < L L R B 710

VR YN

CETHE 108 11 R 7HE
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Schedule of Principal Properties
FERVIER
For the year ended 31st December, 2018 #% —%F— /\4F+_H =+—H ILFJF

PROPERTIES HELD BY THE GROUP (Conzinued) ANEBFEZYE »)
Properties held for sale (Continued) HEYE E)
Approximate
Term Gross Floor Area Group’s
Description Lot Number of Lease (sq.m.) Use Interest
MO A0 4 v i N
Gidl W B4 % H (FJ k) ik bd,
Part of 5/F., 6/F., 15/F., and 16/F. of Lot C3-001 Medium term 4,035  Commercial 100%
Tomson International Trade Building, Waigaogiao Free
No.1 Jilong Road, Trade Zone

Waigaogiao Free Trade Zone,
Pudong New Area, Shanghai,
People’s Republic of China

GEINE 2T SRR R BLE ) 4,035 [GE S 100%
B B PR L I R e 1 C3-001 5Bt
IS -UIN
SHE -~ ot~ 1SHE R I6HEZ b

Part of Towers A & C & Tower D, Lot No. 1, 17 Jiefang, ~ Long-term 33,783 Residential 100%
Tomson Riviera, Meiyuan Road
28 Huayuanshigiao Road,

Lujiazui Finance and Trade Zone,
Pudong New Area, Shanghai,
People’s Republic of China

e \ R AR L i O T B £ 33,783 FE 100%
XSRS SR 17855 1 S H B
& B A G 28 5

P — AR CREZ # BL B DR

Phases VI, VIII & IX Tomson Golf Villas, Lot 23/10 Long-term 1,741 Residential 100%
1 Long Dong Avenue, Tong Le Cun,
Pudong New Area, Shanghai, Hua Mu Xiang
People’s Republic of China

iE N AR & fEAH =2 1,741 i 100%
AR [F 464423/10 2
o e e 7 <
BN BARE N
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Schedule of Principal Properties
ERYER

For the year ended 31st December, 2018 #( % —ZF— /\4F+_H =+—H ILF &

PROPERTIES HELD BY THE GROUP (Concinucd)

AREMMEF A W% )

Properties held for sale (Continued) HEYE E)
Approximate
Term Gross Floor Area Group’s
Description Lot Number of Lease (sq.m.) Use Interest
40 A i
it Hi B4 5% AL (FJik) ik
Part of Block B & F and Lot 47/1, Zhangbang ~ Long-term 363 for residential; Residential 100%
131 car parking spaces of Cun, Jinqiaozhen, 4,117 for car parks
Tomson Golf Garden, Pudong New Area
1 Long Dong Avenue,
(2 of North District),
Pudong New Area, Shanghai,
People’s Republic of China
e \ R LA - g T T W ST R R# FE363FHK FE 100%
FERORIEL9E (dh2l@) SRERIER JHEL(74,117°F K
PRI 4Nk
BRFHEZ # -
PAR 131 AL
Part of One Penha Hill, No. 22356 folio 100,  Long-term 10,689 for residential; Residential 70%
Travessa do Colégio No.7 Book B16K 3,496 for car parks
e Calcada do Bom Parto No.2,
Macao Special Administrative Region,
People’s Republic of China
GEINETII B16K{# it =2 fEE10,689°FF K 5 e 70%
AR B H100H W3 496 F H K
SRATH RO R 25% FE M %2356

R ERINZRZ R
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Schedule of Principal Properties

ERYER

For the year ended 31st December, 2018 #% —%F— /\4F+_H =+—H ILFJF

PROPERTIES HELD BY A JOINT VENTURE

—FXAREERAZIWE

Properties held for investment HEREZ2ME
Approximate
Term Gross Floor Area Group’s
Description Lot Number of Lease (sq.m.) Use Interest
8 2 0 v i AEH
it 1 B 4 5% AL (FJiK) Jili& Z M
InterContinental Shanghai Pudong hotel, Lot 12 Zhangyang Medium term 52,622 Hotel 50%
777 Zhangyang Road, Road Commercial
Lujiazui Finance and Trade Zone, District
Pudong New Area, Shanghai,
People’s Republic of China
e \ R LA g T T stk i 52,622 A 50%
B W e 5 RV 8 7779 HER 12550 B

LT F M PR I
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Five-Year Financial Summary

. 4F 10 5 1Bt B2

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
PROFIT OR LOSS

GEEE ¥

btvd

Year ended 31st December
BETA=Z+—HIEEE
2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
“F g ZF-ffE ZFoNE ZF-LFE DFNEF
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$000 HK$°000
THETT THETT THTT THTT T#u

Gross proceeds from HE S 55 AR

operations 1,000,520 2,738,715 4,174,196 2,167,464 684,829
Profit before taxation W Fod i ¥ 1l 221,306 1,206,806 1,759,651 2,400,505 700,722
Taxation BiIA (118,477)  (582,044)  (751,984) (1,055,840)  (313,244)
Profit for the year A JE Ui 102,829 624,762 1,007,667 1,344,665 387,478
Attributable to: MEAET -
Owners of the Company ARwERREA A 95,985 534,074 876,256 1,255,486 407,681
Non-controlling interests I 42 I SR 2 6,844 90,688 131,411 89,179 (20,203)

102,829 624,762 1,007,667 1,344,665 387,478
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Five-Year Financial Summary

T4 A 5 W
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF &5 0 B R DL 3R
FINANCIAL POSITION
At 31st December
VA e 3 ey e
2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
ZERE ZF-AE ZF-AFE ZF B ZFNE
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$000  HK$’000
T T-HTT THTT T T Tt
Fixed assets 2 G 7,410,385 7,495,121 7,543,584 8,287,655 8,176,159
Lease premium for land 4 A & & A 51,511 42,504 33,368 30,410 22,753
Film distribution rights T BT HE 10,000 5,491 4,942 4,942 150
Prepayment for film W R B TRETA LS 3K
distribution rights 85 - - - -
Goodwill Gk 33,288 33,288 33,288 33,288 33,288
Deferred tax assets RS T 277,682 317,600 364,538 281,729 273,982
Interests in associates and =Nl
joint ventures aEMAE MR 1,090,955 1,040,070 188,265 201,581 196,809
Other receivables At R A R K 157,520 60,874 = = -
Available-for-sale investments 7] fit Hi £ 4% & 146,134 149,598 184,115 189,228 -
Club debentures o fr (& 25 - — _ _ 515
Equity instruments at BATERTA
fair value through other HAh 2 H 55 2
comprehensive income WA T A = = - - 436,031
Pledged bank deposits I RATAEK - - 163,960 941,848 798,733
Net current assets Vi) E Y 7,346,598 5,914,585 6,777,861 5,473,479 5,792,887
16,524,158 15,059,131 15,293,921 15,444,160 15,731,307
Equity attributable to owners A/ Al FF A A
of the Company JE A HE 2 11,243,049 11,269,127 11,399,052 13,224,128 13,027,057
Non-controlling interests R PR B R A 861,578 917,215 993,146 296,461 256,316
Total equity Kot 12,104,627 12,186,342 12,392,198 13,520,589 13,283,373
Amounts due to joint ventures JEAT & G 2E3E 113,514 59,680 = = -
Borrowings 58 2,700,713 1,366,734 1,607,876 345,780 944,673
Deferred tax liabilities iR HEFTH A 1K 1,605,304 1,446,375 1,293,847 1,577,791 1,503,261
16,524,158 15,059,131 15,293,921 15,444,160 15,731,307
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Five-Year Financial Summary

T A B B R 2

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION (Continued)

Note:

The Group has applied HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” and
HKFRS 15 “Revenue from contracts with customers” for the
first time in the current year. In accordance with the transition
provision, the Group has applied HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 15
retrospectively with the cumulative effect of initially applying
these standards recognised at the date of initial application, 1st
January, 2018. Any difference at the date of initial application is
recognised in the opening retained earnings (or other
components of equity, as appropriate) and comparative
information for the years ended 2014 to 2017 has not been

restated.

Tomson Group Limited % i £E B 4 FR /A 7]

o 13 B B IR D 3K )

A AR T A A AR BE U T R 7 B i
HAUEQ) S5k [ Ml T B | K& (& il BE 85
W HERD S 1sHE IR AR G40t | o
AR A A GRS - A SR I LB W T KA
T T 5 e i Y RN B9t S (i B S ik
R S5t - T E U % 5 HE A
ZEFEBRERERNBS (CF A

F—H—H) HRE - RERERABHZ
Eﬁ%”ﬁﬁ/\ﬁ%ﬂf}% i A (B A HE 4
ARy (N7 ) ) ERR - Tl A g — %
*mfﬁﬁgi tfﬁ HLECE A
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